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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION

November 18, 2008

Dear Shareholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting of shareholders of Florida Gaming Cor-
poration, which will be held on December 19, 2008 at 1:00 p.m., Eastern Time, at the Sheraton
Louisville Riverside Hotel, 700 West Riverside Drive, Jeffersonville, Indiana 47130,

Details of the business to be conducted at the annual meeting are given in the attached Notice
of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Proxy Statement.

Whether or not you attend the annual meeting it is important that your shares be represented
and voted at the meeting. Therefore, I urge you to sign, date, and promptly return the enclosed
proxy. If you decide to attend the annual meeting and vote in person, you will of course have that
opportunity.

On behalf of the board of directors, I would like to express our appreciation for your continued
interest and support of Florida Gaming Corporation.

Sincerely,

Is/ W. B. Collett, Ir.

W. B. Collett, Jr.
President and Chief Operating Officer




FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD AT 1:00 PM. ON DECEMBER 19, 2008

To the Shareholders:

Notice is hereby given that the annual meeting of the holders of shares of common stock of Florida
Gaming Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company’) wilt be held at 700 West Riverside Drive,
Jeffersonville, Indiana 47130, on December 19, 2008 at 1:00 P.M., Eastern Time, for the following purposes:

(1) To elect five directors for a term expiring at the next annual meeting of shareholders, or until their
successors are duly elected or qualified;

(2) To confirm the appointment of King & Company, PSC as the Company’s auditor for the year ended
December 31, 2008;

(3) To consider and act upon such other business as may properly come before the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof,

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on November 11, 2008 are entitled to notice of, and
to vote at this meeting. A list of stockholders of the Company will be available for inspection during normal
business hours from December 4, 2008 through December 19, 2008, at the office of the Company located at
2669 Charlestown Road, Suite D, New Albany, IN 47150.

By Order of the Board of Directors

/st W. B. Collett, Jr.

W. B. Collett, Jr.
President and Chief Operating Officer
November 18, 2008

IMPORTANT

Whether or not you expect to attend in person, we urge you to sign, date, and return the enclosed
Proxy at your earliest convenience. This will ensure the presence of a quorum at the meeting.
PROMPTLY SIGNING, DATING, AND RETURNING THE PROXY WILL SAVE FLORIDA GAMING
CORPORATION THE EXPENSE AND EXTRA WORK OF ADDITIONAL SOLICITATION. Sending
in your Proxy will not prevent you from voting vour stock at the meeting if you desire to do so, as your
Proxy is revocable at your option.
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION
2669 Charlestown Road, Suite D
New Albany, IN 47150
(502) 589-2000

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON DECEMBER 19, 2008

THE ANNUAL MEETING

General

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of Proxies by the board of directors
of Florida Gaming Corporation for use at the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders to be held at 1:00 p.m..
local time, on December 19, 2008 at 700 West Riverside Drive, Jeffersonville, IN 47130, and at any adjourn-
ment thereof (the “Meeting”), for the purpose of considering and voting upon the named nominees to the
board of directors and to confirm the appointment of King & Company, PSC as the Company’s auditor for the
year ended December 31, 2008. This Proxy Statement, the Notice of Meeting, and the enclosed form of Proxy
are expected to be mailed to stockholders on or about November 18, 2008.

Record Date and Shares Entitled to Vote

The close of business on November 11, 2008 has been fixed as the record date (the “Record Date™) for
the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. Only holders of
record as of the Record Date of shares of the common stock, $0.20 par value per share (“Common Stock™)
are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. Each share of Common Stock entitles the holder
thereof to one vote per share on each matter presented to the stockholders for approval at the Annual Meeting.
On November 11, 2008, there were an aggregate of 3,754,205 shares of Commen Stock outstanding and
entitled to vote.

Proxy Solicitation

In addition to the solicitation of proxies by the board of directors through use of the mails, proxies may
also be solicited by Florida Gaming Corporation and its directors, officers and employees (who will receive no
additional compensation therefore) by telephone, telegram, facsimile transmission or other electronic commu-
nication, and/or by personal interview. Florida Gaming Corporation will reimburse banks, brokerage houses,
custodians and other fiduciaries that hold shares of common stock in their name or custody, or in the name of
nominees for others, for their out-of-pocket expenses incurred in forwarding copies of the proxy materials to
those persons for whom they hold such shares. Florida Gaming Corporation will bear the costs of the annual
meeting and of soliciting proxies therefore, including the cost of printing and mailing this proxy statement and
related materials.

Any questions or requests for assistance regarding Florida Gaming Corporation proxies and related
materials may be directed in writing to the Chief Financial Officer, Ms. Kimberly Tharp, 2669 Charlestown
Road, Suite D, New Albany, Indiana 47150, or telephone (502) 589-2000.

Votes Required

The affirmative vote of the holders of a plurality of the shares of Common Stock veting on the matter is
required for the election of directors. Votes may be cast in favor of all nominees or voters may abstain from
voting in the election of directors. Voles that are withheld will be counted for the purposes of determining the
presence or absence of a quorum but will have no other effect on the election of directors.

Confirmation of King & Company PSC as auditors for the Company will require the affirmative vote of
the holders of a majority of the votes cast, excluding abstentions, at any meeting at which a quorum is
present,




Shares held in “street name” by brokers or nominees who indicate on their proxies that they do not have
discretionary authority to vote such shares as to a particular matter will not be voted in favor of such matter
and will not be counted as shares voting on such matter. Accordingly, broker non-votes, if any, will be
counted for the purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum, but will have no effect on the
election of directors or the approval of the other matters voted upon at the Meeting.

Voting of Proxies

All Proxies will be voted in accordance with the instructions of the stockholder. If no choice is specified,
the Proxies will be voted FOR the election of all the nominees to serve as cur directors and FOR the approval
of all of the other proposals set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting and on the proxy card. In the
discretion of the Proxy holders, the Proxies will also be voted for or against such other matters as may prop-
erly come before the Annual Meeting. Management is not aware of any other matters to be presented for
action at the Annuzal Meeting.

Execution of a Proxy by a stockhelder will not affect such stockholder’s right to attend the Annual
Meeting and to vote in person. Any stockholder who executes a Proxy has a right to revoke it at any time
before it is voted, by: (a) advising Flerida Gaming Corporation in writing of such revocation; (b} executing a
later-dated Proxy which is presented to the Company at or prior to the Annual Meeting; or (c) appearing at
the Annual Meeting and voting in person. Attendance at the Meeting will not itself be deemed to revoke a
Proxy unless the stockholder gives affirmative notice at the Meeting that the stockhelder intends to revoke the
proxy and vote in person.

Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

There are no rights of appraisal or similar rights of dissenters with respect to any of the scheduled mat-
ters to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting.

Quorum

The presence, in person or by proxy duly authorized, of the holder or holders of 33 1/3 percent of the
outstanding shares of the corporation’s common voting stock on the Record Date shall constitute a quorum for
the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting. Shares of Common Stock present in person or represented
by proxy (including shares which abstain or do not vote with respect to one or more of the matters presented
for stockholder approval) will be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists at the Annual
Meeting.

Stockholder Proposals

No proposals have been received from any shareholder to be considered at the Annual Meeting.




PROPOSAL NO. 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION

Directors are elected at the annual meeting of shareholders and hold office until the next annual meeting
of shareholders and until their successors are elected and qualified. The following persons currently serve as
members of the board of directors and are being nominated for election to the board of directors at the Annual
Meeting:

Name of Nominee Age
W. B. Collett 76
W. B. Collett, Jr. 53
George Galloway, Jr, 75
Roland M. Howell 92
William Haddon 78

It is the intention of the person named in the accompanying Proxy to vote Proxies for the election of the
five nominees. Each nominee has consented to being named in this Proxy Statement and to serve, if elected.
In the event that any of the nominees should for some reason, presently unknown, become unavailable for
election, the persons named in the form of Proxy as Proxy Holders intend to vote for substitute nominees.

Nominees for Election as Directors

The Board of Directors had 4 meetings last year. All directors attended 75% or more of the meetings.
Following is information about each of the nominees for election to the board of directors:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE IN FAVOR OF THE NOMINEES. PROP-
ERLY EXECUTED PROXIES SOLICITED BY FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION WILL BE SO
VOTED UNLESS SHAREHOLDERS SPECIFY IN THEIR PROXIES A CONTRARY CHOICE.

Director Independence

The Board has reviewed each director’s independence. As a result of this review, the Board affirmatively
determined that each of Messrs. Galloway, Haddon and Howell have no material relationship with the Com-
pany (either directly or as a partner, stockholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with the
Company) and “independent” under the listing standards of Section 4200 (a) (15) of the NASD Rules.

W. Bennett Collett has served as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Free-
dom Financial Corporation (*“Freedom™)} since its formation in 1985. Freedom was a registered bank holding
company until January, 1988 when it sold its banking subsidiaries. Mr. Collett has served as Chairman and
director of Freedom Holding, Inc. (““Holding™) since its formation in December 1992. Holding’s sole business
currently is to hold shares of Florida Gaming. Mr. Collett has been involved in the management of banking
and financial service companies for over 30 years, having been a principal officer, and director of ten commer-
cial banks, For 14 years Mr. Collett was a pnincipal shareholder and chief executive officer of various banks
and finance companies in Alabama, Arkansas, Georgia, Indiana and Missouri ranging in asset size from
$1,000,000 to $500,000,000.

W. Bennett Collett Jr. served as President of Freedom from 1988 to 1989. Since August 1989, Mr. Col-
lett has served as Executive Vice President of Freedom. He has been a director of Freedom since its formation
in 1985 and a director of Holding since April 1998. He presently serves as Secretary and Treasurer of Hold-
ing. Mr. Collett is responsible for directing the Company’s gaming operations (live jai-alai performances,
inter-track wagering, and card rooms). Mr. Collett currently serves as President and Chief Operating Officer
and was appointed to the Company’s Board of Directors on August 9, 1994. W. Bennett Collett Jr. is the son
of W. Bennett Collett.

George W. Galloway, Jr., M.D. a physician since 1958, served as the medical director of the emergency
services at Kennestone Hospital in Marietta, Georgia from 1983 until his retirement in March, 1999,




Roland M. Howell was a principal in several hotels in South Florida and was active in various positions
in hotel management for over thirty years. He owned and operated hotels in Florida for approximately twenty
years before his retirement in 1969. He is currently a private investor with interests primarily in municipal
bonds, stocks, and real estate.

William Haddon an attorney and certified public accountant, has been engaged In the private practice of
law in Atlanta, Georgia since 1962.

PROPOSAL NO. 2
SELECTION OF AUDITORS

The board of directors selected King & Company PSC as the Company’s independent auditors to exam-
ine the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. The shareholders are
being asked to confirm this appointment.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE IN FAVOR OF CONFIRMING KING &
COMPANY PSC AS THE COMPANY'S INDEPENDENT AUDITORS. PROPERLY EXECUTED PROXIES
SOLICITED BY FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION WILL BE SO VOTED UNLESS SHAREHOLDERS
SPECIFY IN THEIR PROXIES A CONTRARY CHOICE.

Directors and Executive Officers

The following information sets forth the names of our executive officers, their ages and their present
positions.

Director or
Executive
Name Age Position with the Company Officer Since
W. Bennett Collett 76 Chief Executive Officer, 1993
Director and Chairman
W, Bennett Collett, Jr. 53 President, Director, and 1993
Chief Operating Officer
Kimberly R. Tharp 51 Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary 2002
Daniel J. Licciardi 52 Executive Vice Pres, Centers 1998
Jennifer Chong 52 Controller 2003
George Galloway, Jr. 76 Director 1994
Roland M. Howell 92 Director 1995
William Haddon 76 Director 2001

Family Relationships

W. B. Collett, Chairman and CEQ, is the father of W. B. Collett, Jr., President and Chief Operating
Officer.

Legal Proceedings

No director or officer or any associate of any director or officer is a party adverse to the Company or has
any material interest adverse to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, during the past five years, none of the following occurred with respect to a
present or former director, executive officer, or employee of the Company:

¢ any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general pariner
or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;

= any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (exclud-
ing traffic violations and other minor offenses);

»  being subject to any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise limiting his or her involvement in any type of business, securities or banking activities;




being found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC or the Commodities
Futures Trading Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and
the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007

Equity
Equity Incentive Plan
Equity Incentive Awards:
Incentive Plan Awards:  Market or
Plan Awards: Market Number of Payout Value
Number of Number of Number of Number of Value of Unearned of Unearned
Securities Securities Securities Shares or Shares of  Shares, Units Shares, Units
Underlying  Underlying  Underlying Units of Units of or Other or Other
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised  Option Option Stock That Stock That  Rights That  Rights That
Options(#)  Options (¥) Unearned  Exercise Expiration  Have Not Have Not Have Not Have Not
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Options (#)  Price ($) Date Vested ($) Vested ($) Vested (#) Vested ($)
(a} (b) (c) (d} (e} i (g (h) (i) a0
Ww. B Collent 250,000 17 7/11/2009
Chairman & CEO 48,000 17 7/10/2012
230,000 2.25 3/20/2008
Ww. B Collett, Jr. 75,000 17 771172009
President & COO 18,000 17 7/10/2012
105,000 225 3/20/2008
Kimberly Tharp 4,125 17 71102012
%FO; Secretary & 10,000 2.25 342042008
reasurer 5,000 225 2/12/2009
Daniel Licciardi 17,500 17 7/11/2009
Exec. _Vice-Presidenl 7,125 17 7/10/2012
& Pan-Mutuels Mgr 345 009 225 3/20/2008
Jennifer Chong 2,750 17 71072012
Controller 10,000 2.25  3/2012008
5,000 2.25 2/12/2009

W. B. Collett was issued 48,000 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which 1/2 vested on

December 31, 2006, and the remaining 1/2 vested onluly 1, 2007. Mr. Collett was also issued 250,000 options
on July 11, 2006, which 1/2 vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 1/2 vested on July 1, 2007. On
March 11, 2008, Mr. Collett transferred all his options to Freedom Holding, Inc. Mr. Collett owns 85.09% of
Freedom Holding, Inc. (See Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management). On July 3,
2008, the Board of Directors authorized the options that had an exercise price of $17.00 per share to be
re-priced at $12.00 per share. On August 26, 2008, the Board authorized the options that had an exercise price
of $12.00 per share price to be re-priced at $8.25 per share.

W. B. Collett, Jr. was issued 75,000 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which 1/20 vested
on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 1/2 vested on July 1, 2007. He was also issued 18,000 options on
July 11, 2006, of which 1/2 vested on December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested on July 1, 2007. On
March 11, 2008, W, B. Collett, Ir. transferred all his options to Freedom Holding, Inc. W. B. Collett, Jr. owns
9.21% of Freedom Holding, Inc. (See Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management). On
July 3, 2008, the Board of Directors authorized the options that had an exercise price of $17.00 per share to
be re-priced at $12.00 per share. On August 26, 2008, the Board authorized the options that had an exercise
price of $12.00 per share to be re-priced at $8.25 per share,

Daniel Licciardi was issued 17,500 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which 1/2 vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remaining 1/2 vested onJuly 1, 2007. Mr. Licciardi was also issued 7,125 options
on july 11, 2006, of which 1/2 vested on December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested on July 1, 2007. On
March 14, 2008, Mr. Licciardi exercised 30,000 options at $2.25. On July 3, 2008, the Board of Directors




authorized the options that had an exercise price of $17.00 per share to be re-priced at $12.00 per share. On
August 26, 2008, the Board authorized the options that had an exercise price of $12.00 per share price to be
re-priced at $8.25 per share.

Kimberly Tharp was issued 4,125 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which 1/2 vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested onJuly 1, 2007. Ms. Tharp has 5,000 vested options which
expire 2/12/2009. On Janvary 29, 2008, Ms. Tharp exercised 10,000 options $2.25. On July 3, 2008, the
Board of Directors authorized the options that had an exercise price of $i17.00 per share to be re-priced at
$12.00 per share. On August 26, 2008, the Board authorized the options that had an exercise price of
$12.00 per share price to be re-priced at $8.25 per share.

Jennifer Chong was issued 2,750 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which 1/2 vested on |
December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested onJuly 1, 2007. Ms. Chong has 5,000 vested options which
expire 2/12/2009. On March 17, 2008, Ms. Chong exercised 10,000 options at $2.25. On July 3, 2008, the
Board of Directors authorized the options that had an exercise price of $17.00 per share to be re-priced at
$12.00 per share. On Avgust 26, 2008, the Board authorized the options that had an exercise price of
$12.00 per share price to be re-priced at $8.25 per share.

Compensation of Directors

Only outside directors receive compensation for their services as director. On May 1, 2007, the outside
Board of Directors were given an increase in compensation from $750 to $1,500 per month. The table below
discloses all compensation paid to outside directors for their service on the board of directors for the year
ended December 31, 2007,

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 2007

Change in
Pension
Fees Non-Equity Value and
Earned Incentive Nongqualified
or Paid in Stock Option Plan Deferred All Other
Cash Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Compensation Total
Name (%) ($) (5) ($) Earnings ($) (3}
(2) (b) (c) (d} (e) ) (g} (h)
Roland Howell ... 15,000 62,344 ' 77.344
William Haddon .. 15,000 124,688 139,688
George Galloway . 15,000 182,875 197,875

On July 1, 2008, the directors received an increase in salary of $500 per month to $2,000 per month.

Option awards in 2007 were based upon the exercise price of $17 per share. During 2008, the Board of
Directors re-priced those options to an exercise price of $8.25 per share.




COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth all cash compensation paid by the Company for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 for W. Bennett Collett, W. B. Collett, Jr., and Daniel Licciardi.

Non-Equity Non-Qualified

Incentive Deferred
Stock Option Plan Compensation All Other

Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
, Name of Executive Officer Year [6)] $) $) $) % % [t3] )
(a) (b) {c) ) (e} ) ® (h} (i) @
W. B. Collett 2007  $680,000 1,981,700 ' 36,381 2,698,581
Chairman and CEO 2006 $600,000 1,981,700 40,622 2,622,322
W. B. Collett, Ir. 2007 263,000 618,450 15,488 896,938
President 2006 251,000 15,000 618,450 40,663 925,113
Daniel Licciardi 2007 141,300 163,756 6,000 311,056
Exec. Vice President 2006 141,300 15,000 163,756 19,000 339,056

Salary (c)

The amounts disclosed as “Salary” to W. B. Collett have been paid by the Company to Freedom
Financial Corporation (“Freedom’). In September, 1997, the Company discontinued the salary payments to
Mr. Collett. and began paying management fees to Freedom in lieu of paying a salary to Mr. Collett. On
May 1, 20035, Freedom received an increase in management fees of $10,000 per month to $50,000 per month..
On May 1, 2007 the Board of Directors gave Freedom a management fee increase of $10,000 per month, to
$60.000 per month. As of December 31, 2007, there was no written employment or consulting agreement
between the Company and Freedom, The Company has no employment agreements with any of the officers.
On February 29, 2008 the Board of Directors authorized an increase in management fees to Freedom to
$65,000 per month, effective April 1, 2008, in lieu of a salary of Mr. Collett. Mr, Collett is Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of Freedom.

Bonus (d)

There were no bonuses in 2007 compared to Mr, Collett, Jr. and Mr, Licciardi each receiving a bonus of
$15,000 in 2006 for their efforts in selling the Ft. Pierce property. On October 3, 2008, the Company autho-
rized a bonus to Mr. Collett, Jr. and Mr. Licciardi in the amount of $63,086 each for their efforts in obtaining
the $8,500,000 insurance settlement received October 1, 2008.

Option Awards (f)

W. B. Collett was issued 298,000 options in July 2006 for $17.00 a share with a fair value of $13.30 a
share. Half the options, or 149,000 shares vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 149,000 vested on
July 1, 2007. During 2008, the Board of Directors re-priced those options to an exercise price of $8.25 per
share.

W. B. Collett, Jr.was issued 93,000 options in July 2006 for $17.00 a share with a fair value of $13.30 a
share. Half the options, or 46,500 shares vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 46,500 vested on
July 1, 2007. During 2008, the Board of Directors re-priced these options to an exercise price of $8.25 per
share.

Daniel Licciardi was issued 24,625 options in July 2006 for $17.00 a share with a fair value of $13.30 a
share. Half the options, or 12,312.5 shares vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 12,312.5 vested
on July 1, 2007. During 2008, the Board of Directors re-priced those options to an exercise price of $8.25 per
share.

Other Compensation (i)

W.B.Collett had other compensation of $36,881 for the year ended 2007. Of the $36.881, $21,281
included reimbursements for medical payments, insurance and auto repairs made on personal cars used for
company business, and cleaning service at personal residence for 2007, The remaining $15,600 was for $300




a week discretionary expense allowance. This compares to other compensation of $40,622 in 2006. The
$40,622 included payments for repairs and insurance for persconal automobiles used for coiupany business.

W.B. Collett, Jr. had other compensation of $15,488 which included $7,663 in car payments made by the
Company for personal autos used in Company business, $2,877 on repairs to personal automobiles and per-
sonal travel expenses of $4,947. This compares to other compensation of $40,663 for the year 2006, of which
$5,279 for repairs to personal automobiles, $19,384 in car payments made by the Company on personal cars
used for company business, and $16,000 in cash advances.

Dan Licciardi had other compensation of $6,000 for 2007 for auto allowance compared to $19,000 in the
year 2006, Of the $19,000 in 2006, $13,000 was from compensation received for overseeing construction at
Ft. Pierce after the hurricane damage, and $6,000 in auto allowance.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Florida Gaming Corporation does not currently have a compensation committee, nominating committee,
executive comrmittee, or stock plan committee. The reason for not electing a nominating committee is the
board of directors is so small that they feel it is not necessary at this time, The compensation of the executive
officers and the board of directors is suggested by Mr. Collett, based on his subjective judgment and general
knowledge of compensation levels, and then approved by the Board of Directors. The amount paid to Free-
dom, in lieu of a salary to Mr. Collett, is set by the independent board of directors upon recommendation by
Mr. Collett, The Company, due to its small size, does not feel it needs an executive or stock plan committee
at this time. Mr. William C. Haddon, Dr. George Galloway, and Mr. Roland M. Howell are considered inde-
pendent directors under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the National Association of Securities Dealers.

Florida Gaming Corporation has an independent audit committee and a qualified legal compliance com-
mittee. The audit committee consists:

¢ Dr. George Galloway, and
«  William C. Haddon

Mr. William Haddon is a certified public accountant and an attorney and qualifies as an audit committee
financial expert, The Company has attached a copy of the Audit Committee’s Charter to this proxy statement
as Exhibit A.

The qualified legal compliance committee consists of:
*  Dr. George Galloway;

. William Haddon, and

=  Roland M. Howell.

If a shareholder wishes to get in touch with a director, please send correspondence to 2669 Charlestown
Road, Suite D, New Albany, IN 47150 or call (502) 589-2000.

Policy Regarding Consideration of Candidates for Director

Stockholder Nominees

The Board of Directors will consider stockholder recommendations for director nominees at the 2009
annual meeting. Stockholder nominations should include, among other items, the name, age, business address
and residence address of the nominee, the principal occupation or employment of the nominee, the number of
shares of Common Stock which are beneficially owned by the nominee on the date such nomination is sub-
mitted, any other information relating to the nominee that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies
for election of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case, pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securi-
ties Exchange Act of 1934. The stockholder nominating such nominee should also include the name and
address of such stockholder and any other stockhotders known by such stockholder to be supporting such
nominee as they appear on the Company’s books along with the number of shares of Common Stock which
are beneficially owned on the date of the nomination by such stockholder and by any other stockholders
known by such stockholder to be supporting such nominee,




Director Qualifications

The Board of Directors seeks to ensure that the majority of directors qualify as “independent” under all
applicable rules, including the listing standards under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the National Association of Securi-
ties Dealers and the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Board of Directors will
review the requisite skills and characteristics for potential nominees. This assessment will include consider-
ation of the nominees’ qualification as independent as well as their background, board skill needs, diversity
and business experience. The Board will seek individuals who have displayed high ethical standards, integrity
and sound business judgment. '

The Board of Directors may also consider such other factors as it may deem are in the best interest of
the Company and its stockholders. The manner in which the Board of Directors evaluates a potential nominee
will not differ based on whether the nominee is recommended by a stockholder of the Company.

The Company does not pay a third party fee to assist in identifying and evaluating nominees, but the
Company does not prectude the potential for using such services if needed as may be determined at the dis-
cretion of the Board of Directors.




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

=  the pre-approval of all audit,-audit related, tax, and other services permitted by law or applicable
SEC regulations (including fee and cost ranges) to be performed by the independent auditor.

*  Any pre-approved services that will involve fees or costs exceeding pre-approved levels will also
require specific pre-approval by the Audit Committee. Unless otherwise specified by the Audit
Committee in pre-approving a service, the pre-approval will be effective for the 12-month period
following pre-approval.

»  The Audit Committee will not approve any non-audit services prohibited by applicable SEC regula-
tions or any services in connection with a transaction initially recommended by the independent
auditor, the purpose of which may be tax avoidance and the tax treatment of which will not be
supported by the Internal Revenue Code and related regulations.

To the extent deemed appropriate, the Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval authority to any one
or more members of the Audit Committee provided that any member of the Audit Committee who has exer-
cised any such delegation must report any such pre-approval decision to the Audit Committee at its next
scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee will not delegate to management the pre-approval of services to be
performed by the independent auditor.

Report of the Audit Committee

On Januvary 10, 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted resolutions creating an audit
committee and adopted a written charter setting forth the audit committee’s duties and respoensibilities, a copy
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The following persons, all of whom are independent directors of the
Company within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(15) of the Naticnal Association of Securities Dealers, have
beén elected to serve as members of the audit committee: Dr. George W. Galloway, Jr., and William C.
Haddon.

The Audit Commiitee of the Board of Directors of the Company serves as the representative of the Board
for general oversight of the Company’s financial accounting and reporting process, audit process, and system
of internal control. The Company’s management has primary responsibility for preparing the Company’s
financial statements and the Company’s reporting process. The Company’s independent accountants, King &
Company, PSC, are responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the Company’s financial
statements to generally accepted accounting principles.

The Audit Committee reports as follows:

Audit-Related Fees
(Review of 10-k &
Communication with

Year Audit Fees Audit Committee) Tax Fees All other Fees
2007 73,960 6,293 15,580 18,043
2006 68,577 7,288 14.470 4,163

»  The Audit Committec has determined that the nonaudit services provided by King & Company,
PSC was compatible with maintaining King & Company’s independence.

*  The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with the
Company’s management.

+  The Audit Committee has discussed with the Company’s independent accountants the matters
required to be discussed by SAS 61 (Codification of Statements on Auditing Standard, AU 380).

*  The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent
accountant required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
regarding the independent accountant’s communications with the Audit Committee concemning
independence, and has discussed with the independent accountant the independent accountant’s
independence.
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The Audit Committee recommended to the Company’s Board of Directors that the audited financial
statements be incloded in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2007, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The undersigned members of the Audit
Committee have submitted this Report:

William C. Haddon
George W. Galloway, Jr.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On March 11, 2008, Freedom Financial Corporation transferred all ownership in Florida Gaming Corpo-
ration to Freedom Holding, Inc. (“Holding’’) This consisted of 886,157 shares of Florida Gaming Corporation
common stock, 1,000 shares of Preferred F Stock, 200 Shares of Preferred E Stock, 20,000 warrants and
315,000 stock options. On March 11, 2008, W, Bennett Collett transferred his 528,000 options to Freedom
Holding, Inc., and W. B. Collett, Ir, transferred his 198,000 options to Holding. On March 14, 2008, Holding
exercised 335,000 options at $2.25 per share. Holding may be deemed to be a “parent” of the Company as
such term is defined in the rules promulgated under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act, by virtue of beneficial
ownership of 45.27% of the Common Stock of the Company. See “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management”.

In April 1999, in order to stimulate lot sales-and the construction of new homes in Tara Club Estates,
W. Bennett Collett, the Company’s Chairman, formed a joint venture with a builder called Tara Construction
Co. (the “Joint Venture™). The Joint Venture borrowed $1,200,000 from two commercial banks to finance the
purchase of lots and the construction of homes on the lots. The Company sold nine (9) lots to the Joint Ven-
ture for an aggregate of $431,000 cash.and the Joint Venture pledged the lots to secure the bank loans. The
sale of the lots to the Joint Venture resulted in a $212,445 profit to the Company. In June of 1999, the joint
venture commenced construction of homes on eight (8) of the lots and subsequently sold three (3} of the lots
and houses for an aggregate of $880,000, which resulted in a profit of $76,588. The Joint Venture paid
$38,294, which was the Chairman’s share of the profits, to the Company. The Company advanced $112,100 to
the Joint Venture in 1999 and $451,039 to the Joint Venture in 2000, for an aggregate of $563,139, to help
finance the construction of houses on five (5) of the lots. In 2001, the Joint Venture transferred to the Com-
pany the five (5) lots and houses and one (1) lot, subject 1o the mortgages thereon totaling approximately
$954,000. During the twelve month period ended December 31, 2006, the Company sold the remaining home
for$370.000. The Company had already accrued a reserve of $224,002 on the property. Net of the reserve, the
Company’s basis was equal to the sale price, and there was $21,910 in costs associated with the sale of the
property. There were no sales during 2007 and during the first nine months of 2008 there have been no sales.
Collett agreed to personally indemnify the Company for the over-all loss, if any, resulting from the above
described transaction,

On October 31, 2005 Freedom Financial {“Freedom’) purchased Florida Gaming Center’s (“Centers’)
First Bank {formerly CIB) loan for $2,400,000. First Bank assigned, without recourse, the note representing
the loan as well as the mortgages, rents, and receivables securing the loan to Freedom, but retained the right
to elect between receiving a $250,000 deferred fee or exercising warrants to purchase 102,115 shares of the
Registrant’s common stock in connection with the loan. First Bank exercised all warrants in 2006. Effective
October 31, 2005, Freedom and Centers entered into an Amended and Restated Loan Agreement and a Third
Amended and Restated Note in the principal amount of $2,400,000 with an 8% fixed rate of interest. On
October 31, 2008, the Centers note payable to Freedom matured and was subsequently refinanced with a
$1,322,574 note payable issued November 1, 2008 to Freedom Holding, Inc. (**Holding”), the parent com-
pany of Freedom. The Holding note is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 10%, with all principal
and interest due May 1, 2009. As an inducement to refinance the note, the Company issued Holding a warrant
to purchase 20,000 shares of the Company’s $0.20 par value common stock at a price per share of $8.25, The
warrant is exercisable at any time from November 1, 2008 through November 1, 2011.

Compliance With Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s directors and executive officers and persons
who beneficially own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities to file
with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common stock and other
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equity securities of the Company. Officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial shareholders are
required by SEC regulations to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. To the
best of the Company’s knowledge based solely on a review of Forms 3, 4, and 5 (and any amendments
thereof) received by the Company during or with respect to the year ended December 31, 2007, all Section 16
(a) filing requirements applicable to its officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were
satisfied.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information as of November 11, 2008 concerning each stockholder
known to the Company to own beneficially more than five percent of the outstanding Common Stock of the
Company and information regarding beneficial ownership of Common Stock, the Class B Common Stock of
Freedom, and the Common Stock of Holding by each director and executive officer, and all directors and
executive officers as a group. Holding may be deemed to be a “parent’ of the Company as such term is
defined in the rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Holding's sole business currenily
is 10 hold shares of Florida Gaming. On March i1, 2008 and on March 17, 2008, W. B. Collett, W. B. Collett,
Jr. and Freedom Financial Corporation transferred 1,041,000 options, 200 shares of Class E Preferred Stock,
1000 shares of Class F Preferred Stock, 886,157 shares of common stock, and 20,000 warrants to Freedom
Holding, Inc. (“Holding™). On March 14, 2008, Holding exercised 335,000 options at a price of $2.25. Effec-
tive April 1, 2008 the Company pays management fees of $65.000 per month to Freedom Financial
Corporation, for the services of W. B. Collett, Chairman and CEQ. At December 31, 2007, Freedom Financial
had a note payable to Mr. Collett for $4,380,311. At September 30, 2008, Freedom Financial had a note
payable to Mr. Collett for his services for $4,950,311.

The Company Freedom Holding
Directors and Number of Percent of Number of Percent of Number of Percent of
Executive Officers'" Shares® Class @ Shares @ Class @ Shares @ Class *®

W.B. Collett . . ....... 2,095,491 4527% 1,109,011¢ 100% 812.05 85.09%
W.B. Collett, Jr . . ... .. 1D Ox 87.95 9.21%
Daniel J. Licciardi. . . . . . 54,6254% 1.4%
Kimberly R. Tharp . .. .. 31,6254 1%
Jennifer Chong . . . . . ... 17,25018 <1%
GWGIR,INC. ... ..... 57,5009 1.5%
Roland M. Howell. . . . .. 472,709 12.8%
William Haddon . . . . . .. 43,7509% 1%

All current directors &
executive officers as a

group (7 person} ... .. 2,772,950'9 56.6% 1,109,011 100% 200.00 94.3%
5% Beneficial Number of Percent of Number of Percent of Number of Percent of
Owners Shares @ Class & Shares @ Class ® Shares ¥ Class
Freedom Holding,
Inc S L 2,095,491 45.27%
W. Russell Ramsey,
Ramsey Asset Mgmnt!'* 306,075 8.15%
Prides CaPital Partners,
LLCYS oL 227,500 5.7%
Roland M. & Dorothy V.
Howell™®® .. .. 472,709 12.1%

(1) Based upon information furnished to the Company by the named person, and information contained in
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC” or the ‘““‘Commission”). Under the rules of
the Commission, a person is deemed to beneficially own shares over which the person has or shares
voting or investment power or which the person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within
60 days. Unless otherwise indicated, the named persons have sole voting and investment power with
respect to shares shown by them.

(2) Based on 3,754,205 shares outstanding as of November 11, 2008. Shares of Common Stock of the Com-
pany subject to options exercisable or preferred stock convertible within 60 days are deemed outstanding
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for computing the percentage of class of the person holding such options or preferred stock, but are not
deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of class for any other person.

(3) On.March 11, 2008, W. Bennett Collett transferred his opticns to Freedom Holding, Inc. Of the
2,095,491 shares, it includes 1,221,157 shares owned by Holding, Inc, 706,000 options, and 148,334
shares of the Company’s Preferred F Stock. Holding also owns 20,000 warrants. Mr. Collett owns
85.09% of Freedom Holding. Mr. Collett may be deemed to beneficially own the shares held by Holding,
although he disclaims such beneficial ownership of such shares. Mr. Colleit can exert considerable influ-
ence over the election of the Company’s directors and the outcome of corporate actions requiring -
stockholder approval.

(4) Includes 1,109,011 shares owned by Holding. Mr. Collett may be deemed to beneficially own the shares
held by Holding, although he disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares.

(5} Inciudes 148,334 shares of common stock into which 1000 shares of the Company’s Series F Preferred
Stock owned jointly by Mr. and Mrs. Howell are convertible. Of the 472,709 shares, Mr. and Mrs. How-
ell own 135,000 shares as joint tenants and share voting and investment power, Mr, Howell owns
107,500 shares individually and retains sole voting and investment power with respect to these shares.
Mrs. Howell owns 72,500 shares individually and retains sole voting and investment power with respect
to these shares. In addition, the above figure (472,709} includes options granied to Mr. Howell to pur-
chase 9,375 shares of the Company’s common stock.

{6) Includes 296,669 shares which may be acquired upon conversion of 2,000 shares of the Company’s
Series F Preferred Stock. The Company’s Series E Preferred Stock is not included because it is not a
straight conversion. '

{7} See Note (3). The address of Freedom Financial Corporation and Freedom Holding, Inc. is 2669 Charles-
town Road, Suite D, New Albany, Indiana 47150, The business address of W. B. Collett is 1750 South
Kings Highway, Fort Pierce, Florida 34945-3099.

(8) Roland M. and Dorothy V. Howell’s address is Plaza Venetia, Suite 22 A-B, Miami, Florida 33132.

{9) On March 11, 2008 W. Bennett Collett, Ir transferred 198,000 options to Freedom Holding, Inc.

W. B. Collett, Jr, has 9.21% ownership in Freedom Holding, Inc.

(10) George W. Galloway, director, transferred his 57,500 options to GWGIR, INC on March 11, 2008. On
March 14, 2008, GWGIR, INC. exercised 30,000 options. GWGIR, INC has 27,500 remaining vested
options. .

{11) William C. Haddon has 43,750 vested options.

{12) Kimberly R. Tharp has 9,125 vested options and owns 22,500 shares individually.

{13) The address of Ramsey Asset Management, LLC is 8200 Greensboro Drive, Suite 1550, McLean,
VA 22102.
{14) Daniel Licciardi has 24,625 vested options and owns 30,000 shares individually.

{15) Prides Capital Partners, LLC owns 5,000 shares of Preferred AA stock that is convertible into 200,000
shares of common stock. Prides Capital also has 20,000 warrants. Prides Capital address is 200 High
Street, #700, Boston, MA (02110,

{16) Jennifer Chong has 7,250 vested options and owns 10,000 individually.

Independent Public Accountants

King & Company PSC, is the Company’s current Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and
has audited the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and comprehensive loss and cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. The board of directors selected King & Company PSC as
the Company’s independent auditors to examine the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008 and has asked the shareholders to confirm this appointment.

Representatives of King & Company PSC are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting of the Stock-
holders (or available by telephone), will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and
be available to respond to questions, as appropriate.
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FUTURE STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

It is anticipated that the release date for Florida Gaming Corporation’ proxy statement and form of proxy
for its next annual meeting of shareholders will be November 11, 2009. The deadline for submittals of share-
holder proposals to be included in that proxy statement and form of proxy is 120 days prior to that date. The
date after which a notice of a shareholder proposal submitted independent of Florida Gaming Corporation’
proxy statement and form of proxy is considered untimely is 45 days prior to November 11, 2009.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

The Company files with the SEC annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K and proxy and information statements and amendments to reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The public may
obtain information on the operation of the SEC public reference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
The SEC also maintains a website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements
and other information regarding the Company and other companies that file materials with the SEC electroni-
cally. The Company’s headquarters are located at 2669 Charlestown Road, Suite D, New Albany, IN 47150.
The Company’s phone number at that address is (502) 589-2000 and e-mail address is
floridagaming @bellsouth.net.

A copy of the Company’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2007, without exhibits, is
being delivered with this proxy statement. A copy of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008, can also be obtained without charge by writing to: Mrs. Kim Tharp, Chief
Financial Officer, Florida Gaming Corporation, 2669 Charlestown Road, Suite D, New Albany, Indiana
47150 or by calling (502) 589-2000.

By Order of the Board of Directors

/sf W. B. Collett

W. B. Collett
Chairman of the Board of Directors
November 18, 2008
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Exhibit A

FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee,

The Audit Committee is charged with oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process, the system
of the Company’s internal financial controls, and the audit process.

Organization of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shall consist of three directors of the Company to be elected annually by the Board
of Directors, each of whom shall be an independent director of the Company within the meaning of
Rule 4200(a)(15) of the National Association of Securities Dealers.

The Audit Committee shall elect one of its members to serve as Chairman of the Committee and one to
serve as Secretary of the Committee,

Meetings of the Audit Committee.

As many meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held as are needed to enable the Audit Committee to
fulfill its duties and responsibilities. Meetings may be called by the Chairman of the Committee or by any two
members of the Committee by giving oral or written notice of the meeting to all of the other members of the
Committee not less than two days prior to the meeting. A majority of the members of the Audit Committee
shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting business.

Meetings of the Audit Committee may be held in person or by telephonic communications which permit
each participating member of the Committee to communicate with ail of the other participating members of
the Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall preside at all meetings of the Audit Committee. If the
Chairman is absent, the other members of the Committee shall select one of them to serve as Chairman.

The Secretary of the Audit Committee shall keep written minutes of each meeting. The minutes shall be
signed by the Secretary and the Chairman and placed in the Company’s minute book. If the Secretary if
absent, the other members of the Committee shall select one of them to serve as Secretary of the Meeting.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee shall:

*+  Review the adequacy of the Company’s internal financial control structure.

*  Review the activities, organizational structure and qualifications of the Company’s internal audit
function.

¢+ Recommend appointment of the Company’s external auditors.

*  Receive the written disclosures and the letter from the Company’s external auditors required by
Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1.

*+  Review the Company’s external auditors’ fee arrangements.

¢ Review the Company’s external auditors’ proposed audit scope and approach.

¢  Discuss with the Company’s external auditors the matters required to be discussed by SAS 61.
*  Review the performance of the Company’s external auditors.

= Conduct a review of the Company’s financial statements, including Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, and audit findings, including significant suggestions for improvements to management by
the external auditors.

*  Review and discuss the Company’s audited financial statements with management.



J If satisfied with the audited financial statements, recommend to the Board of Directors their inclu-
sion in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.

*=  Review the Company’s interim financial reports.

*  Review with the Company’s counsel any legal matters that could have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

»  Review the findings of any examinations by regulatory agencies.

*  Review the Company’s policies and procedures in effect for the review of officers’ expenses and
perquisites. ’

+  If necessary, institute special investigations and, if appropriate, hire special counsel or experts to
assist.

«  Perform other oversight functions as requested by the full Board of Directors.

Reports Required by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shali regularly update the Board of Directors about the activities of the Audit
Committee.
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PART 1

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-KSB and the documents incorporated by reference in this Form 10-KSB may contain
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such statements are identified by words such as “antici-
pate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “predict,” “project,” and similar expressions. When we
make forward-looking statements, we are basing them on our management’s beliefs and assumptions, using
information currently available to us. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and
assumptions, including but not limited to, risks, uncertainties and assumptions related to the following:

LI

*  Changes in legislation;

. Federal and state regulations;

. General economic conditions;

»  Competitive factors and pricing pressures;

*  Dependence on the services of key personnel,

. Interest rates;

»  Risks associated with acquisitions;

*  Uncertainties associated with possible hurricanes; and

*  Uncertainties related to the State of Florida negotiations with the American Indian tribes who
operate casinos.

If one or more of these or other risks or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying assumptions prove
to be incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those anticipated. Any forward-looking statements you
read in this Form 10-KSB or the documents incorporated herein by reference reflect our current views with
respect to future events and are subject to these and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions relating to our
operations, resuits of operations, growth strategy and liquidity. You should specifically consider the factors
identified in this Form 10-KSB included under the caption “Risk Factors,” or in the documents incorporated
by reference in this Form 10-KSB which could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated
by the forward-looking statements. In light of the foregoing risks and uncertainties, you should not unduly
rely on such forward-looking statements when deciding whether to buy, sell or hold any of our securities. We
disclaim any intent or obligation to update or alter any of the forward-looking statements whether in response
to new information, unforeseen events, changed circumstances or otherwise.

LEI Y o

References to "we”, “us”, “our”, “the registrant”, "Florida Gaming” and “the Company" in this
annual report on Form 10KSB shall mean or refer to Florida Gaming Corporation, unless the context in
which those words are used would indicate a different meaning.

Item 1. Description of Business

() Business Development

Florida Gaming Corporation (“FGC” or the “Company™), was incorporated in the state of Delaware in
1976 as Lexicon Corporation (“Lexicon”). In 1993, Lexicon sold 699,480 shares of common stock to Free-
dom Financial Corporation (*‘Freedom’’) and a new board of directors was elected, and present management
assumed control of Lexicon. The acquisition of the Ft. Pierce Fronton (“Ft. Pierce”) was consummated in
February, 1994 following receipt of the approval from the Florida Department of Business Regulation on that
date. Following the purchase of Ft. Pierce the Company, changed its’ name to Florida Gaming Corporation on
March 17, 1994. On Janvary 1, 1997, the Company purchased the Jai-Alai Facilities at Ocala, Tampa, and
Miami, Florida The Company also entered into the real estate development business in 1997. The Company’s
stock is traded on the over-the-counter bulletin board under the stock symbol “FGMG™. The Company’s
principal place of business and executive offices are located at 3500 N.W. 37" Avenue, Miami, FL 33142.



On September 4, 1998, the Company sold the Tampa Jai-Alai property. The sale did not include the
Company’s gaming permit which remains available for future use in Hillsborough County, Florida. On
July 31, 2000, the Company sold the Ocala Jai-Alai.

In March, 2006, the Company sold approximately 79 acres of investment real estate located adjacent to
its’ Jai-Alai facility in Fert Pierce, Florida. The sale proceeds were $3,800,000 plus $150,000 in extension
fees. The sale proceeds were paid in cash. Expenses related to the sale totaled $223,481, leaving a net amount
received after expenses of $3,726,519. The company recerded a net gain on the transaction of $2,638,888 or
($0.83) per common share.

(b) Business of Issuer

Overview

The Company currently owns and operates two jai-alai frontons and inter-track pari-mutuel wagering
facilities (each, a “Fronton”, and collectively, the “Frontons™) located in South and Central Florida. The
Company also owns an inactive Jai-Alai pari-mutuel permit for Hillsborough County (Tampa), Florida. The
Company’s business at this time consists primarily of its operations at the Frontons, which include, live
Jai-alai performances, inter-track pari-mutuel wagering (“ITW™) on jai-alai, horse racing (both thoroughbred
and harness) and dog racing, and the sale of food and alcoholic beverages. The Fort Pierce location provides
inter-track wagering on interstate simulcasting of horse racing, dog racing, and jai-alai from various tracks and
frontons in the United States and within the State of Florida. Jai-Alai games are played live and simulcast
year round from the Miami facility via satellite to a total of sixty two (62) pari-mutuel wagering locations in
Florida, Connecticut, Rhode Island, as well as locations in Mexico, Central America, and Austria. Poker and
dominces are played at the Miami Jai-Alai Crystal Card Room. FL. Pierce anticipates opening a card room in
April, 2008.

The term *‘pari-mutuel wagering’ refers to the betting by members of the public against each other, and
as used in this report, and includes wagering on both live performances and inter-track pari-mutuel wagering.

In November 1997, the Company entered into the real estate development business. The Company has
since sold all developed real estate except six residential (6) lots. The Company has completed its develop-
ment activities and future expenses related to these properties will be expensed as incurred.

Acguisition of Fronions: On September 12, 1996, the Company acquired from the Bank of Oklahoma,
N.A., Tulsa, Oklahoma secured notes of World Jai-Alai (the “WJA Notes™) with balances aggregating about
$20,000,000. The WJA Notes were secured by real estate and improvements consisting of three jai-alai and
ITW facilities located at Miami, Tampa and Ocala, Florida (the “WIA Frontons”). Consideration for the WJA
Notes was a combination of $2,000,000 in cash, a $6,000,000 promissory note bearing interest at the prime
rate, a $1,000,000 non-interest bearing promissory note, and 703,297 shares of the Company’s Common
Stock.

On November 25, 1996, the Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Florida Gaming Centers, Inc.
(“Centers™) entered into an agreement with WJA pursuant to which Centers agreed to acquire title to the three
(3) WJA Frontons. The acquisition was consummated as of January 1, 1997. The Fort Pierce Fronton which
had been purchased previously from WIJA was also transferred into Centers.

The consideration for the acquisition of the three WJA frontons included (i) the cancellation of WJA
Notes and refated obligations acquired by the Company from the Bank of Oklahoma, NA, (ii} the retention by
WIA of 200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock received by WJA in the sale of the Ft. Pierce facil-
ity, and (iii) a profit sharing arrangement described below. The Company assumed all liabilities of WJA
arising in the ordinary course of the business, subject to certain limitations and exceptions. The Company also
assumed the principal amount outstanding under a $500,000 promissory note owed by WJA to an affiliate
Wheeler-Phoenix, Inc. The terms of the note were amended to provide for repayment of principal over a ten
year period, following the closing, in equal annual installments of $50,000 plus interest at 6% per annum.




The profit sharing arrangement with WJA was based on Centers’ net profits, before income taxes, as
defined. The Company agreed to pay WIA 20% of the cumulative net profits of Centers for each of the ten
full calendar years 1997 through 2006, subject to a cumulative $1,000,000 per- year cap described below. The
curnulative $1,000,000 cap was to be equal to the product of $1,000,000 multiplied by the completed number
of years in the ten-year period, minus the sum of all amounts previously paid under the 20% profit sharing
arrangement. In addition, if Centers has net profits in any calendar year during the ten-year period in excess of
$5,000,000, but had not paid WIA a 20% payment on the entire amount because of the cumulative $1,000,000
per year cap, Centers was to pay WJIA 5% of the portion of the net profits on which the 20% payment was
not made. No net profit payments were to be due for any year after the ten-year period. If, during the ten-year
period, Centers had disposed of any of its significant assets or operations, except for the Ft. Pierce assets or
operations, then WJA would have been entitled to receive an amount equal to 10% of Centers gain, if any,
(net of related carrying costs), on the disposition. This agreement expired January 1, 2007.

During late 2001, the Company and Donovan, the former manager of WHA, negotiated a new agreement
providing consulting and non competition payments of $25,000 in December 2001, $216,000 on January 14,
2002, and $1,000 per month for 60 months through December, 2007. All scheduled payments have been
made.

Summer Jai Alai; Florida Gaming Centers, Inc. (“Centers™”} held a 21% interest in Summer Jai-Alai
(“SJA’), a Florida general partnership formed in 1980 with three other pari-mutuel permit holders for the
purpose of conducting pari-mutuel jai-alai operations at the Miami Jai-Alai Fronton The Company’s Summer
partners were Hollywood Greyhound, Flagler Greyhound and Biscayne Kennel Club or their successors,
Under the terms of the partnership agreement certain costs and expenses were allocated to Summer Jai-Alai
Operations based upon specific formulas as set forth in the agreement. Pursuant to a lease agreement which
expired in 2004, Summer Jai-Alai Operations rented the Miami fronton for the time in which its season was
conducted. The rental was based upon 1% of handle.

Pursuant to the settlement of certain partnership disputes, since the 1998 season, the Company maintained
the right to operate SJA at its own risk and for its own benefit under annual agreements which required fixed
payments to each of the Summer partners. The agreement authorizing the Company’s use of the permit
between June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2004 required a fee of $345,000 payable monthly in 12 equal install-
ments. The Company agreed to hold its Summer partners harmless for any and all losses or liabilities incurred
through June 30, 2004. After June 30, 2004, the permit agreement terminated and the previous partnership
agreement became the controlling document for the operation of SJA by the parties. The Company paid the
three unaffiliated Summer Jai-Alai partners $306,667, all of which was previously accrued, in complete settle-
ment of amounts due those partners under agreements resolving certain partnership disputes through June 30,
2004. The partnership’s lease for the purpose of conducting Jai-Alai operations at the Miami fronton and all
related agreements terminated on October 31, 2004,

In December, 2007, a settlement was reached between the Company and its partners. The Company
forgave its $255,509 receivable from the Partnership and its $98,608 receivable from its partners. The settle-
ment stated that going forward the Partnership would be owned as follows:

Partnership Ownership

Florida Gaming . . ... ... . . e e 21%
West Flagler Associates, LTD . . . . ... .. ... . . 52%
BEKCLP 2 LT . . . .. e e e _zz%

100%

The Partnership owns the Permit under a Permit Use Agreement (the “PUA”)} between the Company and
the Partnership. The Company has the exclusive right to conduct gaming operations under the Permit. The
Company will derive all revenue, and is responsible for afl expenses. In addition, the Company must assure
that the holder of the Permit remains authorized to conduct all activities that Florida law authorizes under the
Permit, based on the law as in effect at any particular time. The Company may terminate the PUA if the
requirement to keep it valid imposes a material burden on the Company. West Flagler and BKCLP may termi-
nate the PUA if they jointly elect to do so. If the PUA is terminated (and, thus the Permit’s use reverts to the




Partnership) the Partnership does not have the right to conduct activities at the Company's fronton. The Com-
pany, West Flagler and BKCLP entered into an Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement for the Summer
Jai Alai Partnership and except for the following put/call rights, all actions of the Partnership require unani-
mous approval of the three Partners. The Partnership contains mandatory put/call rights which take effect if
(1) the PUA is terminated by the Company, (2) the PUA is terminated by West Flagler and BKCLP, or (3) any
two partners deliver to the third partner a notice of election to trigger the put/call. Under the put/call rights,
the party(ies) triggering the put/call must offer to sell to the other partner(s) its interest at a stated price. The
other partners may either buy the interest at that price, or sell their interests to the triggering partner at that
price. Each partner must give the other partners 45 days advance notice of a “Change of Control” — which is
a change of ownership of more than 40% of the partner’s equity and, in the case of the Company, a sale by
its Chairman and his affiliates of more than 50% of their stock in the Company.

In accordance with the settlement, all revenues and expenses of the Summer Jai-Alai Operations are
included in operating income and expenses in the accompanying statements of operations. See Item 3. Legal
Praceedings for further details regarding this lawsuil.

Development of Cardrooms and Development

A new Florida pari-mutuel statute was enacted July 1, 2007 allowing card rooms at licensed pari-mutuel
facilities to add the game of dominoes, increase the maximum wager on poker, and permit year round opera-
tion of card rooms. Card rooms are regulated by the Florida Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering (“DPMW)”.
Permitted games are limited to non-banked poker games and dominoes. On June 5, 2007, the St. Lucie
County commission approved a card room at the Company’s Ft. Pierce Jai-Alai facility. The Company antici-
pates the Ft. Pierce card room will open in April, 2008.

The Company currently operates a card room with dominoes at the Miami Jai-Alai facility. There have
been some positive changes in the new legislation:

(1) Card rooms may operate on any day for a cumulative amount of 12 hours;
{2) ‘“Authorized games’’ means a game or series of games of poker or dominoes;

(3) “Tournament” means a series of games that have more than one betting round involving one or
more tables and where the winners or others receive a prize or cash award;

(4) Card room operators may award giveaways, jackpots, and prizes to a player who holds certain
' combinations of cards specified by the card room operator;

(5) Card rooms maximum bet may not exceed $5 in value. There may not be more than three raises in
any round of betting;

(6) Card rooms may conduct games of Texas Hold-Em'’s with a betting limit if the required player
buy-in is not more than $100.

Florida state taxes are 10% of revenue and 4% of the revenues are paid to the jai-alai players. The Com-
pany is encouraged with the recent changes to the card room rules and the addition of dominoes and believes
these changes should improve the overall profitability of the card room operations.

Clean Indoor Air Act

Effective July L, 2003, an amendment to the Clean Indoor Air Act made all of Florida’s enclosed indoor
workplaces smoke-free, with certain exceptions. The jai-alai facilities became smoke free on July 1, 2003. The
Company has provided a smoking area to accommodate the smoking patrons.

Simulcasting

The Company generates a portion of their revenue by transmitting signals from the jai-alai’s to other
(**guest”) facilities and receiving signals from other (“host”) facilities. Revenues are earned through pari-
mutuel wagers on signals that the Company receives and sends as host and guest. The Fort Pierce location
provides inter-track wagering on interstate simulcasting of horse racing, dog racing, and jai-alai from various
tracks and frontons in the United States and within the State of Florida. Jai-Alai games are played live and
simulcast year round from the Miami facility via satellite,




Distribution Methods

The company uses radio, including live remote broadcasts, television, newspapers and magazines to
promote activities at the jai-alai locations.

Competition

The gaming industry is highly competitive. Many gaming companies have substantially greater financial
resources and larger management staffs than the Company. Because of the growing popularity and profitability
of gaming activities, competition is significantly increasing, The Company competes for customers with other
forms of legal wagering, including video poker gaming in non-casino facilities, charitable gaming, pari-mutuel
wagering, state lotteries, Indian casinos, and cruise ships to nowhere.

Further expansion of gaming opportunities not related to the pari-mutuel industry could also significantly
and adversely affect the Company’s business. In particular, the expansion of casino gaming in or near the
geographic areas from which the Company attracts or expects to attract a significant number of its customers
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business. The Company expects that it will experience
significant competition as the emerging casino industry matures.

There has been a general decline in the number of people attending and wagering on jai-alai due to a
number of factors, including Indian casinos, cruise ships to nowhere and the Florida state lottery. Any decline
in the interest in jai-alai or any change may adversely impact revenues and, therefore, results of operations.
Declining jai-alai attendance and increasing compelition in simulcasting may have a material, adverse impact
on our results of operations.

The Company also competes for patrons with other sports, entertainment and gaming operations, includ-
ing land-based, cruise ships and Native American casinos and state lotteries.

The Company also faces competition from gaming companies that operate on-line and Internet-based
gaming services. These services allow patrons to wager from home on a wide variety of sporting events.
Unlike most on-line and Internet-based gaming, companies, the Company may require significant and ongoing
capital expenditures for both its continued operation and expansion. The Company also could face increased
costs in operating business compared to these gaming companies. The Company cannot offer the same number
of gaming options as on-line and Internet-based gaming companies. In addition, many on-line and Internet
gaming companies are based off-shore and avoid regulation under state and federal laws. These companies
may divert wagering dollars from legitimate wagering venues. Competition in the gaming industry is likely to
increase due to limited opportunities for growth in new markets, The Company’s inability to compete success-
fully with these competitors could have a material, adverse affect on its business.

Dependence on One or a Few Major Customers

The company depends on Autotote Systems, Inc. (**Autotote™) a leading supplier of pari-mutuel wagering
systems. Autotote provides the computer systems that accumulate wagers, record sales, calculate payoffs and
display wagering data in a secure manner. The Company relies on the totalizator’s computer systems to ensure
the integrity of our wagering process. If Autotote did not keep their technology up to date, this could effect
the security of wagering, and limit our ability to serve our customers.

Licenses

Each Fronton must obtain an initia! pari-mutue! permit and an annually renewable pari-mutuel license
specifying the number of performances authorized at the Fronton during the year with respect to which such
license is issued. A permit for any new pari-mutuel must either be enacted by the Legislature, or be ratified by
the electorate of the county in which it is to be located. Currently only two counties, Levy and Polk, will
allow, under state law, ratification of a pari-mutuel permit. Pari-mutuel permits and licenses may be revoked
or suspended by the DPMW for, in the case of licenses, willful violations of laws, rules or regulations or, as
to permits, by a vote of the county electorate. Any amendment or repeal of the Pari-Mutuel Laws or suspen-
sion or revocation of the Company’s permits or licenses, could be materially adverse to its business.

Qccupational and Totalizator License Requirements. The DPMW requires that persons “connected
with” pari-mutuels have one of two forms of occupational licenses.




One form of occupational license is the “onrestricted license™ issued to persons with access to restricted
areas such as the backside, racing animals, jai-alai player rooms, the mutuels, or money room, or to persons,
who by virtue of the position they hold, might be granted access to such areas. Any person obtaining an
unrestricted license must undergo a Federal Bureau of Investigation and Florida Department of Law Enforce-
ment criminal records check as well as submit fingerprints with their application for a license, The category of
persons qualifying for unrestricted licenses includes, but is not limited to, trainers, officials, doctors, jai-alai
players, owners, members of management, officers, directors, stockholders who own 5% or greater equity
interest, and other professional employees.

Another form of occupational license is the “restricted license™ issued to persons who are denied access
to restricted areas. Applicants for a restricted license do not usually have to undergo a criminal background
check nor submit fingerprints with their application, although the DPMW may require such if it deems
necessary.

The DPMW also requires all totalizator operators, including the Company’s vendor, Autotote Systems,
Inc., to possess an annual totalizator license. Among the various requirements imposed by the DPMW, the
totalizator operator is required to agree in writing to pay the DPMW an amount equal to any loss of state
revenue from.missed or canceled performances due to acts of the totalizator owner, operator, agents, or
employees, and for any failure of the totalizator system, unless such acts are beyond the control of the above-
listed persons. Every licensed totalizator operator must post a performance bond issued by a surety approved
by the DPMW in the amount of $250,000 insuring the state apainst such revenue loss.

Businesses, such as vendors and contractual concessionaires, must also obtain an occupational license
from the DPMW. Minors may be employed by a pari-mutuel facility as long as their employment is not
directly involved with alcoholic beverages or wagering.

Daily License Fee. During the 2006 — 2007 live jai-alai season, a Daily License Fee of $40 was
assessed for each jai-alai game conducted at each of the Company’s Frontons. The Daily License Fee regula-
tions amendments provide, however, that should an amendment to the Florida Constitution be adopted that
would permit casino gambling at pari-mutuels Such as the Frontons, the fee would return to $80 per jai-alai
game; no such amendment has been passed. Such fee is paid to the DPMW to defray regulatory costs,

Government Regulations

Gaming ventures are regulated by federal and state laws and regulations applicable to the gaming indus-
try generally and to the distribution of gaming equipment. The following description of the regulatory
environment in which the Company operates is intended to be a summary and is not intended to be a com-
plete recitation of all applicable law. Moreover, because the regulatory environment is dynamic and evolving,
it is impossible to predict how certain provisions will ultimately be interpreted or how they may affect the
Company. Changes in such laws or regulations could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s ability
to finance, develop and operate.

The Company may need to secure regulatory approvals from state and local authorities for each of its
prospective gaming ventures from time to time. No assurance can be given that any of these approvals will be
secured in a timely fashion, or at all.

Florida Legislative Changes

On August 8, 2006, the District Court of Appeals, First District, State of Florida rendered a decision in
the case of Floridians Against Expanded Gambling (“FAEG"), et. al versus Floridians for a Level Playing
Field, et. al. FAEG challenged the process by which signatures were collected in order to place a constitu-
tional amendment on the ballot in 2004 allowing Miami-Dade and Broward County voters (o approve slot
machines in pari-mutuel facilities. The District Court of Appeals reversed a decision of the Florida trial court,
which granted summary judgment and dismissed the challenge, and remanded the case back to the trial court
for an evidentiary hearing to determine whether sufficient signatures were collected in the petition process. A
motion for rehearing by the entire Court of Appeals or in the alternative a motion for certification to the
Florida Supreme Court was filed. The case was re-heard by the entire Court of Appeals and the panel’s deci-
sion was upheld. However, after oral arguments were made on September 17, 2007, the District Court of




Appeals issued an opinion on September 27, 2007, which held the case was not properly put before the Dis-
trict Court of Appeals, and therefore upheld the lower court’s decision to remand the case back to the trial
court for an evidentiary hearing to determine whether sufficient signatures were collected in the petition
process. The case has not yet been scheduted for trial,

On June 5, 2007 Florida Gaming received approval from the St. Lucie County Board of Commissioners
to operate a card room at its” Ft. Pierce Jai-Alai facility. The Company is currently in the process of convert-
ing approximately 10,000 square feet for the card room which will host poker games and tournaments with
the maximum bet of $5.00, and no pot limit. The Company anticipates opening the card room in April 2008.
This will give local patrons an alternative to traveling fifty (50) miles to Palm Beach and Brevard Counties in
order to play poker,

On July 1, 2007 Legislation was passed by Senate Bills 134 and 135, allowing year-round operation of
poker rooms, adding dominoes to card rooms, and raising the maximum wager on poker from $2 to $5.
Legislation also passed permitted an additional 500 slot machines up from the current 1,500 machines in Dade
and Broward, and permitting ATM machines at the facilities, and extending the hours of operation from 16 hrs
to 18 hrs on weekdays, and allowing 24 hours a day on the weekends. On January 29, 2008 slot machines
were approved at the Miami Jai-Alai facility and these new rules will apply to Miami Jai-Alai.

In November, 2004 voters in the state of Florida approved an amendment to the Constitution of the State
of Florida to allow Broward and Dade Counties in Florida the local option to hold elections to approve Class
M slot machine gaming at pari-mutuel betting facilities within Dade and Broward county. The Company’s
Miami fronton is located in Dade County. In March, 2005 local option elections were held in Broward and
Dade Counties. The local referendum to approve slots passed in Broward County and failed in Dade County.
State Law prohibited another local option referendum in Dade County for two years. On January 29, 2008,
Miami-Dade County voters approved, in a local referendum, the operation of up to 2000 Class 1IT Las Vegas
style slot machines at Miami Jai-Alai, a pari-mutuel wagering facility owned by Florida Gaming.

Florida Law and Regulation

Overview, Pari-mutuel wagering in Florida must be conducted in compliance with the applicable Florida
statutes and regulations of the DPMW. In the 1992 Special Session, the Florida Legislature enacted several
new statutes governing pari-mutuel activities in the State of Florida and repealed many laws enacted before
the 1992 Special Session regarding pari-mutuels in Florida. Certain provisions of the new pari-mutuel statute,
which governs all pari-mutuel activities relating to horse racing, dog racing, and jai-alai, were amended in the
1994 Regular Session, The amendments from the 1994 Regular Session became effective July 1, 1994. In
1996, the legislature enacted statutes permitting interstate simulcasts and temporarily reduced the tax on
jai-alai performances as discussed below. The new pari-mutuel statutes, as amended, are referred to herein as
the **Pari-Mutuel Law.”

The Role of the DPMW., The DPMW, in its administration of the Pari-Mutuel Law, is authorized to
adopt reasonable rules for the control, supervision, and direction of all applicants, permittees, and licensees
and for holding, conducting, and operating of all pari-mutuel activities in Florida. In addition to its taxation
powers already described above, the DPMW’s powers include, but are not limited to (1) testing occupational
license holders officiating at or participating in any race or game at any pari-mutuel facility for a controlled
substance or alcohol, and (2) excluding *“certain persons” from any pari-mutuel facility in Florida, including
but not limited to persons who have previously engaged in conduct that violates certain Florida laws or regu-
lations. Certain forms of conduct are expressly prohibited at pari-mutuels and include but are not limited to,
(1) conniving to prearrange the outcome of a game, (2) use of alcoho! or a controlled substance by an official
or participant in a jai-alai performance, and (3) bookmaking. Failure to comply with the requirements of the
Pari-Mutuel Law can result in a fine imposed by the DPMW of up to $1,000 per offense, as well as a suspen-
sion or revocation of a pari-mutuel permit, pari-mutuel license, or an occupational license.

Limit on Share Accumulations. Florida law requires that before any person or Company is permitted to
obtain a 5% or greater equity interest in a pari-mutuel operator and exercises control with respect to those
shares, such person or company must receive the approval of the DPMW. Such person or company must
submit to a background investigation equivalent to that required of permit-holders to determine that such
person or company has the requisite qualifications for holding a permit. Consistent with Florida law, the




Company cannot issue shares of Common Stock to a person or company who would thereby have obtained a
5% or greater equity interest, whether in a single transaction or series of integrated transactions, untii the
purchaser has received the approval of the DPMW.

Reguired Number of Live Jai-Alai Performances. In order to qualify to offer ITW, a fronton must offer
a “full schedule™ of live races per year. A “full schedule” of jai-alai means the operation of at least 40 live
evening or matinee performances during a year. In this context, & live performance must consist of no fewer
than 8 games conducted live for each of a minimum of three performances per week at the permit-holder’s
facility under a single admission charge. The Company anticipates it will offer at least 40 live evening or
matinee performances on an annual basis at its Miami Jai-Alai and Ft. Pierce Jai-Alai.

Taxation. The pari-mutuel tax structure applicable to frontons operating in Florida provides for distribu-
tion of taxes, on a daily basis, based on the Handle. As discussed below, the pari-mutue! tax structure changed
effective July 1, 1994, as a result of amendments adopted by the Florida Legislature in the 1994 Regular
Session. The various taxes applicable to the Fronton are as follows:

(1) Tax on Handle: Effective July 1, 1994, the tax rate established by the State of Florida was
amended to a rate of 5% on handle in excess of $30,000 per day where the live handle for such
jai-alai fronton has been less than $15 million during the preceding state fiscal year. Effective July 1,
1996, for the two-year period ending June 30, 1998, the pari-mutuel tax rate was reduced from 5%
10 4.25% at the Ft, Pierce Fronton and from 5% to 3.85% at the Miami Fronton. As a result of
legislation enacted July 1, 2000, Miami Jai-Alai’s tax rate on live handle decreased from 3.85% to
2%. However, the Pari-Mutuel Law also provides that, should casino gaming be conducied at a
jai-alai fronton (i.e., assuming an amendment to the Florida Constitution is adopted), the tax rate
will return to 7.1% as it was under the pre-amended statute. When a fronton has paid a total of
admissions tax, daily license fee and tax on handle for live performances in excess of the tax rev-
enues from wagering on live jai-alai performances paid by the fronton in fiscal year 1991 - 1992,
the tax on Handle for live jai-alai wagering drops to 2.55% with no exception.

Jai-Alai Tax Legislation. Major tax legislation which limits the amount of state handle and admis-
sion taxes went into effect July 1, 1998. The new law, (Section 2, Subsection (1b) of section

550.09511, Florida Statutes) states, in part, that “*Any jai-alai permit holder that incurred state taxes
on handle and admissions in an amount that exceeds its operating earnings in a fiscal year that ends
during or after the 1997 — 1998 state fiscal year, is entitled to credit the excess amount of the taxes
against state pari-mutuel taxes due and payable after June 30, 1998, during its next ensuing meets.”

In 1997, Miami Jai-Alai (Miami) and Tampa Jai-Alai incurred and had available 1998 pari-mutuel
tax credits of $1,606,051 and $935,521, respectively. During 1998, Miami utilized tax credits of
$509,714 over two eligible months of operation, Tampa Jai-Alai which discontinued live operations
following its July 4, 1998 performances, utilized pari-mutuel tax credits of $13,940.

For the years 2001 through 2007, Miami had unused credits totaling $2,352,201.

{2) Breaks Tax: lai-alai permit-holders must pay a tax equal to the “breaks.” The ‘‘breaks™ are that
portion of each pari-mutuel pool, computed by rounding down to the nearest multiple of $.10, which
is not redistributed to the contributors or withheld by the permit-holder as takeout (commission).
Breaks tax amounts may be retained, however, by the jai-alai permit-holder for special prize awards.

(3) Admission Tax: In addition to a sales tax of 6%, the Frontons must pay an admission tax equal to
15% of the entrance fee or 10 cents, whichever is greater, for any person attending a jai-alai game.

(4) Daily License Fee: Effective July 1, 1994, the daily license fee of $80 per game paid by jai-alai
frontons was reduced to $40 per game. The amendments adopted in the 1994 Regular Session
provide, however, that should an amendment to the Florida Constitution be adopted that would
permit casino gaming at pari-mutuels such as the Frontons, the fee would return to $80 per jai-alai
game; no such amendment has been passed.




(5) Jai-Alai Tournament of Champions: The amendments adopted in the 1994 Regular Session create a
special jai-alai meet called the *Jai-Alai Tournament of Champions Meet” (the “Tournament’’). The
Tournament, which may be held only once a year and for no longer than four performances over
four days, permits permit-holders selected to participate in the Tournament to do so even though
they would not otherwise be authorized to conduct a meet at such time. In addition, the participants
do not have to pay any taxes on Handle for performances during the Tournament and may apply any
credit they receive, up to $150,000 aggregated between all participants, to supplement awards for the
performance conducted during the Tournament as well as to taxes otherwise due and payable by
them to the State of Florida.

Research & Development

The Company has had no charges for research and development.

Costs to Be Compliant with Environmental Laws

It is not anticipated that the Company will have any environmental costs as a result of non-compliance
with environmental laws at any of our properties.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, the company had approximately 53 jai-alai players under contract, The Com-
pany believes that its present employee relations with its jai-alai players, some of whom belong to the
International Jai-Alai Players Association/U.A.W., and the Company’s relations with other employees are
satisfactory.

The Company has approximately 195 part-time employees and 70 full-time employees.

Item 1A. Risks Related to the Company

In addition to risks and uncertainties in the ordinary course of business that are common to all busi-
nesses, important factors that are specific to our industry and company could materially impact our future
performance and results. The factors described below are the most significant risks that could materially
impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. Additional risks and uncertainties that are
not presently known to management, that are currently deemed immaterial or that are similar to those faced
by other companies in the gaming industry or business in general may also impair the Company’s business
and operations. Should any risks or uncertainties develop into actual events, these developments could have a
material, adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Potential Changes in Legislation and Regulation of Operations. Gaming operations exist at the discre-
tion of the state of Florida. Certain aspects of the gaming operations are also subject to federal statutes or
regulations. All pari-mutuel wagering operations are contingent upon continued governmental approval of
those operations as forms of legalized gaming. Legislation to limit or prohibit gaming (pari-mutuel or non-
pari-mutuel) may be introduced in the future. Any restriction on or prohibition of gaming operations could
have a material, adverse impact on the results of operations. In addition, the approval process for any expan-
sion of gaming operations into alternative gaming, such as video lottery terminals can be time-consuming and
costly, and there is no assurance of success. The Company will continue to seek legal authority to offer alter-
native gaming at our frontons where alternative gaming is not currently permitted.

The passage of legislation permitting alternative gaming at the frontons can be a long and uncertain
process. As a result, there can be no assurance that (1) jurisdictions in which the Company owns or operates
frontons will pass legislation permitting alternative gaming, (2) if jurisdictions pass such legislation, it will be
permitted at the frontons, and (3) if alternative gaming is permitted at the Company owned frontons, it will be
on economically viable terms. If alternative gaming legislation is enacted in the areas where a Company-
owned front is located, the Company plans to conduct alternative gaming. There may be significant costs and
there may be other significant risks.



Inclement Weather and Other Conditions. In Seplember 2004, the Ft. Pierce fronton was struck by two
hurricanes and the fronton could not open for the live jai-alai season in 2003. On October 24, 2005 a hurri-
cane caused disruption to operations at the Miami Jai-Alai and the Miami fronton was closed for 18 days
during 2005. Any severe weather conditions that could lead to the loss of use of Company facilities for an
extended period could have a material, adverse impact on our results of operations.

Dependence on Key Personnel. The success of the Company is dependent, in part, on its executive
officers. The loss of any of their services could have a material adverse effect on the Company. There is no
assurance that the Company will be able to hire qualified individuals to replace these persons if necessary. The
Company does not have any employment contracts with its’ executives, nor does the Company have any key
man life insurance policies on their lives.

Jai-Alai Players. The Company strives to continue to draw the best jai-alai players from around the
world. The Company has written agreements with our players. The failure to maintain agreements with the
players or if the players should strike, this could negatively impact the results of operations.

Risks Associated with Acquisitions. There may be liabilities which the Company fails or is unable to
discover in the course of performing due diligence investigations on any company or business it seeks to
acquire or has acquired, including liabilities arising from non-compliance with certain federal, state or local
laws by prior owners, and for which the Company, as a successor owner, may be responsible. The Company
will seek to minimize its exposure to such liabilities by obtaining indemnification from former owners, which
may be supported by deferring payment of a portion of the purchase price. However, there is no assurance
that such indemnification’s, even if obtainable, enforceable and collectible {as to which there also is no assur-
ance), will be sufficient in amount, scope or duration to fully offset the possible liabilities anising from the
acquisitions. The success of the Company in the gaming industry is dependent on a number of factors includ-
ing, but not limited to, economic conditions, competitive environment, adequate capital, accurate site selection,
construction schedules, and the availability of trained personnel. There can be no assurance that the Company
will be successful in the pari-mutuel and gaming industry or in any related industries which it enters.

Other Risks. Many other risks beyond the control could seriously disrupt operations, including:
*»  The effect of global economic conditions;

*  The effect (including possible increases in the cost of doing business) resulting from future war and
terrorist activities or political uncertainties;

*  The economic environment;
»  The financial performance of the jai-alai operations;

= Costs associated with the efforts in support of alternative gaming initiatives.

Item 2. Description of Property

Set forth below is a brief description of the Frontons:

Size of
Number of Building Number of
Location Acres Sq. Ft. Gaming Seats
Fr.Pierce . ....... ... .. . . ... ... 55.00 80,000 2,150
Miami ..................... e 8.99 185,000 4,389
Totals . ...... ... . 63.99 265,000 6,539

The Company’s Miami fronton, near Miami International Airport, was built in 1926 and most recently
remodeled in 1982. In addition to its jai-alai auditorium, the fronton has a restaurant overlooking the jai-alai
court, a banguet room, four lelevision lounges and a 12,000 square foot low-stakes card room that can accom-
modate 80 poker tables, Parking facilities at the Miami fronton (including on-street parking) accommodate
about 2,000 cars.




Fort Pierce is a coastal community in St. Lucie County, Florida approximately 110 miles north of Miami.
The Fort Pierce fronton, completed in 1974, is located approximately one mile from an exit on the Florida
Turnpike, two miles from an exit on Interstate Highway 95 and five miles west of U.S. Highway 1. The
Florida Turnpike is the primary route between South Florida and Orlando. The Fort Pierce fronton is situated
on a fifty acre site and its parking facilities accommodate approximately 2,000 cars.

Both of the Company’s frontons have pari-mutuel windows, liquor bars and concession stands.

The Company has a mortgage with Freedom Financial Corporation, dated October 31, 2005, secured by
the two frontons payable with thirty six installments of $18,523.59 per month until October 31, 2008 when all
outstanding principal plus interest in due. At December 31, 2007, the Company owed Freedom $1,416,172 on
this mortgage.

In November, 1997, the Company entered into a new business — residential real estate development.
These Properties consisted of over 100 fully-developed, and 163 partially-developed, single-family residential
home sites, a swim and tennis club facility, and 27 acres of partially-developed commercial property. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company has six (6) residential lots remaining to be sold with a mortgage of $43,027
on one of the lots. The six (6) lots have a book value of $297,500. The Properties are located on the east side
of Georgia Highway 81, approximately one (1) mile south of U.S. Highway 78, inside the Loganville, Georgia
city limits, in Walton County.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

State of Florida

By letters dated June 30, 2000 and September 8, 2000 the State of Florida took a contradictory position
to the Company’s interpretation for the determination of the ITW tax rate on handle and asserted a tax liabil-
ity of $170,172 as of April 30, 2000. Further, the State’s computation included only credits approved through
1998. Based on the Company’s interpretation, as of April 30, 2000, the Company would have utilized only
$2,293,373 of the $2,936,915 available for recovery from taxes incurred in 1997 and 1998. On October 6,
2000 and in response to a letter from the Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering of the State of Florida, the Com-
pany filed suit for declaratory relief against the Division/State of Florida contesting the Division’s
interpretation of the statute. In response to the Company’s action, the Division/State of Flerida filed a motion
to dismiss and requested that Florida Gaming Corporation post bond.

The court did not grant the motion to dismiss and did not require the Company to post bond requested by
the Division/State of Florida. As of December 31, 2005, the suit concluded due to expiration of the statute of
limitations. However, the Company received letters dated July 14, 2006 and October 20, 2006 from the
Division/State of Florida which reflected a computation of tax credits for Miami and Summer Jai-Alai that
agreed with the Company’s records. The Company believes it will prevail should litigation be required to
resolve this issue.

Summer Jai-Alai

A subsidiary of Florida Gaming Corporation (the “Corporation™), Florida Gaming Centers, Inc.
(“FGC”), was named a defendant in an action entitled Hartman & Tyner, Inc., West Flagler Associates, Ltd.,
BKCLP 2, Ltd. and Summer Jai-Alai Partnership v. Florida Gaming Centers, Inc. Case No. 05-008302, filed
on June 1, 2005 in the Circuit court of the 17* Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida. Plaintiffs
alleged breach of contract, breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment arising out of their relationship with
FGC in connection with the Summer Jai-Alai Partnership, a Florida partnership through which the plaintiffs
and FGC have historically operated jai alai and intertrack wagering programs at FGC’s Miami fronton from
May | through October 31, each year. Plaintiffs complained, among other things, that FGC breached related
agreements between the plaintiffs and FGC and that FGC sold land in violation of the agreements governing
the Summer Jai-Alai Partnership.

Certain claims against FGC were settled and dismissed on July 26, 2006. As part of that settlement, FGC
agreed to pay the Plaintiffs approximately $306,667, all of which had been previously accrued in the compa-
ny’s financial statements, in complete settlement of amounts due those partners under agreements resolving
certain partnership disputes through June 30, 2004, and in partial settlement of ongoing legal disputes, in
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order to focus the litigation on affirmation of the company’s position that the Summer Jai-Alai partnership, the
partnership’s lease for the purpose of conducting Jai-Alai operations at the Miami fronton und all related
agreements terminated on October 31, 2004.

Effective December 12, 2007, the parties entered into agreements resolving all remaining outstanding
issues. Under those agreements, the parties agreed: (i) to dismiss the pending actions; (ii) that FGC would
have the exclusive right to conduct gaming activities during the summer session and to receive all income,
bear all expenses attributable thereto pursuant to a Florida gaming permit; (iii) that the disputed lease is
terminated and of no further effect; (iv) to amend and restate the existing partnership agreement of Summer
Jai-Alai Parinership, with FGC, West Flagler, and BKCLP 2 as the only remaining partners; and (v) to provide
for FGC’s transfer of the gaming permit to the partnership in certain sitvations.

Affiliated

The Comipany is a Plaintiff in the United States District Court Southern District of Florida, Case
No. 07-20897-CIV-UNGARO against Affiliated FM Insurance Company (*‘Affiliated”), The Company brought
this action to compel appraisal of losses incurred when Hurricane Wilma damaged its facilities on October 24,
2005. Affiliated issued an insurance policy to the Company, with a term from December 1, 2004 until
December 1, 2003. Affiliated argues that the Company has failed to fulfill its obligations under the policy by
refusing to submit certain persons to examinations under oath and by failing to turn over documents, in par-
ticular the contract with Professional Construction Analysts (PCA}, and decuments related to PCA’s licensing
status in Florida. The Defendant filed a motion to dismiss the Company’s claims on June 1, 2007, and
requested a summary judgment with respect to post-loss obligations under the policy. On August 2, 2007, the
Court denied Defendants Motion for Summary Judgment. The Company and Affiliated have agreed on a party
to serve as umpire in the dispute. On August 31, 2007 the parties stipulated “‘to have the Appraisal Umpire
issue an Itemized Appraisal Award per the policy’s terms.” The Appraisal Umpire entertained both oral and
written evidence concerning the losses and issued an award based on that evidence. The award amount is
being contested by Affiliated and Florida Gaming makes no representation regarding the eventual outcome of
the suit or any amount which the Company may receive as a result.

Other Suits

The Company is a defendant in certain other suits which are deemed to be routine litigation in the ordi-
nary course of business. The Company believes that the ultimate resolution of the suits will not have a
material adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or its results of operations.

Item 4. A Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarter of 2007 to a vote of our stockholders.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Common Stock was traded on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market under the trading symbol “BETS”
until August 21, 1998, at which time it was delisted. The Common Stock traded on the pink sheets from
August 22, 1998 until July 28, 1999. On July 29, 1999 the Common Stock began trading on the Over the
Counter — Bulletin Board under the trading symbol “BETS”. On January 28, 2003, the trading symbol was
changed to “FGMG”.

The bid prices reflect inter dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commissions and may not
represent actual transactions. The table shows the high and low bid prices for the years 2006 and 2007.

2007 High Low
For the Quarter Ended:
MArCh 31 . o e e e e e 20.02 13.99
JUNE 30 o o et e e e e 30.00 18.00
September 30 . . .. .. L 28.50 22.00
December 31 . o et e e e e 25.51° 17.13
2006 High Low
For the Quarter Ended:
March31 .................. e e e 21.00 12.50
JUNE 30 . o e e e e e e e 16.00 12.60
September 30 . . ... L 13.05 12.00
DecembBEr 31 & vttt e e e e e e e e e 13.20 12.00

s s e ok o e ok ok ok o ok e o ek ook ok sk ke kool ok ok

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had approximately 1,595 holders of record of its Common
Stock.

The Company has never paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and currently anticipates that
earnings will be retained for use in its operations. The Company is not contractually restricted from paying
dividends on its Common Stock, however, it does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on its Common
Stock in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to cash dividends will depend on the earnings and
financial position of the Company, as well as any legal restrictions and such other factors as the Board of
Directors many deem appropriate.

Persons who may be deemed “affiliates’ of -the Company or who acquired the shares in a transaction
exempt from registration under the U.S. Securities and Exchange Act (“the “Securities Act”) hold approxi-
mately 1,684,139 shares (“‘Restricted Shares”) of the 3,754,194 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of
March 21, 2008, which may only be sold in the public market if such shares are registered under the Securi-
ties Act or sold in accordance with Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act. Holding, the holder of
886,157 Restricted Shares, has demand registration rights for its shares.

In general, under Rule 144 a person (or person whose shares are aggregated) who has beneficially owned
Restricted Shares for at least one year, including a person who may be deemed an affiliate of the Company, is
entitled to sell within any three-month period up to that number of shares of Common Stock that does not
exceed the greater of 1% of the then-outstanding shares (approximately 37,541 shares) of Common Stock of
the Company or up to the number of shares equal to the average weekly trading volume of the Common
Stock on the Over-the-Counter Market during the four calendar weeks preceding such sale. Sales under
Rule 144 are also subject to certain restrictions relating to manner of sale, notice, and the availability of
current public information about the Company. A person who has not been an affiliate of the Company at any
time during the 90 days preceding a sale and who has beneficially owned shares for at least two years could
be entitled to sell such shares without regard to the volume limitations, manner of sale provisions and other
requirements of Rule 144,
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Sales of a substantial number of shares of Common Stock, including following conversion of shares of
the Company’s preferred stock or pursuant to Rule 144, or a registered offering, could adversely affect the
market price of the Common Stock, increase significantly the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon the conversion of the Company’s preferred stock, the conversion rates which are related to the prevailing
market price, may make it more difficult for the Company to sell equity securities in the future at a time and

price thai it deems appropriate.

The Company has five issues of Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding as of December 31, 2007, A
complete description and summary of the Convertible Preferred Stock is set forth in “ITEM 7. Financial

Statements — Note B.”

The Company has issued a total of 1,558,625 stock options to purchase common stock of the Company
to current or former directors and officers and to certain key employees. The Company has issued 80,000 in

warrants in connection with financing,

Equity Compensation Plan Information

December 31, 2007

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Number of Available for
Securities to Be Weighted- Future Issuance
Issued Upon Average Exercise Under Equity
Exercise of Price of Compensation
Outstanding Qutstanding Plans (Excluding
Options, Options, Securities
Warrants, and Warrants and Reflected in
Plan Category Rights Rights Column {(a)
Equity compensation plans* approved by security
holders . .. ... .. . . . . . . 10,000 $ 225 0
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
e T 1,548,625 $12.66 250,000
Total . ................... P 1,558,625 250,000

*  Plan terminated July 7, 2005

Master Stock Option Plan

On July 31, 2006, the Registrants Board of Directors adopted the Registrant’s 2006 Third Amended and
Restated Master Stock Option Plan, which consists of the Registrant’s (i) 2006 Stock Incentive Plan adopted
by the Board of Directors on June 28, 2006, (ii) Second Amended and Restated Officers and Directors Stock
Option Plan adopted by the Board of Directors on July 31, 2006, and (iii) Second Amended and Restated
Advisors and Consultants Stock Option Plan adopted by the Board of Directors on July 31, 2006

2006 Stock Incentive Plan

The Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”) provides for the grant of non-qualified
stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s $.20 par value common stock to compensate and induce
(a) certain key employees to (i) increase the profitability and growth of the Company; (ii} provide competitive
compensation while obtaining the benefits of tax deferral; (iii} attract and retain exceptional personnel and
encourage excellence in the performance of individual responsibilities; and (iv) to motivate key employees to
the Company’s success; and (b) non-employee directors to, among other things, attract and retain persons of

cutstanding ability to serve as directors of the Company.

The 2006 Plan may be administered by the Board of Directors or by a committee appointed by the Board
of Directors (In either case, referred to herein as the “Committee™.) All stock options granted under the 2006
Plan must be approved by the Committee, and the Committee has full power to construe and interpret the plan
subject to the plan’s express provistons. If the Stock is listed on a national securities exchange, the closing
price of the Stock on the composite tape as of the most recent date on which the Stock was traded prior to the
Grant Date. If the Stock is quoted on NASDAQ), the mean high and low market prices for which the Stock is




quoted as of the most recent date on which the Stock was quoted prior to the Grant Date. If the Stock is not
listed on a national securities exchange or quoted on NASDAQ, but is traded over the counter, the last sales
price of the Stock on the most recent date on which the Stock was sold in the over-the-counter market prior to
the Grant Date. On October 9, 2007, the Board of Directors amended the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan to make
the options cashless and transferable. There are 395,500 options outstanding under the 2006 stock incentive
plan.

Second Amended and Restated Officers and Directors Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Second Amended and Restated Directors and Officers Stock Option Plan (the “Directors
and Officers Plan™) provides for the grant of stock options to the directors and executive officers of the Com-
pany and its subsidiaries to purchase shares of the Company’s $.20 par value common stock to motivate them
to contribute to the success of the Company. The Directors and Officers Plan may be administered by the
Board of Directors or by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors (In either case, referred to herein
as the “Committee”). All stock options granted under the Directors and Officers Plan must be approved by
the Committee, and the Committee has full power to construe and interpret the plan subject to the plan’s
express provisions. The exercise price per share for an option granted under the Directors and Officers Plan
shall not be less than the fair market value of the stock on the date the option is granted. If the Stock is listed
on a national securities exchange, the closing price of the Stock on the composite tape as of the most recent
date on which the Stock was traded prior to the Grant Date. If the Stock is quoted on NASDAQ, the mean
high and low market prices for which the Stock is quoted as of the most recent date on which the Stock was
quoted prior to the Grant Date. If the Stock is not listed on a national securities exchange or quoted on
NASDAQ, but is traded over the counter, the last sales price of the Stock on the most recent date on which
the Stack was sold in the over-the-counter market prior to the Grant Date. If the Stock is not listed on a
national securities exchange, quoted on NASDAQ or traded in the over-the-counter market, the book value per
share of the Stock determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as of the last day
of the fiscal quarter immediately preceding the Grant Date. On October 9, 2007, the Board of Directors
amended the plan to make the options cashless and transferable. There are 140,125 options outstanding under
the second amended and restated officers and directors stock option plan.

Second Amended and Restated Advisors and Consultants Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Second Amended and Restated Advisors and Consultants Stock Option Plan (the “Advi-
sors and Consultants Plan”) provides for the grant of options to purchase shares of the Company’s $.20 par
value common stock to natural persons who provide bona fide valuable services to the Company that are not
in connection with the offer of sale of securities in a capital-raising transaction, and do not directly or indi-
rectly promote or maintain a market for the Company’s securities. The Board of Directors administers the
Advisors and Consultants Plan. All stock options granted under the Advisors and Consultants Plan must be
approved by the Board of Directors, which has full power to construe and interpret the plan subject to the
plan’s express provisions. The exercise price per share for an option granted under the Advisors and Consult-
ants Plan is the greater of three (3) times the book value per share as of the last day of the fiscal quarter
immediately proceeding the date the option is granted as determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, or the market value determined. If the Stock is listed on a national securities exchange,
the closing price of the Stock on the composite tape as of the most recent date on which the Stock was traded
prior to the Grant Date. If the Stock is quoted on NASDAQ, the mean high and low market prices for which
the Stock is quoted as of the most recent date on which the Stock was quoted prior to the Grant Date. If the
Stock is not listed on a national securities exchange or quoted on NASDAQ, but is traded over the counter,
the last sales price of the Stock on the most recent date on which the Stock was sold in the over-the-counter
market prior to the Grant Date. Options granted under the Advisors and Consultants Plan cannot be assigned
or transferred except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and cannot otherwise be pledged or
hypothecated in any way. Any attempted assignment, transfer, pledge hypethecation or other disposition of an
option, or the levy of any process upon an option, will render the option null, void and without effect. There
are 193,000 options outstanding under this plan.
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Non-Plan Options

On October 9, 2007, the Board of Directors amended the plan to make the options cashless and transfer-
able. During the first quarter 2008, 415,000 shares issued as Non-Plan stock options were exercised at $2.25
per share. The remaining 318,000 shares issued as Non-Plan stock options have exercise prices ranging from
$17 per share to $20 per share and expiration dates ranging from 8/21/2006 to 7/1/2012. Also included are
60,000 shares subject to warrants with an exercise price of $13.00 per share expiring on 10/31/2008, and
20,000 warrants with an exercise price of $30.00 per share expiring 6/15/2012.

The Board may, from time. to time, alter or amend the Plan or stock option agreements issued under it,
provided, that no amendment may:

(a) Impair or adversely affect the rights of a Participant under an outstanding Option; or

(b) Decrease the exercise price of an Option, extend the period for exercise of an Option, or otherwise
provide a participant with an enhancement or additional material benefit or right under such Option,
including by exercise of existing discretion, if such amendment or change in the Option would be a
“material modification™ of the Option that would cause Code Section 409A to become applicable to
the Option. Under this rule, any adjustment of an Option under Section 5¢(h) shall be done in a
manner consistent with Code Section 424(h) even though that section is not otherwise applicable (if
all fractional shares would be rounded down).

Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

On August 8, 2006, the District Court of Appeats, First District, State of Florida rendered a decision in
the case of Floridians Against Expanded Gambling (“FAEG”), et. al versus Floridians for a Level Playing
Field, et. al. FAEG challenged the process by which signatures were collected in order to place a constitu-
tional amendment on the ballot in 2004 allowing Miami-Dade and Broward County voters to approve stot
machines in pari-mutuel facilities. The District Court of Appeals reversed a decision of the Florida trial court,
which granted summary judgment and dismissed the challenge, and remanded the case back to the trial court
for an évidcntiary hearing to determine whether sufficient signatures were collected in the petition process. A
motion for rehearing by the entire Court of Appeals or in the alternative a motion for certification to the
Florida Supreme Court was filed. The case was re-heard by the entire Court of Appeals and the panel’s deci-
sion was upheld. However, after oral arguments were made on September 17, 2007, the District Court of
Appeals issued an opinion on September 27, 2007, which held the case was not properly put before the Dis-
trict Court of Appeals, and therefore upheld the lower court’s decision to remand the case back to the trial
court for an evidentiary hearing to determine whether sufficient signatures were collected in the petition
process. The case has not yet been schediled for trial.

On June 5, 2007, the St. Lucie county commissioners voted that Ft. Pierce Jai-Alai be allowed to operate
a card room. The Company is currently in the process of converting approximately 10,000 square feet for the
card room which will host poker games and tournaments with the maximum bet of $5.00, and no pot limit.
Ft. Pierce Jai-alai management believes that the card room will be an alternative to local patrons who are
currently traveling about fifty (50) miles to Palm Beach and Brevard Counties in order to play poker. The
Company is currently renovating approximately 10,000 square feet in preparing for the opening of the card
room in early 2008,

On July 1, 2007 Legislation was passed by Senate Bills 134 and 1335, allowing year-round operation of
poker rooms, adding dominoes to card rooms, and raising the maximum wager on poker from $2 to $5. Also,
on July 1, 2007, legislation passed permitting an additional 500 slot machines up from the current 1,500
machines in Dade and Broward County, and permitting ATM machines at the facilities, and extending the
hours of operation from 16 hrs to 18 hrs on weekdays, and allowing 24 hours a day on the weekends. The
new legislation applies to the Miami Jai-Alai.
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On January 29, 2008, Miami-Dade County voters approved, in a local referendum, the operation of up to
2000 Class III Las Vegas style slot machines at Miami Jai-Alai, a pari-mutuel wagering facility owned by
Florida Gaming. This approval also permits Calder Race Track and Flagler Dog Track to operate up to 2000
slot machines. The approval should help Miami Jai-Alai be more competitive with area casinos. The Company
expects {o continne negotiations with Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. for a sale or other transaction involving
Miami Jai-Alai pursuant to a Letter Agreement dated October 29, 2004.

Fiscal Year 2007 Compared with Fiscal Year 2006

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Company’s operations
reflect twelve months operation of live jai-alai performances at the Miami facility, and three months of live
jai-alai performances at Ft. Pierce, along with a year round schedule of ITW. The operating statement also
includes the real estate development in Loganville, GA.

Comparison Definition

The following analysis of handle, revenues, real estate sales, attendance, operating expenses and general
& administrative expenses in this part of the report compares figures for the twelve months ended December
31, 2007 1o figures for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, for the Miami and Ft. Pierce pari-mutuel
facilities, and the real estate development.

Handle Analysis

Total Handle for the twelve months ended December 31,2007 was $84,271,275 of which $17,826,419
was wagered on live jai-alai, $22,107,103 was wagered on the Miami jai-alai signal as a host site via inter-
track simulcasting, and $44,337,753 was wagered on inter-track guest signals carried at the Company’s two
frontons.

Total Handle for the twelve months ended December 31,2006 was $93,508,604 of which $20,808,526
was wagered on live jai-alai, $25,295,404 was wagered on the Miami jai-alai signal as a host site via inter-
track simulcasting, and $47,404,674 was wagered on inter-track guest signals carried at the Company’s two
frontons,

The Company eliminated the Wednesday live night performances at Miami which decreased the number
of performances offered at the facilities.

Handle Increases and Decreases

Total handle for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 was $84,271,275 compared to $93,508,604
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006. Total handle for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 decreased $9,237,329 or 9.9%.

Live handle and host signal for the twelve-months ended December 31, 2007 was $39,933,522 compared
to $46,103,930 for the same period in 2006, a decrease of $6,170,408 or 13.4%.

ITW handle decreased from $47,404,674 in 2006 to $44,337,753 for the same period in 2007, — a
decrease of $3,066,921 (6.5%).

Revenue
Net Pari-Mutuel Revenues

Pari-mutuel revenues, net of state taxes and guest commissions, for the year ended December 31, 2007
were $9,647,670 compared to net pari-mutuel revenues of $10,983,951 for the same period in 2006, a
decrease of $1,336,281 (12.16%). Revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, consisted of
$6,009,874 from live and simulcast jai-alai wagering and $3,637,796 from inter-track guest commission. This
compares to revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 of $7,051,559 from live and simulcast
jai-alai wagering and $3,932,392 from inter-track guest commission.

Admissions Income

Admissions Income, net of state taxes, for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $21,044, net of state
taxes, compared to $138,482 for the year ended December 31, 2006, a decrease of $117,438 or 84.8%.
Ft. Pierce did not charge admission during 2007.
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Program Revenue

Program Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $140,040 compares to $159,456, a
$19.416 decrease.

Food and Beverage

Food and beverage income decreased $154,552 (18.6%) to $677,784 for the year ended December 31,
2007, compared to $832,336 for the year ended December 31, 2006. Food and beverage income is revenue
from the bar and concession stand. There has been a decline in food and beverage sales at Miami Jai-Alai.

Card Room Revenue

Card Room revenue for the Miami Crystal Card Room for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007
had a slight increase for the year with income of $781,732 compared to $745,539 for the same period in
2006, an increase of $36,193. The Miami Jai-Alai staned offering Dominoes on July 1, 2007.

Other Revenue

Other Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $123,937 compared to $224,006 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Other Revenue primarily consists of souvenirs, parking, vending machines, lottery
commission and misc. income.

Real Estate Sales

The Company had real estate sales of -0- for the year 2007, compared to $4,320,000 for the year 2006.
During the period ending December 31, 2006, the Company sold two pieces of property. The Company sold
the last residence at its Tara development for $370,000. The Company also sold approximately 79 acres of
investment real estate located adjacent to its’ Jai-Alai facility in Fort Pierce, Florida. The sale proceeds were
$3,800,000 plus $150,000 in extension fees and was paid in cash.

Operating Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $12,897,770 compared
to $14,777,449 for the same period in 2006, a $1,879,679 decrease. The largest decrease in operating expenses
was in Cost of Real Estate Sales. During 2006, the Company had Real Estate Cost of Sales of $1,708,022
compared to -0- in 2007.

Advertising and Promotions

Advertising and promotional costs were $390,729 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
$456,038 for the year ended December 31, 2006. A total decrease of 14.3%. Of the $390,729, advertising
expense was $199,739 for the twelve month period ending December 31, 2007, compared to $225,219 for the
twelve month period in 2006 a decrease of $25,480 or 11.3%. Promotion expense for the twelve month period
in 2007, was $190,990 compared to $230,819 for the same period in 2006, a $39,829 decrease or 17.2%. The
Company continues to evaluate the effectiveness of its advertising and promotions in an effort to spend less in
areas that were less effective and advertising events and dates such as the Memorial Day, Labor Day, etc.

Operating and Mutuel Payroll and Related Costs

Total operating and mutual payroll costs remained relatively the same and were $4,328,749 for the year
2007, compared to $4,340,085 in 2006, a $11,336 decrease. Mutuels payroll for the year ended December 31,
2007 was $922.421, compared to $918,873 for the same period in 2005. Admission payroll for 2007 was
$70,539 compared to $66,982 during the same period in 2006. Maintenance and janitorial payroll was
$605,792 for the year ended 2006 compared to $589,313 for the same period in 2006. Security payroll for
2006 was $777,320 compared to $724,948 for the same period in 2006. Employee benefits were $872,003
compared to $923,238, a decrease of $51,255, Employee benefits consists of insurance for health care for the
players and employees. Office payroll was $326,562 for the year ended 2007, compared to $307,940 for the
same period in 2006. Related costs consisting of payroll taxes were $675,366 for year 2007 compared to
$720,483 for the year 2006.
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Player Payroll and Related Costs

Player payroll and related costs for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $3,349,123 compared to
$3,476,158 for the year ended December 31, 2006, a 3.6% decrease. The targest portion of the players
decrease was due to a decrease in Players prize money and bonuses due to fewer performances in 2007.

Food and Beverage Costs

Food and beverage costs for the period ended December 31, 2007, were $757,660 compared to $771,791
for the same period in 2006. Food and Beverage costs are from the bar and concession stand. Bar payroll was
$158,731 for period ended December 31, 2007, compared to $153,142 in 2006. Bar purchases were $123,241
for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to $167,092 for the same period in 2006, a $43,750
decrease or 26%. Concession payroll was $291,970 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
$277,676 for the same period in 2006, an increase of $14,294. Concession purchases totaled $183,618 for the
year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $173,882 for the year ended December 31, 2006, a $9,736
decrease.

Repairs and Maintenance

Total Repairs and Maintenance for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $305,546 compared to
$288,667 for the same period in 2006,

Totalizator/Teleview Rental

The Company leases totalizator equipment at each fronton. The cost was $240,421 for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to $235,878 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

ITW and Television Costs

Total ITW and television costs were the year ended December 31, 2007 were $852,3135 compared to
$855,036 for the same period in 2006, a decrease of $2,721. Of the total costs for 2007, TV Camera rental
costs increased $8,887 to $306,191, and ITW tote and telecom costs decreased $11,608 to $546,124.

Programs

Total Program costs were $179,695 for 2007, compared to $173,301 for the same period in 20006, a slight
increase of $6,394. Out of the total program costs, payroll totaled $15,383 for the year ended December 31,
2007, compared to $16,458 for the same period in 2006. Program expenses totaled $164,312 for the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared to $156,843 for the same period in 2006.

Cardroom Payroll and Related Costs
Cardroom payroll totaled $256,437 for 2007 compared to $216,817 for the same period in 2006.

Other Card Room Operating Costs

Expenses related to cardroom operations amounted to $264,253 compared to $219,588 in 2006. The
largest increase in costs were from the state participation which was $80,487 in 2006, and increased $18,638
to $99,125 for the year 2007,

Depreciation and Amortization

Deprecation and Amortization expense amounted to $317,815 for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to $304,769 for the same period in 2006. Of that total, depreciation expense for the year ended
December 31, 2007, was $306,482 and amortization was $11,333, compared to Deprecation expense of
$293,436 and amortization of $11,333 for the same period in 2006.

Utilites

Utility costs had a slight increase of $2,930 to $569,469 for the year ended December 31, 2007 from
$566,539 for the same period in 2006,
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Cost of Real Estate Sales

The Company had cost of real estate sales of -0- for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to
$1,708,022 for the year 2006. The Company sold their last residence at its Tara Development for $370,000 in
2006. The Company had already accrued a reserve of $224,002 on the property. Net of the reserve the Com-
pany’s basis was equal to the sale price, and there was $26,210 in costs associated with the sale of the
property. The Company also sold approximately 79 acres of investment real estate located adjacent to its’
Jai-Alai facility in Ft, Pierce, Florida which had a basis of $1,087,631. The sale proceeds were $3,800,000
plus $150,000 in extension fees. Expenses relating to the sale totaled about $223,481, leaving a net amount
received afier expenses of $3,726,519.

Provision for Loss on Real Estate

The Company had provision for loss on real estate of $5,050 for the year ended 2006 compared to -0- in
2007.

Misc, Net

Misc expenses were $1,085,558 for the year 2007, compared to $1,159,710 for the same year in 2006.
Rent was one of the more significant charges of miscellaneous expense, which was $235,051 for year ended
December 31, 2007, compared to $151,494 for the same period in 2006. Sccurity police costs were $127,630
for the year ended 2007, compared to $12(0,334 for the same period in 2006. Souvenir payroll and expenses
total $61,490 for the year 2007 compared to $51,891. Equipment Rental total $48,042 for the year ended 2007
compared to $31,298 for the same period in 2006.

General and Administrative Expenses

The Company’s general and administrative expenses increased 3762,788 (14.2%) to $6,124,063 for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2007, compared to $5,361,275 for the twelve-months ended December 31,
2008. A large portion of that increase can be attributed to the Company expensing stock options in 2007
which resulted in an expense of 31,890,544 in 2007, compared to $1,393,359 in 2006. The Company also
incurred financing costs of $182,764 in 2007 relating to the issuance of the Preferred AA Stock, compared to
loan guarantee fees of $29,468 in 2007.

Comparisons of significant categories of general and administrative expense for 2007 versus 2006 are as
follows:

Executive Payroll and Related Costs

Executive payroll and related costs were $538,952 in 2007, compared to $584,621 in 2006. A decrease of
$45,669. Included in the charges for 2006 is a $35,000 incentive bonus given to officers for the sale of the
investment property at Ft. Pierce.

Stock Options

The Company issued 858,625 stock options during 2006. The Company expensed these options using the
Black-Scholes method and recorded an expense of $1,393,359 for the year ended December 31, 2006, and
$1,890,544 for the same pertod in 2007,

Director Fees

The Company has three non-employee directors and they each receive $1500 per month. The Board of
Directors increased the fees from $750 to $1500 effective May 1, 2007. Director Fees for the periods ended
December 31, 2007 were $45,000 compared to $27,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Management Consulting

Total management consulting fees for the year ended December 31, 2007, were $680,000 compared to
$600,000 during 2006. The $80,000 increase is due to the Board of Directors authorizing an increase of
$10,000 per month effective May 1, 2007. Management fees consist of fees paid to Freedom Financial Corpo-
ration for services provided by W. B. Collett, Chairman and CEO. (See Note G)
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Telephone and Travel

Total fees for telephone and travel were $387,879 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
$369,571 for the same peried in 2006. Of the $387,879, telephone expenses decreased from $91,203 for the
period ended December 31, 2006, to $82,168 for the same period in 2007. Travel expenses increased $27,343
(9.8%) to $305,711 for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $278,368 for the same period in 2006.
W. Bennett Collett, Chairman and CEQ campaigned in Miami for the slot machines. Also, Airfares and hotel
expenses have increased in 2007.

Professional Fees

Professional fees were $632,749 in 2007 compared to $572,784 in 2006, an increase of $59,965 or
10.5%. Included in professional fees are lawyers, accountants, and consultants.

Interest and Financing Costs

The Company had total interest and financing costs of $704,281 for the twelve month period ended
December 31, 2007 compared to $532,388 during the same period in 2006. Of the total, $704,281, interest
costs totaled $491,212 for the twelve month peried ended December 31, 2007, compared to $491,659 for the
same period in 2006, remaining the same. The Company pays Isle of Capri $75,000 quarterly for interest
expense for a total of $300,000 per year. Financing costs were $212,232 for the year ended December 31,
2007, compared to $35,854 for the same period in 2006. During 2007, the Company issued 20,000 warrants
and incurred other financing costs of $182,704 related to the sale of AA Preferred Stock

Property Taxes

Property taxes were $400,191 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to $399,880 for the same
period in 2006.

Insurance Costs

The Company had insurance expense of $844,467 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007,
compared to insurance expense of $881,672 for the same period in 2006. A decrease of $37,205. Insurance
rates have substanrially increased all over the state of Florida. Ft. Pierce was damaged by two (2) hurricanes
in 2004, and Miami was damaged by a hurricane in 2005.

Other Income and Expense

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $977,297 compared to other income of
$2,170,449 for the same period in 2006. There was interest income of $159,971 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2007, compared to $119,014 for the same period in 2006 an increase of $40,957. There was
additional income of $817,326 in State Tax credits on handle and admissions in 2007, compared to $1,209,491
for the same period in 2006. The Company had insurance recoveries, net of losses, of $841,944 in 2006
compared to -0- in 2007,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of $3,423,695 at December 31, 2007, compared to
$2,177,910 at December 31, 2006. The Company had negative working capital of approximately $6,768,996
during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to working capital of $357,802 in 2006. The decrease in
working capital can be attributed to the Freedom Note of $1,416,172 becoming due on October 31, 2008, and
Isle of Capri’s $5,000,000 note is due on December 31, 2008. The Company issued Preferred AA stock for
$5,000,000 in June, 2007 (See Note B). During 2006, the Company had a sale of the investment property at
Ft. Pierce, and the sale of the last home at its Tara development. The Company received $3,950,000 in cash,
less settlement charges of $223,481 for the sale of the property at Ft. Pierce, and the Company received
$370,000 less $26,910 in settlement charges for the sale of the home at its Tara Development.
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Net cash used in operating activities was $3,247,452 in 2007, compared to $3,283,134 in 2006. During
2006, the Company issued stock options with related costs of $1,393,359 and the expense in 2007 was
$1,890,544 from the same stock options issued in 2006.0n June 15, 2007, the Company issued stock warrants
relating to the issuance of Preferred AA stock. The Company recognized a financing cost of $182,764, During
2006, the Company had insurance recoveries, net of losses, of $841,944, compared to -0- in 2007 (See Note
0). There were no real estate sales in 2007, compared to a large gain on sale of real estate of $2,611,978 in
2006 due to the sale of the Ft. Pierce property in the first quarter of 2006, and the sale of a home in its Tara
development (See Note L).

Net cash provided by investing totaled $155,037 for 2007, compared to $4,517,243 in 2006. The large
difference is due to the sale of the Ft. Pierce Property and the last home at the real estate development in
2006. These sales totaled $4,320,000 minus expenses of $250,391, compared to selling -0- in 2007. The
Company also collected insurance proceeds of $952,160 in 2007, compared to $350,000 in 2006. The Com-
pany collected a payoff of a mortgage receivables for $509,959, net, in 2006, compared to -0- in 2007.

During 2007, net cash provided by financing activities totaled $4,338,200 compared to $1,098,696 cash
used in financing activities in 2006, a difference of $5.436,896. During 2007, the Company received
$5,000,000 from the issuance of Preferred AA stock. The Company issued 5,000 shares $1,000 per share.
Costs associated with the issuance of the Preferred AA were $203,621. During 2006, the Company repaid
Freedom $1,400,000 on its loan and received $231,201 from the exercising of options. The Company paid
$283,315 in Preferred dividends for the year 2007, compared to $267,546 in 2006.

The Company leases totalizator equipment from Autotote Systems, Inc, (“Autotote™} at each fronton
under leases which expire October 31, 2008, The leases require minimum annuval rental at the Miami and
Ft. Pierce locations. Transmission of the Miami Jai-Alai signal requires the use of a satellite uplink simulcast-
ing service which requires a fee of $500 per performance, under a contract which expires in 2008. Total
totalizator rental expense and other equipment rental under operating leases for the year ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 was approximately $387,000 and $372,000, respectively. For 2008, the minimum lease com-
mitment is $351,000 each year.

The Company also leases parking facilities adjacent to the Miami fronton. This lease was dated
February 17, 2003, and during 2006 there was a required annual payment of $117,000. For 2007, the annual
payment was $126,000. The 2008 renewal requires an annual payment of $i30,000.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company owed Freedom $1,416,172 secured by a first mortgage on both
the Miami and Ft. Pierce facilities. The morigage to Freedom is due in full on October 31, 2008. The Com-
pany also owes Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. a secured note in the amount of $5,000,000 which is due in full on
December 31, 2008. The Company plans to secure the funds necessary to pay these amounts as they become
due by raising new capital in a private placement of equity securities. There is no assurance that the Company
will be successful in these efforts.

(a) Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
See Note N.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Company’s Consoclidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements
requires the Company to make estimates and judgments, and select from a range of possible estimates and
assumptions, that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reported period.
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On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to allowances for
doubtful accounts, accounts receivable, inventory allowances, asset lives, the recoverability of other long-lived
assets, including property and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, the realization of deferred
income tax assets, remediation, litigation, income tax and other contingencies. The Company bases its esti-
mates and judgments, to varying degrees, on historical experience, advice of external specialists and various
other factors it believes to be prudent under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from previously
estimated amounts and such estimates, assumptions and judgments are regularly subject to revision.

The policies and estimates discussed below are considered by management to be critical to an under-
standing of the Company’s financial statements because their application requires the most significant
judgments from management in estimating matters for financial reporting that are inherently uncertain. See
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on these policies and estimates, as
well as discussion of additional accounting policies and estimates.

The Company presents accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts, to ensure accounts
receivable are not overstated due to uncollectibility. The allowances are calculated based on detailed review of
certain individual customer accounts, historical rates and an estimation of the overall economic conditions as
well as the aging of the accounts receivable. In the event that the receivables became uncollectible after
exhausting all available means of collection, the company would be forced to record additional adjustments to
receivables to reflect the amounts at net realizable value. The effect of this entry would be a charge to income,
thereby reducing its net profit. Although the company considers the likelihood of this occurrence to be remote
based on past history and the current status of our accounts, there is a possibility of this occurrence.

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to estimated uncollectible amounts. The
Company'’s estimate is based on a review of the current status of receivables. Allowance for doubtful accounts
totaled -0- for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $135,972 for the year ended December 31,
2006. During 2006, the Company had reserved $98,608 in regards to a lawsuit with Summer Jai-Alai and that
lawsuit has been resolved. {(See Note K).

In connection with losses incurred from natural disasters, insurance proceeds are collected on existing
business interruption and property and casualty insurance policies, When losses are sustained in one period
and the amounts to be recovered are collected in a subsequent period, management uses estimates and judg-
ment to determine the amounts that are probable of recovery.

The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment in order to determine the amount of
depreciation and amortization expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The majority of its equip-
ment is depreciated over five to seven years. The estimated useful lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as taking into account anticipated technological or other changes. If technological
changes were to occur more rapidly than anticipated or in a different form than anticipated, the useful lives
assigned to these assets may need to be shortened, resulting in the recognition of increased depreciation in
future periods. The Company reviews for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable over the remaining lives of the assets. In assessing impairments,
it follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 “Accounting for the Impair-
ment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Company periodically provides for losses on its property held for
sale. Generally, when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived
assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets, may not be recoverable, the Company under-
takes an evaluation of the assets or asset group. If this evaluation indicates that the carrying amount of the
asset or asset group is not recoverable, the amount of the impairment would typically be calculated using
appraised values of the property. All relevant factors are considered in determining whether an impairment
exists. The Company reviews for impairment annually and has found this to be very effective. During 2006
provisions for losses totaled $5,050 on property held for sale, compared to -0- in 2007.
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Revenue is derived from acceptance of wagers under a pari-mutuel wagering system. The Company
accepts wagers on both on-site and ITW events. On-site wagers are accumulated in pools with a portion being
returned to winning bettors, a portion paid to the State of Florida, and a portion retained by the Company.
ITW wagers are also accepted and forwarded to the “host” facility after retention of the Company’s commis-
sions. The Company recognizes revenue from gaming operations in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin
104 which requires revenues to be recognized when realized or realizable and eamed. Revenues derived from
gaming operations including: mutuel, admission, program, food and beverage, card room, and other revenues
are collected shortly before the earning events take place. Revenues from the Company’s real estate operations
are recognized when sales are consummated, which is upon closing.

The Company’s policy for unclaimed winning tickets follows the requirements as set forth by the State of
Florida. Abandoned tickets are winning tickets that remain uncashed for a period of one year. The value of the
abandoned tickets escheat to the state. These funds are deposited into the State School Fund for support and
maintenance of Florida’s public schools. During 2007, unclaimed winning totaled $176,349 compared to
$158,894 for the same period in 2006.

Item 7. Financial Statements

List of Financial Statements Filed.

See accompanying Financial Statements:
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.
Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the two years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006.

Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Notes to Financial Statements.

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 8A. Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2007, an evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation
of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™)). Based upon that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the design and operation of these
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in
the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in applicable rules and forms.

(a) Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Management is respon-
sible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15f under the Exchange Act. Our internal control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance to our management and board of directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

—  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

— Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of manage-
ment and directors of the company; and
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— Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unanthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial state-
ments. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of Decem-
ber 31, 2007. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework.
Based on management’s assessment and those criteria, management believes that, as of December 31, 2007,
the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting
firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Our management’s report of the effectiveness on the
design and operation of our internal control over financial reporting was not subject to attestation by the
Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that permit the Company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.

{b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There was no change in the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule
13a-15(d) and Rule 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the period covered by this report and
that has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 8B. Other Information

No information to be reported.

Item 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons; Compliance With Section 16(a) of
the Exchange Act

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the Company’s executive officers and
directors at December 31, 2007:

Director or
Executive
Name Age Position with the Company Officer Since
W. Bennett Collett 75 Chief Executive Officer, Director and Chairman 1993
W. Bennett Collett, Jr. 52 President, Director, and Chief Operating Officer 1993
Daniel Licciardi 51 Executive Vice-President and Pari-Mutuels Manager 1998
Kimberly R. Tharp 50 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer 2002
Jennifer Chong 51 Controller 2003
George Galloway, Jr. 74 Director 1954
Roland M. Howell 92  Director 1995 :
William Haddon 76 Director 2001 |

W. Bennert Collett has served as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and a director of
Freedom Financial Corporation (“Freedom™) since its formation in 1985. Freedom was a registered bank
holding company until January, 1988 when it sold its banking subsidiaries. Mr. Collett has served as Chairman
and director of Freedom Holding, Inc. (“Holding™) since its formation in December 1992. Holding’s sole
business currently is to hold shares of Freedom. Mr. Collett was invelved in the management of banking and
financial service companies for over 30 years, having been a principal officer, and director of ten commercial
banks. For 14 years Mr. Collett was a principal shareholder and chief executive officer of various banks and
finance companies in Alabama, Arkansas, Georgia, Indiana and Missouri ranging in asset size from $1,000,000
to $500,000,000.
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W. Bennett Collett Jr. served as President of Freedom from 1988 to 1989. Since August 1989,
Mr. Collett has served as Executive Vice President of Freedom. He has been a director of Freedom since its
formation in 1985 and a director of Holding since April, 1998. He presently serves as Secretary and Treasurer
of Holding. Mr. Collett is responsible for directing the Company’s gaming operations (live jai-alai perfor-
mances and inter track wagering). Mr. Collett currently serves as President and Chief Operating Officer and
was appointed to the Company’s Board of Directors on August 9, 1994. W. Bennett Collett Jr. is the son of
W. Bennett Collett.

Kimberly R. Tharp was elected Chief Financial Officer of the Company in 2002 and still serves in that
capacity. She has served Freedom since 1993 to present, in various capacities, including Controller and
Secretary.

Daniel Licciardi was elected Exec. Vice-President and Pari-Mutuels Manager in 1998 of Florida Gaming
Centers. Mr. Licciardi was employed at the Miami Jai-Alai when present management took over in 1997. He
has overseen the operations at the Miami Jai-Alai for over 20 years.

Jennifer Chong has worked in various positions at the Miami Jai-Alai and was elected Controller in
2003. She had previously served Centers as Asst. Contoller.

George W. Galloway, Jr., M.D. a physician since 1958, served as the medical director of the emergency
room at Kennestone Hospital in Marietta, Georgia from 1983 until his retirement in March 1999,

Roland M. Howell was a principal in several hotels in South Florida and was active in various positions
in hotel management for over thirty years. He owned and operated hotels in Florida for approximately twenty
years before his retirement in 1969. He is currently a private investor with interests primarily in municipal
bonds, stocks, and real estate.

William Haddon an attorney and certified public accountant, has been engaged In the private practice of
law in Atlanta, Georgia since 1962.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company’s directors and executive
officers, and persons who own more than 10 per Cent of the Company’s Common stock to file with the Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in
ownership of common stock. Officers, directors and greater than 10 percent shareholders are required by SEC
regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. \

To the Company’s knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports and certain repre-
sentations furnished to the Company, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, all Section 16{a) filing
requirements applicable to its officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were satisfied. i

Information Relating to Our Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting processes of our
company and the audits of our financial statements. The Audit Committee provides assistance to our Board of
Directors with respect to its oversight of (a) the integrity of our financial statements, (b) our compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, {c) the independent registered public accountant’s qualifications and inde-
pendence, and (d) the performance of our independent registered public accountants. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set forth in its charter, which is reviewed annually, and includes
various matters with respect to the oversight of our company’s accounting and financial reporting process and
audits of the financial statements of our company on behalf of our Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee also selects the independent registered public accountants to conduct the annual
audit of the financial statements of our company; reviews the proposed scope of such audit, reviews account-
ing and financial controls of our company with the independent registered public accountants and our financial
accounting staff; and reviews and approves transactions between us and our directors, officers, and their
affiliates.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs. Haddon, Howell and Galloway, each of whom is an
independent director of our company under OTCBB rules as well as under rules adopted by the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Board of Directors has determined
that Mr. Haddon qualifies as an ‘“‘audit committee financial expert” in accordance with applicable rules and
regulations of the SEC. Mr. Haddon serves as Chair of the Audit Committee.

Code of Ethics

The Code of Ethics can be viewed on the Company’s website @ www.fla-gaming.com

Item 10. Executive Compensation

Cash Compensation

The following table sets forth all cash compensation paid by the Company for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 for W, Bennett Collett, W. B. Collett, Ir., and Daniel Licciardi, W. Bennett
Collett received no cash compensation from the Company from the time he began service as an executive
officer on March 31, 1993 through December 31, 1995.

Summary Compensation Table
Non-Equity Non-Qualified

Incentive Deferred

Stock Option Plan Compensation All Other
Name of Executive Salary Bonus  Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
Officer Year (%) $) $) % % 8 $) (%)
(a) (b) (c) (d} (e £ ® (h) () @
W. B. Collett 2007  $680,000 1,981,700 36,881 2,698,581
glé%rman and 2006 $600,000 1,981,700 40,622 2622322
W. B. Collett, Jr. 2007 263,000 618,450 15,488 896,938
President 2006 251,000 15,000 618,450 40,663 925,113
Daniel Licciardi 2007 141,300 163,756 6,000 311,056
Exec. Vice 2006 141,300 15,000 163,756 19,000 339,056
President

Salary (c)

In September, 1997, the Company discontinued the salary payments to Mr. Collett and began paying
$30,000 per month to Freedom Financial Corporation (“Freedom™) in lieu of paying a salary to Mr. Collett.
The payments to Freedom totaled $360,000 in each year from 1998 to 2002. Beginning in 2003, the payments
were increased to $40,000 a month to. Mr. Collett. The Board of Directors elected to give Mr. Collett an
increase of $10,000 per month to $50,000 per month effective May 1, 2005. On May 1, 2007 the Board of
Directors gave Mr. Collett an increase of $10,000 per month which increased his salary to $60,000 per month.
Mr. Collett is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Freedom. As of December 31, 2007,
there was no written employment or consulting agreement between the Company and Freedom Financial
Corporation. The Company has no employment agreements with any of the officers,

Bonus (d)

There were no bonuses in 2007 compared to Mr. Collett, Jr. and Mr. Licciardi each receiving a bonus of
$15,000 for their efforts in selling the Ft. Pierce property in 2006.
Option Awards (f)

W. B. Collett was issued 298,000 options in July 2006 for $17.00 a share with a fair value of $13.30 a
share. Half the options, or 149,000 shares vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 149,000 vested on
July 1, 2007
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W. B. Collett, Jr. was issued 93,000 options in July 2006 for $17.00 a share with a fair value of $13.30 a
share. Half the options, or 46,500 shares vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 46,500 vested on
July 1, 2007. '

Daniel Licciardi was issued 24,625 options in Jﬁly 2006 for $17.00 a share with a fair value of $13.30 a
share. Half the options, or 12,312.5 shares vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 12,312.5 vested
on July 1, 2007

Other Compensation (i)

W.B. Collett had other compensation-of $36,881 for the year ended 2007. Of the $36,881, $21,281
included reimbursements for medical payments, insurance and auto repairs made on personal cars used for
company business, and cleaning service at personal residence for 2007. The remaining $15,600 was for $300
a week discretionary expense allowance. This compares to other compensation of $40,622 in 2006. The
$40,622 included payments for repairs and insurance for personal automobiles used for company business, and
$300 a week discretionary expense allowance,

W.B. Collett, Jr. had other compensation of $15,488 which included $7,663 in car payments made by the
Company for personal autos used in Company business, $2,877 on repairs to personal automobiles and per-
sonal travel expenses of $4,947. This compares to other compensation of $40,663 for the year 2006, of which
$5,279 for repairs to personal automobiles, $19,384 in car payments made by the Company on personal cars
used for company business, and $16,000 in cash advances.

Dan Licciardi had other compensation of $6,000 for 2007 for auto allowance compared to $19,000 in the
year 2006, Of the $19,000 in 2006, $13,000 was from compensation received for overseeing construction at
Ft. Pierce after the hurricane damage, and $6,000 in auto allowance.

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2007

Equity
Equity Incentive Plan
Equity Incentive Awards:
Incentive Plan Awards:  Market or
Plan Awards: Number of Payout Value
Number Number of Number of Number of Market Value Unearned of Unearned
of Securities Securities Securities Shares or of Shares of Shares, Units Shares, Units
Underlying  Underlying = Underlying Units of Units of or Other or Other
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Stock Stock That  Rights That  Rights That
Options Options Unearned Exercise Option That Have Have Not Have Not Have Not
#) (#) Options Price Expiration Not Vested Vested Vested Vested
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (# ®) Date %) %) #) $)
(a) (b} (c) (d) (e} ] ® (h) 5] )
W, B Collett . 250,000 17 71142009 — ——
Chairman & CEO 48,000 17 7/10/2012 — —
© 230,000 2.25 3/20/2008 — —
W. B Collett, Jr. 75,000 17 7/11/2009 — _—
President & COO 18,000 17 /102012 — —
105,000 2.25 3/20/2008 — —
Kimberly Tharp 4,125 17 7/10/2012
%FO, Secretary & 10,000 2.25 3/20/2008
feasurer 5,000 225 2/12/2009
Daniel Licciardi 17.500 17 7/11/2009 — —
Ex Vice-President _ .
& Pari-Mutuels 7,125 17 7/10/2012
Mgr 30,000 225 3/20/2008 — e
Jennifer Chong 2,250 17 7/10/2012 —_ —
Controller 10,000 2.25 3/20/2008 — —
5,000 2.25 2/12/2009 — —
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W. B. Collett was issued 48,000 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which ¥4 vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remaining Y2 vested on July 1, 2007. Mr, Collett was also issued 250,000 options
on July 11, 2006, which % vested on December 31, 2006, and the remaining 2 vested on July 1, 2007. On
March 11, 2008, Mr. Collett transferred all his options to Freedom Holding, Inc. Mr. Collett own 85.09% of
Freedom Holding, Inc (See Item 11).

W, B. Collett, Jr. was issued 75,000 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which Y20 vested
on December 31, 2006, and the remaining %2 vested on July 1, 2007. He was also issued 18,000 options on
July 11, 2006, of which "4 vested on December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested on July 1, 2007. On
March 11, 2008, W, B. Collett, Jr. transferred all his options to Freedom Holding, Inc. W. B. Collett, Jr. owns
9.21% of Freedom Holding, Inc. (See Item 11).

Daniel Licciardi was issued 17,500 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which 4 vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remaining 2 vested on July 1, 2007, Mr. Licciardi was also issued 7,125 options
on July 11, 2006, of which %4 vested on December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested on July 1, 2007. On
March 14, 2008, Mr. Licciardi exercised 30,000 options at $2.25.

Kimberly Tharp was issued 4,125 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which ' vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested on July 1, 2007. Ms. Tharp has 5,000 vested options which
expire 2/12/2009. On January 29, 2008, Ms. Tharp exercised 10,000 options @ $2.25.

Jennifer Chong was issued 2,250 options on July 10, 2006, for $17.00 per share of which 4 vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remainder vested on July 1, 2007. Ms. Chong has 5,000 vested options which
expire 2/12/2009. On March 18, 2008, Ms. Chong exercised 10,000 options at $2.25.

Director Compensation

The Company currently pays its non-management directors, Dr. George W. Galloway, Jr., William C.
Haddon, and Roland M. Howell a monthly fee of $1500. In May, 2007 the Board of Directors were given an
increase in compensation from $750 to $1500 a month. W. Bennett Collett, and W. B. Collett, Jr. are also
directors, but receive no directors fees.

Director Compensation

2007
Change in
Fees Pension Value
Earned or Non-Equity  and Nonqualified
Paid in Stock Option Incentive Plan Deferred All Other

Cash Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Compensation Total
Name ($) 8 )] % Earnings $ ($)
(a) () (c} () (e) ® (&) (h)
Roland Howell 15,000 62,344 77,344
William Haddon 15,000 124,688 139,688
George Galloway 15,0600 182,875 197,875

Option Awards (d)

Roland Howell received 9,375 options during the year ended December 31, 2006, the options had a fair
value of $13.30 and were issued with an option price of $17.00. Half of these options, or 4687.5, vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remaining options vested July 1, 2007,

William Haddon received 18,750 options during the year ended December 31, 2006, the options had a
fair value of $13.30 and were issued with an option price of $17.00. Half of these options, or 9,375, vested on
December 31, 2006, and the remaining options vested July 1, 2007.

George Galloway received 27,500 options during the year ended December 31, 2006, the options had a
fair value of $13.30 and were issued with an option price of $17.00. Half of these options, or 13,750, vested
on December 31, 2006, and the remaining options vested July 1, 2007.
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Indemnification

Under Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (“DGCL”), the Company has the power to
indemnify directors and officers under certain prescribed circumstances and subject to certain limitations
against certain costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, actually and reasonably incurred in connection
with any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, to which any of
them is a party by reason of his being a director or officer of the Company if it is determined that the officer
or director acted in accordance with the applicable standard of conduct set forth in such statutory provisions.
The Company’s Bylaws provide that the Company shall indemnify each person who may be indemnified
pursuant to Section 145, as amended from time to time (or any successor provision thereto), to the fullest
extent permitted by Section 145. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may
be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the Company pursuant to the foregoing provi-
sions, or otherwise, the Company has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange
Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore,
unenforceable.

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 21, 2008 concerning each stockholder
known to the Company to own beneficially more than five percent of the outstanding Common Stock of the
Company and information regarding beneficial ownership of Common Stock, the Class B Common Stock of
Freedom, and the Common Stock of Holding by each director and executive officer, and all directors and
executive officers as a group. Holding each may be deemed to be a “'parent” of the Company as such term is
defined in the rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Holding’s sole business currently
is to hold shares of Freedom. On March 11, 2008 and on March 17, 2008, W. B. Collett, W. B. Collett, Jr. and
Freedom Financial Corporation transferred 1,041,000 options, 200 shares of Class E Preferred Stock, 1000
shares of Class F Preferred Stock, 886,157 shares of common stock, and 20,000 warrants to Freedom Holding,
Inc. (“Holding™). On March 14, 2008, Holding exercised 335,000 options at a price of $2.25. The Company
pays management fees of $60,000 per month to Freedom Financial Corporation, for the services of W. B.
Collett, Chairman and CEQ. At December 31, 2007, Freedom Financial had a note payable to Mr. Collett for
$4,380,311.

The Company Freedom Holding
Number of Percent of Number of Percent of Number of Percent of
Directors and Executive Officers Shares'" Class® Shares‘! Class™ Shares” Class'?
W.B. Collett . ............. 2,095,491 4527% 1,109011°  100% 812.05 85.09%
W.B. Collewt, Jr ........... ® < — — 87.95 9.21%
Kimberly R. Tharp . . .. .. . . .. 31,62592  <1%
Daniel Licciardi . ... ........ 54,625 14% — — — —
Jennifer Chong .. .......... 17,250 <1% — — — —
Roland M. Howell . ... ...... 472,709 12.1% — — — —
William C. Haddon . ........ 43,7501 1% — — — —
GWGIR,INC. ............. 57,50019  1.5% — — — —
All current directors and
Executive officers as a group
(7 persons)® . ... ... £ 2,772,950  56.60% 1,109,011 100% 900.00 94.3%
Number of Percent of Number of Percent of Number of Percent of
5% Beneficial Owners Shares'" Class™® Shares'" Class™ Shares® Class
Freedom Holding Corporation” . 2,095,491 45.27% N/A N/A N/A N/A
W. Russell Ramsey,

Ramsey Asset Mgmnt!"®' . ... 306,075 8.15% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Prides Capital Partners, LLCY'® . 227,500 6.05% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Roland M. and Dorothy V.

Howell®¥® . ... .... 472,709 12.1% N/A N/A N/A N/A
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(1) Based upon information furnished to the Company by the named person, and information contained in
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™). Under the rules of the Com-
mission, a person is deemed 10 beneficially own shares over which the person has or shares voting or
investment power or which the person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days.
Unless otherwise indicated, the named persons have sole voting and investment power with respect to
shares owned by them,

(2) Based on 3,754,194 shares outstanding as of March 21, 2008 Shares of Common Stock of the Company
subject to options exercisable or preferred stock convertible within 60 days are deemed outstanding for
computing the percentage of class of the person helding such options or preferred stock, but are not
deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of class for any other person.

(3) Of the 2,095,491 shares, it includes 1,221,157 shares owned by Holding, Inc, 706,000 options, and
148,334 shares of the Company’s Preferred F Stock. Holding also owns 20,000 warrants, Mr. Collett may
be deemed to beneficially own the shares held by Holding, although he disclaims such beneficial owner-
ship of such shares. Mr. Collett can exert considerable influence over the election of the Company’s
directors and the outcome of corporate actions requiring stockholder approval.

(4) Includes 1,109,011 shares ewned by Holding. Mr. Coliett may be deemed to beneficially own the shares
heild by Holding, although he disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares,

(3) Includes 148,334 shares of common stock into which 1000 shares of the Company’s Series F Preferred
Stock owned jointly by Mr. and Mrs. Howell are convertible. Of the 472,709 shares, Mr. and Mrs. How-
ell own 135,000 shares as joint tenants and share voting and investment power, Mr. Howell owns
107,500 shares individually and retains sole voting and investment power with respect to these shares.
Mrs. Howell owns 72.500 shares individually and retains sole voting and investment power with respect
to these shares. In addition, the above figure (472,709) includes options granted to Mr. Howell to pur-
chase 9,375 shares of the Company’s common stock.

(6) Includes 296,669 shares which may be acquired by all directors and executive officers as a group upon
conversion of 2,000 shares of the Company’s Series F Preferred Stock. The Company’s Series E Pre-
ferred Stock is not included because it is not a straight conversion,

{7) See Note (5). The address of Freedom Financial Corporation and Freedom Holding, Inc. is
2669 Charlestown Road, Suite D, New Albany, Indiana 47150. The business address of W. B. Collett is
1750 South Kings Highway, Fort Pierce, Florida 34945-3099.

(8} Roland M, and Dorothy V. Howell’s address is Plaza Venetia, Suite 22 A-B, Miami, Florida 33132.

(9) On March 11. 2008, W. Bennett Collett, Jr transferred 198,000 options to Freedom Holding, Inc. W. B.
Collett, Jr, has 9.21% ownership in Freedom Holding, Inc.

(10) George W. Galloway, director, transferred his 57,500 options to GWGJR, INC on March 12, 2008. On
March 14, 2008, GWGIR, INC. exercised 30,000 options. GWGIR, INC. has 27,500 remaining vested
options.

(11} William C. Haddon has 43,750 vested options.

(12) Kimberly R. Tharp has 9,125 vested options and owns 22,500 shares individually. Ms. Tharp exercised
10,000 options on January 29, 2008.

(13) The address of Ramsey Asset Management, LLLC is 8200 Greensboro Drive, Suite 1550, McLean, VA
22102.

(14) Daniel Licciardi has 24,625 vested options and owns 30,000 shares individually. Mr. Licciardi exercised
30,000 options on March 14, 2008.

(15) Prides Capital Partners, LLC owns 5,000 shares of Preferred AA stock that is convertible into 200,000
shares of common stock. Prides Capital also has 20,000 warrants. Prides Capital address is 200 High
Street, #700, Boston, MA 02110.

(i6) Jennifer Chong has 7,250 vested options and owns 10,000 individually. Ms. Chong exercised 10,000
options on March 18, 2008.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On March 17, 2008, Freedom Financial Corporation transferred all ownership in Florida Gaming
Corporation to Freedom Holding, Inc. (**Holding”’) This consisted of 886,157 shares of Florida Gaming
Corporation common stock, 1,000 shares of Preferred F Stock, 200 Shares of Preferred E Stock, 20,000
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warrants and 315,000 stock options. On March 11, 2008, W. Bennett Collett transferred his 528,000 options to
Freedom Holding, Inc., and W, B. Collett, Jr. transferred his 198,000 options to Holding. On March 14, 2008,
Holding exercised 335,000 options. Holding may each be deemed to be a “parent” of the Company as such
term is defined in the rules promulgated under the U.S. Securities & Exchange Act, by virtue of beneficial
ownership of 45.27% of the Common Stock of the Company. See ITEM 11. “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management™.

In April 1999, in order to stimulate lot sales and the construction of new homes in Tara Club Estates,
W. Bennett Collett, the Company’s Chairman, formed a joint venture with a builder called Tara Construction
Co. (the “Joint Venture™). The Joint Venture borrowed $1,200,000 from two commercial banks to finance the
purchase of lots and the construction of homes on the lots. The Company sold nine (9) lots to the Joint Ven-
ture for an aggregate of $431,000 cash and the Joint Venture pledged the lots to secure the bank loans. The
sale of the lots to the Joini Venture resulted in a $212,445 profit to the Company. In June of 1999, the joint
venture commenced construction of homes on eight (8) of the lots and subsequently sold three (3) of the lots
and houses for an aggregate of $880,000, which resulted in a profit of $76,588. The Joint Venture paid
$38,294, which was the Chairman’s share of the profits, to the Company. The Company advanced $112,100 to
the Joint Venture in 1999 and $451,039 to the Joint Venture in 2000, for an aggregate of $563,139, to help
finance the construction of houses on five (5) of the lots. In 2001, the Joint Venture transferred to the Com-
pany the five (5) lots and houses and one {1} lot, subject to the mortgages thereon totaling approximately
$954,000. During the twelve month period ended December 31, 2006, the Company sold the remaining home
for $370,000. The Company had already accrued a reserve of $224,002 on the property. Net of the reserve,
the Company’s basis was equal to the sale price, and there was $21,910 in costs associated with the sale of
the property. There were no sales during 2007. Colletr agreed to personally indemnify the Company for the
over-all loss, if any, resulting from the above described transaction.

The CIB Bank debt was subject to various monetary and non-monetary convents including a requirement
that the debt service coverage ratio for the Company’s Centers subsidiary (EBITDA over scheduled debt
service) exceeds 1.85 to | at all times. At December 31. 2003, the Company was not in default on any of the
required covenants, The CIB Bank debt is personally guaranteed by the Company’s Chairman. In that connec-
tion the Company has agreed to compensate the Chairman annually in an amount equal to 2% of the
outstanding balance of the CIB Bank loan on each anniversary date of the loan. As of December 31,2003,
such amounts accrued were $80,523. The CIB note was paid off October 31, 2005. On October 31, 2005
Freedom Financial (“Freedom™) purchased the First Bank (formerly CIB) loan for $2,400,000. As part of this
purchase, First Bank assigned the note as well as the mortgages, rent, and receivables securing the note to
Freedom. On October 31, 2005, Freedom Financial Corporation (“‘Freedom’) paid $2,400,000 to purchase a
loan previously made by First Bank (formerly CIB Bank) to Florida Gaming Centers, Inc. (**Centers”). First
Bank assigned, without recourse, the note representing the loan as well as the mortgages, rents, and receiv-
ables securing the loan to Freedom, but retained the right to elect between receiving a $250,000 deferred fee
or exercising warrants to purchase 102,115 shares of the Registrant’s common stock in connection with the
loan. First Bank exercised all options in 2006. Effective October 31, 2005, Freedom and Centers entered into
an Amended and Restated Loan Agreement and a Third Amended and Restated Note in the principal amount
of $2.400,000 with an 8% fixed rate of interest. The Amended and Restated Note is unconditionally guaran-
teed by the Registrant and by W. Bennett Collett, individually. The Registrant issued warrants to purchase
20,000 shares of its common stock to Freedom and 40,000 shares of its common stock to third parties as an
inducement for them to fund Freedom’s loan to Centers. On March 17, 2008 Freedom transferred the 20,000
options to Freedom Holding, Inc. As of December 31, 2007, Centers owed Freedom $1,416,172.

In lieu of a salary for the Chairman/CEQ, the Company pays management fees to Freedom Financial of
$60,000 per month. Effective May 1, 2007, the Board of Directors increased the monthly management fee
from $50,000 to $60,000 per month.
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, Item 13. Exhibits List and Reports on Form 8-K

| 3.1

3.2

4.1
4.2
43
4.5
4.6
4.7
10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8
10.9

10.10

Registrant’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the Delaware
Secretary of State on March 28, 2005, filed as reference 3.1 to the Registrant’s 2004 10-KSB, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3.1.

Registrant’s By-Laws as amended to date filed as Exhibit 3.5 to Registrant’s Form 10-kSB for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 are incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3.2,

Registrant’s Amended and Restated Master Stock Option Plan filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Second
Post-Effective Amendment of Registrants Registration Statement Form S-8 is incorporated herein
by reference as Exhibit 4.1,

Stock Option Agreement entered into by and between Registrant and Freedom Financial Corpora-
tion dated April 28, 2006 and is filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K
dated April 28, 2006, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 4.2,

FGC Warrant Agreement dated October 31, 2005, between Florida Gaming Corporation, Freedom
Financial Corporation, James W. Stuckert, and Solomon Oden Howell is incorporated herein by
reference as Exhibit 4.3.

Stock Subscription Agreement entered into between the Registrant and Prides Capital Fund LL.P.
dated June 15, 2007 and is filed as Exhibit 4.5 to Registrant Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 15, 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 4.5,

Stockholders Agreement entered into between the Registrant and Prides Capital Fund LL.P. dated
June 13, 2007 and is filed as Exhibit 4.6 to Registrant Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 15, 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 4.6,

Warrant Agreement entered into between the Registrant and Prides Capital Fund 1.L.P. dated
June 13, 2007 and is filed as Exhibit 4.7 to Registrant Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 15, 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 4.7,

Letter Agreement dated October 29, 2004 entered into by and among Registrant, Florida Gaming
Centers, Inc., and Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. filed as Exhibit 10.48 to Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 4, 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.5.

Shareholders Support and Release of Lien Agreement dated October 29, 2004 entered into among
Registrant, Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., Freedom Financial Corporation, Freedom Holding, Inc.,
Collett Capital Corporation, and W. Bennett Collett, individually, field as Exhibit 10.49 on

Form 8-K dated November 4, 2004, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.5.

Shareholders Support Agreement dated October 29, 2004 entered into between Isle of Capri
Casinos, Inc. and Roland and Dorothy Howell filed as Exhibit 10.50 on Form 8-K dated
November 4, 2004 is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.6.

Agreement dated January 31,2005 between Florida Gaming Centers, Inc., d/b/a Miami Jai-Alai,
the Summer Jai-Alai partnership and Miami Dade County regarding slot machine in pari-mutuel
facilities was filed as reference 10.7 to the Registrant’s 2004 10-KSB and is incorporated herein
by reference as Exhibit 10.7.

Registrant’s Third Amended and Restated Note between Florida Gaming Centers, Inc. and Free-
dom Financial Corp, dated October 31, 2005, was filed as reference 10.8 to Registrant’s 2005
10KSB, herein incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.8.

Registrant’s Amended and Restated Loan Agreement between Florida Gaming Centers, Inc. City
National Bank of Florida, and Freedom Financial Corp, dated Qctober 31, 2005, was filed as
reference 10.9 to Registrant’s 2005 10-KSB, herein incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.9.
Registrant’s Guaranty Agreement between Flerida Gaming Corpora'tion and Freedom Financial
Corporation, dated October 31, 2005, was filed as Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant’s 2005 10-KSB, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.10.
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10.1t Registrant’s Guaranty Agreement between W, Benett Collett and Freedom Financial Corporation,
dated October 31, 2003, was filed as reference 10.11 to Registrant’s 2005 10-KSB, is incorpo-
rated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.11.

14.0 Registrant’s Code of Ethics adopted by the Board of Directors on May 16, 2003, filed as
Exhibit 14 to Registrant’s 2004 10-KSB is incorporated by reference as Exhibit 14.0

210 List of Registrant’s Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, filed as Exhibit 21 to Registrant’s
2004 10-ksb is incorporated by reference as Exhibit 14.

3t Certification by Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 302 as adopted pursuant to
Section 902 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.

31.2 Certification by Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 302 as adopted pursuant to
Section 902 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.

32.1 Certification by Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to18 USC 1350, as adopted pursu-
ant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.

322 Certification by Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to18 USC 1350, as adopted pursu-

ant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.

99.2 Secured Promissory Noted dated October 29, 2004 in the face amount of $5,000,000 executed by
Registrant in favor of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and is incorporated herein by reference as
Exhibit 99.2.

99.3 Promissory Note dated January 31,2 005 in the face amount of $833,333 executed by Florida
Gaming Centers, Inc. to Calder Race Course, Inc. and West Flagler Associated, LTD., and is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 99.3.

(b) Registrant filed a current report on Form 8-K dated June 15, 2007 reporting the transaction with
Pride’s Capital described herein.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Audit Fees. For the year ended December 31, 2007, audit fees were $73,960 compared to $68.,577 for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

Audit-Related Fees. For the year ended December 31, 2007, audit-related fees were $6,293 compared to
$7,288 for the year ended December 31, 2006. Audit-Related fees consisted of a review of 10-KSB and
communications with audit committee.

Tax Fees. For corporation tax return preparation for the year ended December 31, 2007, the fees were
$15,580 compared to $14,740 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

All Other Fees. Miscellaneous Fees for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $18,043 compared to
$4,163 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

The duties and responsibilities of our Audit Committee include the pre-approval of all audit, audit related.
tax, and other services permitted by law or applicable SEC reguiations (including fee and cost ranges) to be
performed by our independent auditor. Any pre-approved services that will involve fees or costs exceeding
pre-approved levels will also require specific pre-approval by the Audit Committee. Unless otherwise specified
by the Audit Committee in pre-approving a service, the pre-approval will be effective for the 12-month period
following pre-approval. The Audit Committee will not approve any non-audit services prohibited by applicable
SEC regulations or any services in connection with a transaction initially recommended by the independent
auditor, the purpose of which may be tax avoidance and the tax treatment of which will not be supported by
the Internal Revenue Code and related regulations.

To the extent deemed appropriate, the Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval authority to any one
or more members of the Audit Committee provided that any member of the Audit Committee who has exer-
cised any such delegation must report any such pre-approval decision to the Audit Committee at its next
scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee will not delegate the pre-approval of services to be performed by
the independent auditor to management.
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All of the services provided by King & Company, PSC and described above under the captions “Audit
Fees,” were approved by our Audit Committee. |

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused the report 10 be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ W. Bennett Collett

W. Bennett Collett
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated. |

/s/ W. Bennett Collett Chairman of the Board of Directors and March 31, 2008
W. Bennett Collett Chief Executive Officer

{Principal Executive Officer)
fs/ Kimberly R. Tharp Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and March 31, 2008
Kimberly R. Tharp Treasurer
/s W. Bennett Colleu, Jr. President, Director, and Chief Operating March 31, 2008
W. Bennett Collett, Jr. Officer
s/ George W. Galloway, Jr. Director March 31, 2008

George W. Galloway, Jr.

/s/ Roland M. Howell Director March 31, 2008
Roland M. Howel!

/s/ William C. Haddon Director March 31, 2008
William C. Haddon
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Florida Gaming Corporation and Subsidiaries
Miami, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Florida Gaming Corporation and
Subsidiaries (a Delaware Corporation) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Florida Gaming Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

fs/ King + Company, PSC

Louisville, Kentucky
March 7, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Florida Gaming Corporation and Subsidiaries
Miami, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Florida Gaming Corporation and
Subsidiaries (a Delaware Corporation) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged 1o perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Qur audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly. we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Florida Gaming Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/sf King + Company, PSC

Louisville, Kentucky
March 7, 2008




FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents . ... ....... ... ... . ... o
Accounts receivable, including ITW, net ... . ... ... .. ... .....
INVENIOTY . . . . oo e e

Property, plant and equipment — Notes C and J

Land ... .. e e
Buildings and improvements ... ..., ... .o
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . ..... ... . ... ...

Less accumulated depreciation .. ... ... .. oL

Real estate held forsale—~Note L . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ...
Otherassets—Notes Gand K . . ....... ... .. ... ... . . ...

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities

Unclaimed WINDINES . . . .. oottt i it e im s e
ITWopayables ... ... .. i e e
Accrued payroll and related expenses . ... ........ ... ... . ..,
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . ... ... ... L
Current portion of long-term debt—Note I . ... ................

Long-term debt (less current portion)—Note 1 . ... .............
Steckholders’ equity — Notes B, D, and H

Class A cumulative convertible preferred stock; 1,200,000 shares
authorized; 28,2335 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 and 2006;
aggregate 2007 liquidation preference of $283,610 .. ...... ... ..

Series AA 7% cumulative convertible preferred stock; 5,000 shares
authorized; issued and outstanding in 2007; aggregate 2007
liquidation preference of $5,087,500. ... .. .. ... ... ..

Series B cumulative convertible preferred stock; 50 shares authorized;
45 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 and 2006; aggregate 2007
liquidation preference of $87,752 . . ... ... . ... ... L

Series E 8% cumulative convertible preferred stock, 300 shares
authorized; 200 issued and outstanding in 2007 and 2006; aggregate
2007 liquidation preference of $190,000 . . ... ... ........... ..

Series F 8% cumulative convertible preferred stock, 2,500 shares
authorized; 2,000 issued and outstanding in 2007 and 2006;
aggregate 2007 liquidation preference of $2,040,000 . . . ... ......

Common stock, $.20 par value, 7,500,000 shares authorized; 3,339,194
shares issued and outstanding in 2007 and 2006 . . . ............

Capital inexcessof parvalue . .. ... ... ... . ...

Accumulated deficit . ... . ... ... e

December 31,

2007 2006

$ 3.423,695 3 2,177.910
355,812 1,615,190
41,846 41,185
3,821,353 3,834,285
4,403,594 4,383,986
7,171,563 6,811,178
1,909,233 1,500,938
13,484,390 12,696,102
(3,594,364) (3,296,717)
9,890,026 9,399,385
297,500 297,500
685,959 696,184

$ 14,694,838 3 14,227,354
$ 176,349 $ 158,894
118,049 136,894
242,630 221,061
3,594,122 2,794,267
6,459,199 165,322
10,590,349 3,476,438
-0- 6,468,741

2,823 2,823

500 -0-

5 5

20 20

200 200

667,839 667,839
48,553,076 41,683,889
{45,119,974) (38,072,601}
4,104,489 4,282,175

$ 14,694,838

$ 14,227,354

See Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Jai-Alai mutuel revenue . ... ... ... .. ... .. e
Less Florida State pari-mutuel taxes incurred-Note E . . .. ... .. ... ..
Less simulcast guest commissions . .. ... ... ... i

Inter track mutoel commissions . . ......... .. . .. . .. . oo

Net Pari-Mutuel Revenue . . . ... .. .. ... ... .. ... ... ..0....

Admission income, net of State taxes incurred .. .................

Program revenue

Food and beverage . ...... ... ... .. . ... . . . ...
Card room revenUe . . . .. .. ... ... e

Other . . . . . ..

Gaming operating revenue . . ... ....... .. ... ... ... . ...,

Real estate sales

Total operating revenue . ... ....... ... .. ... ...t
Operating expenses

Advertising and promotions . . .. ... .. Lo e
Operating and mutuels payroll and related costs . . . .. .. ...........
Player payrofl and related costs . . . .. ... .. .. . Lo L.
Food and beverage costs . .. .. .. ... . i e
Repairs and maintenance . .. ... ... ... ... .. .. . .. ... e,
Totalizatorfteleview rent —Note H . .. ...... ... .. ... ... ......
ITW and television costs . . . ... ... . ...t

Programs . ..

Card room payroll and related costs . . ... .. ... ... . ..
Other card room operating costs . ... ... .. ... .. .. uenennnrn..
Depreciation and amortization . . .. ..... ... . ... ..

Utilittes . . . .

Costof real estate sales . . . . ... ... ... it
Provision for lossonrealestate . ...........................
Miscellaneous, Nt . . . .. . .. .. e e

Total operating expenses ., . ... ..... ... ... . < . ...,

General and administrative

Executive payroll and related costs . . . ... ... ... .. ... L.
Stockoptions—Note D . . . . ... ... . ... e
Directors’ fees . . . . .. e
Management consulting=Note G . ... ... ... ... ... ... .....
Telephone and travel . . . . .. .. . ... L

Professional fees

Interest and financing costs—Note I . . .. .. ... ... ...............
Property 1axes . . . ..o e e e

Insurance . . .

Lossfrom eperations . ... ... ....... ... ... ... ... ........

Other income

Net loss

Dividends on preferred stock . . ... ... .. ... . L. oL,
Net loss available to common shareholders. . . .. ... ...........

Loss per common share — Basic .. ............... .. .. .......
Loss per common share — Diluted . . ... ... ... ... ... ........

2007 2006
$10,425 857 $12,039.961
(1,318,828) (1,492,131)
(3,097,155) (3.496,271)
3,637,796 3,032,392
9,647,670 10,083,951
21,044 138,482
140,040 159,456
677,784 832,336
781,732 745,539
123,938 224,006
11,392,208 13,083,770
-0- 4,320,000
11,392,208 17,403,770
390,729 456,038
4,328,749 4,340,085
3,349,123 3,476,158
757,660 771,791
305,546 288,667
240,421 235,878
852,315 855,036
179,695 173,301
256,437 216,817
264,253 219,588
317,815 304,769
569,469 566,539
-0- 1,708,022
-0- 5,050
1,085,558 1,159,710
12,897,770 14,777,445
$ 538952 $ 584,621
1,890,544 1,393,359
45,000 27,000
680,000 600,000
387,879 369,571
632,749 572,784
704,281 532,388
400,191 399,880
844 467 881,672
6,124,063 5,361,275
(7,629,625) (2,734,954)
159,971 119,014
817,326 1,209,491
-0- 841,944
977,297 2,170,449
(6,652.328) (564,505)
395,045 201,322
$(7.047373)  $§ (765.827)
$ (211 $ (23)
$ (@211) $ (23)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Net loss

FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Operating activities

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating

activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Loss on impairment of assets
Stock options and warrants
Preferred stock discount
Insurance recoveries, net of losses
Provision for doubtful accounts
Decrease (increase) in inventory
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
{Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase in unclaimed winnings

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses .. ...

Realized gain on sale of real estate
Decrease in deposits on real estate sales
Net cash used in operating activities
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Insurance proceeds from hurricane settlement
Capitalized improvement costs
Proceeds from payments of notes receivable
Proceeds from the sale of real estate
Net cash provided by investing activities

Financing activities

Repayment of short-term debt

Proceeds from issuing preferred stock and stock warrant

Costs to issue preferred stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Dividends paid
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Interest paid

Noncash exercise of stock warrants

Supplemental disclosures

2007 2006
$(6,652,328)  $ (564,505)
387,565 374,519
-0- 5,050
1,890,544 1,393,359
182,764 -0-
-0- (841,944)
(37,364) (1,636)
(661) 4,929
344,582 (291,741)
(70,858) 70,554
17,455 66,330
690,849 (627,989)
-0- (2,611,978)
-0- (258.082)
(3,247,452) (3,283,134)
(797,123) (407,275)
952,160 350,000
-0- (5,050)
-0- 509,959
-0- 4,069,609
155,037 4,517,243
(174,864) (1,062,351)
5,000,000 -0-
(203.621) -0-
-0- 231,201
(283,315) (267,546)
4,338,200 (1,098,696)
1,245,785 135,413
2,177,910 2,042,497

$ 3,423,695

$ 2,177,910

$ 453,892
-0-

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Florida Gaming Corporation (the Company) operates live Jai Alai games at frontons in Ft. Pierce, and
Miami, Florida through its Florida Gaming Centers, Inc. subsidiary (Centers). The Company also conducts
intertrack wagering (ITW) on jai alai, horse racing and dog racing from its facilities. In addition, the Com-
pany operates Tara Club Estates, Inc. (*“Tara™), a residential real estate development and commercial project
located near Atlanta in Walton County, Georgia (See Note M). Approximately 44% of the Company’s common
stock is controlled by the Company’s Chairman and CEQ either directly or beneficially through available
stock options and his ownership of Freedom Financial Corporation (Freedom), a closely held investment
company.

Basis of Presentation: These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated. Certain 2006 amounts have been
reclassified to conform with their 2007 presentation.

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Property, Plant and Equipment:  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is pro-
vided using the straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful life of the related assets as
follows:

Buildings ... .. ... e e 39 years
Land and building improvements . ... ...... ... . ... ... 15 years
Fumniture and equipment . ... ... ... ... e 5 =17 years
Automebiles . . ... e 5 years

Long-Lived Assets: The Company’s investment in its residential and commercial property is carried at
cost, The Company evaluates the carrying value of its real estate development and other long-lived assets
under FAS 67 and FAS 144 annually.

Bad Debt Reserve: The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to estimated
uncollectible amounts. The Company’s estimate is based on historical losses, changes in volume and economic
conditions impacting the current receivables. Activity in the allowance for 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

2007 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Balances, January 1 ... ... ... .. ... ... $135,972 $137,608
Provision for losses . . .. . . ... ... . . .. i e (37,364) (1,636)
Chargesto the allowance .. ......... ... ... ... ... v..., (98,608) -0-
Balances, December 31 . .. . ... ... . e $ -0- $135,972

Inventory: The Company’s inventory, consisting of food and beverage products and souvenirs, is stated
at the lower of cost or market using the First-In First-Out method to assign cost. Inventory market values
exceeded its cost at December 31, 2007,

|



FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Other Comprehensive Income: The Company follows the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. The Company had no “‘other comprehensive
income” during either year presented. Accordingly, comprehensive income is equal to net income in 2007 and
2006.

Pari-Mutuel Wagering: Revenue is derived from acceptance of wagers under a pari-mutue] wagering
system. The Company accepts wagers on both on-site and ITW events. On-site wagers are accumulated in
pools with a portion being returned to winning bettors, a portion paid to the State of Florida, and a portion
retained by the Company. ITW wagers are also accepted and forwarded to the “host™ facility after retention of
the Company’s commissions. Unclaimed winnings (outs) totaled $176,349 and $158,894 at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue from gaming operations in accordance with
Staff Accounting Bulletin 104 which requires revenues to be recognized when realized or realizable and
earned. Jai-Alai and inter track mutual commissions are recognized immediately upon completion of the event
upon which the related wagers are placed. In general, wagers are placed immediately prior to the event and
are made in cash or other good funds so collectability is not an issue. Revenues derived from admission,
program sales, food and beverage sales, card room activities, and other revenues are recognized at the time of
the transaction. Revenues from the Company’s real estate operations are recognized with the execution of a
binding contract to sell unless the down payment is insufficient to accrue the revenue. In those cases, the
revenue is recognized upon closing.

Income Taxes: The Company utilizes the asset and liability approach to accounting for income taxes.
The objective of the asset and liability method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary
differences between the financial reporting and the tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities at enacted
tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are realized or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Income (Loss) Per Common Share: Basic income (loss) per common share is determined by dividing
income (loss), less required dividends on preferred shares ($205,452 and $201,322 in 2007 and 2006, respec-
tively), by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding. Diluted income (loss) per
common share is determined by dividing income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding plus the weighted average number of shares that would be issued upon exercise of dilutive
stock options and warrants assuming proceeds are used to repurchase shares pursuant to the treasury stock
method plus the weighted average number of shares that would be issued if holders of the Company’s pre-
ferred stock converted those shares to common stock using the “if converted” method, unless the use of such
methods would be anti-dilutive.

The weighted average number of shares outstanding used in the calculation of both basic and diluted net
loss per common share was 3,339,194 and 3,276,702 for 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Options and warrants to purchase 1,558,625 and 1,488,625 shares of the Company’s common stock were
outstanding on December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. None of the shares subject to option at Decem-
ber 31, 2007 or 2006, net of forfeitures, were included in the computation of diluted loss per common share
for either year because their effect would have been antidilutive. Qutstanding options and warrants are dis-
cussed further in Notes B, D, and 1.

Advertising Costs:  Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Stock Options: The Company accounts for all employee stock based compensation in accordance with
FASB 123(R), which requires that equity instruments issued as compensation be measured at fair value (See
Note D).
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

The Company accounts for non-employee stock-based compensation in accordance with Emerging Issues
Task Force (EITF) 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Emplovees for
Acguiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. Amounts are based on the fair value of the
consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably measur-
able. The value assigned to stock options granted to non-employees are accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 123 and EITF 96-18, which require that such costs be measured at the end of each reporting period
to account for changes in the fair value of our Common Stock until the options are vested using the Black-
Scholes pricing model. Common Stock is valued using the market price of Common Stock on the
measurement date as defined in EITF 96-18 (See Note D).

Real Estate Development: 'The Company’s Tara Subsidiary accounts for the cost of lots sold by dividing
the acquisition and development costs by the number of lots developed.

Compensated Absences: The Company has not accrued compensated absences for the years ending
December 31, 2007 and 2006 because the amounts cannot be reasenably estimated.

Effect of Implementing Recently Issued Accounting Standards:  On September 2006, the FASB issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 (“*SFAS 158"}, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R)", effective for the Company for the year ending Decermber 31, 2006. This statement requires the
recognition of the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or
liability on the balance sheet, and the recognition of changes in that funded status through other comprehen-
sive income. The adoption of SFAS 158 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157
(“SFAS 157", “Fair Value Measurements”, effective for the Company beginning on January 1, 2008. This
Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. This statement establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between valua-
tions obtained from sources independent of the entity and those from the entity’s own unobservable inputs that
are not corroborated by observable market data, SFAS 157 expands disclosures about the use of fair value to
measure assets and liabilities in interim and annual periods subsequent to initial recognition. The disclosures
focus on the inputs used to measure fair value and for recurring fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs, the effect of the measurements on earnings or changes in net assets for the period. The
adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes,” effective for the
Company beginning on January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the recognition threshold a tax position is required to
meet before being recognized in the financial statements, FIN 48 also provides guidance on disclosure and
other matters. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (“*SFAS 1597),
*“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”, effective for the Company beginning
on January 1, 2008. This Statement provides entities with an option to report selected financial assets and
liabilities a1 fair value, with the objective to reduce both the complexity in accounting for financial instru-
ments and the volatility in earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently. The adoption
of SFAS 159 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note B — Preferred Stock

Class A Preferred: The Company’s Class A preferred stock provides annual dividends, at the rate of
$.90 per share payable in cash, property or common stock, which are cumulative and have priority over
dividends on the common stock. The Company has declared and paid or accrued the required dividends for
2007 and 2006.

Each share of Class A preferred is convertible into .1125 shares of common stock at the holder’s option,
During the year ended December 31, 2006, 3,000 shares were converted to 338 shares of the Company’s
common stock. The Class A preferred is redeemable at the option of the Company at $10.60 per share. In the
event of dissolution, the holders of Class A preferred shall be entitled to receive $10.00 per share, plus
accrued dividends, prior to any distribution to holders of common stock.

Series AA Preferred:  On June 15, 2007, the Company authorized and issued 5,000 shares of Series AA
cumulative convertible preferred stock, $.10 par value (the “Series AA Preferred Stock™), which provides
annual dividends at the rate of 7% of the shares stated value. The stated value per share is equal to $1,000 (as
adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations or splits). The Company has declared and paid or accrued the
required dividends for 2007.

Each share of the Series AA Preferred Stock may be converted into 40 shares of the Company’s $.20 par
value Common Stock (the “Conversion Stock™). The number of shares of Conversion Stock into which each
share of Series AA Preferred Stock may be converted shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or
decrease in the number of shares of Common Stock or Series AA preferred Stock, as the case may be, out-
standing arising from any division or consolidation of shares, stock dividend, reverse stock split, or other
similar increase or decrease in the number of shares of Commeon Stock or Series AA Preferred Stock outstand-
ing, The Company will also pay the holder of converted shares all accrued but unpaid dividends through the
conversion date on the converted shares.

Upon ligquidation, the holders of Series AA Preferred Stock are entitled to receive the greater of (i) the
stated value per share and all accrued and unpaid dividends to and including the date of payment thereof and
(ii) the amount the holders of Series AA Preferred Stock would have received upon liquidation of the Com-
pany had such holders converted their shares of common steck.

All 5,000 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock were issued to Prides Capital Fund 1, LP (*“Prides”) for
an aggregate of $3,000,000. Costs associated with the issuance of the Series AA Preferred stock include
professional fees of $203,620. Additionally, to induce Prides to purchase the Series AA Preferred Stock, the
Company issued Prides a stock warrant to purchase 20,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an
exercise price of $30 per share (see Note D). The stock warrant was recorded at its fair value of $182,794 in
the accompanying 2007 Statement of Operations as a financing cost.

In association with the Series AA Preferred Stock issue, the Company entered into a Stockholders Agree-
ment (the “Agreement”) with Prides which provides shelf and demand registration rights to Prides at any
time after September 1, 2009 for all registrable securities issued to Prides. The Agreement also provides
Prides with Tag-Along rights to shares of the Company’s common stock owned by the Company’s Chairman.

Class B Preferred: The Company’s Series B convertible preferred stock provides annual cumulative
dividends at the rate of 8% to 10% of the consideration paid for the stock. Such dividends are payable in
shares of the Company’s common stock. The consideration received by the Company upon initial issuance of
each share of the Series B stock was $1,000. Holders of Series B shares may convert all or any of such
Series B shares to the Company’s common stock using a ratio based on the consideration paid for the stock
and 80% of the market value of the common stock. Upon liquidation, the holders of Series B preferred shares
shall be entitled to be paid $1,000 per share plus 8% to 10% accrued dividends before any distribution to
holders of common stock. The required Series B dividends were declared and accrued during 2007 and 2006.
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FLLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note B — Preferred Stock - (continued)

Series E Preferred: The Company is authorized to issue 300 shares of Series E 8% cumulative convert-
ible preferred stock, $.10 par value (the ““Series E Preferred Stock™), which provides annual dividends at the
rate of 8% of the share’s stated value, payable upon conversion of the Series E preferred stock into common
stock. The stated value per share equals $1,000 (as adjusted for any stock dividends, combination or splits).

Holders of Series E Preferred Stock may convert all or any such shares to the Company’s common stock
{the “Series E Conversion Shares™) beginning 120 days after the issuance of the Series E Preferred Stock. In
general, the number of Series E Conversion Shares issuable on conversion of each share of Series E Preferred
Stock shall equal the consideration paid for such share together with accrued and unpaid dividends on such
share, if any, divided by the lesser of (i) $15.00 and (ii) 830% of the average of the closing bid price of the
common stock on the five trading days before conversion. A holder of Series E Conversion Shares may not
sell more than 25% of such shares between 120 and 150 days of his purchase of Series E Preferred Stock
converted into each share, 50% of such shares between 151 and 180 days of his purchase of Series E Pre-
ferred Stock converted into such shares and 75% of such shares between 181 and 210 of his purchase of
Series E Preferred Stock converted into each share; holders may generally sell all of their Series E Conversion
Shares 211 days after their purchase.

Upon liquidation, the holders of Series E Preferred Shares shall be entitted 10 be paid $950 per share plus
accrued dividends before any distribution to holders of common stock. The required Series E dividends were
declared and paid during 2007 and 2006.

Series F Preferred: The Company is also authorized to issve up to 2,500 shares of Series F 8% Cumu-
lative Convertible Preferred Stock (the ““Series F Preferred Stock™), which provides annual dividends at the
rate of 8% of the shares’ stated value. The stated value per share equals $1,000 (as adjusted for any stock
dividends, combination or split). At the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors, such dividends may
be paid in shares of the Series F Preferred Stock.

Holders of Series F Preferred Stock may convert all or any of such shares to the Company’s common
stock at any time. Each share of Series F Preferred Stock shall be converted into 148.3345 shares of common
stock (the “Conversion Stock”). The number of shares of Conversion Stock into which each share of Series F
Preferred Stock shall be converted shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the num-
ber of shares of common stock or Series F Preferred Stock.

Upon liquidation, the holders of Series F Preferred Shares shall be entitled to be paid $1,000 per share
plus accrued dividends before any distribution to holders of common stock,

The Series F shares are all held by related parties of the Company. 2,000 Series F shares were outstand-
ing at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The required Series F dividends were declared and paid or accrued
during 2007 and 2006.

The Class A Preferred Stock, the Series AA Preferred Swock, the Series B Preferred Stock, the Series E
Preferred Stock and the Series F Preferred Stock are all equal in rank with respect to the payment of divi-
dends and the distribution of assets upon liquidation of the Company.

Note C — WJA Contract

On September [2, 1996, the Company acquired the notes (the “WIJA Notes™) of WJA Realty Limited
Partnership (“WIA”™), with balances aggregating about $20,000,000 from the Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., Tulsa,
Cklahoma. The WJA Notes were secured by, among other coliateral, real estate and improvements consisting
of three jai-alai and ITW facilities located in Miami, Tampa and Qcala, Florida (the “WJA Frontons™),
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note C — WJA Contract — (continued)

On November 25, 1996, Florida Gaming Centers, Inc. a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(*“Centers™), entered into a purchase agreement with WJA pursuant to which Centers agreed to acquire the
WIJA Frontons from WJA. Consideration for the acquisition included (i} the cancellation of the WJA Notes,
(i) the retention by WIJA of the 200,000 shares of common stock owned by WIJA, (iii) the assumption of all
liabilities of WIJA arising in the ordinary course of business (subject to certain limitations), including a
$500,000 promissory note owed to Wheeler-Phoenix, payable over a ten year period in equal installments,
with annual interest of 6% (See Note I) and (iv) a profit sharing arrangement based on Centers’ net profits
before income taxes, wherein WJA would receive 20% of Centers’ cumulative net profits for ten years (1997
through 2006), subject to a cumulative $1,000,000 per year cap. Other aspects of the 20% provision could
affect the profit payout. Additionally, should Centers dispose of any of its significant assets or operations,
except for those at Ft. Pierce, WJA may be entitled to 10% of Centers’ gain (net of related costs and
expenses) on disposition. The Company previously paid a disposition payment of $200,000 relating to the gain
on the sale of its Tampa and Ocala properties and certain Miami properties. The contract expired January 1,
2007.

In 1996 a principal of WJA (Donovan) entered into a five-year consulting agreement with Centers, with
annual compensation of $240,000, plus certain benefits. During late 2001, the Company and Donovan negoti-
ated a new agreement. The 2001 Donovan agreement continued his consulting and non-competition agreement
for payments of $25,000 in December 2001, $216,000 on January 14, 2002 and $1,000 per month for 60
months through December 2007. All scheduled payments have been made through December 31, 2007,
concluding the agreement,

Note D — Stock Options and Warrants

Warrants for the purchase of 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued during 2001 to
First Bank (formerly CIB Bank) in connection with the Company’s financing with such Bank. The exercise
price was $.20 per share. The warrant number and exercise price were subject to adjustment from time to time
due to certain events causing dilution or anti-dilution of these warrants. The warrants had a fair value of $.67
each at the date of issue and a total value of $134,379. Such cost was capitalized as a cost of financing. The
warrants vested immediately and were set to expire upon maturity of the related credit facility on October 31,
2004. However, the credit facility was subsequently amended and restated to extend its maturity date to
January 31, 2005, and then amended and restated again to extend its maturity date to October 31, 2005. The
original warrant agrecment was also amended and restated, Upon execution of the amended and restated
warrant agreement, the Company replaced the original 100,000 warrants to CIB Bank with 67,390 warrants to
First Bank and 32,610 warrants to Citrus Bank (a participating Bank in the original credit facility). During
2005, the Company also adjusted the warrant number to 102,115 (68,978 to First Bank and 33,137 to Citrus
Bank) and the exercise price to $.1959 due to events causing dilution of the original warrants. The replace-
ment warrants were to expire on October 31, 2007. In accordance with FASB 123(R), incremental cost of
$14,947 was incurred due to the modification of the original warrant agreement. As part of the original credit
facility, First Bank was entitled to receive a deferred fee of $250,000, if First Bank and Citrus Bank did not
exercise their warrants. During the year ending December 31, 2006 First Bank and Citrus Bank exercised
68,978 and 33,137 warrants, respectively and therefore forfeited their rights to the deferred fee. These war-
rants were exercised in a noncash manner. Therefore, the 102,115 warrants exercised resulted in the issuance
of 101,037 shares of common stock.

Warrants for the purchase of 20,000 and 40,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued
during 2005 to Freedom Financial Corporation and other financiers, respectively, in connection with the
Company’s financing with Freedom Financial Corporation. These warrants vested immediately and expire
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note D — Stock Options and Warrants - {continued)

upon redemption of the related credit facility. The warrant number and exercise price were subject to adjust-
ment from time to time due to certain events causing dilution or anti-dilution of these warrants. The warrants
had a fair value of $3.51 per share and a total value of $210,582. Such cost was capitalized as a cost of
financing (See Note I).

On July 10, 2006 the Company issued a total of 473,125 options: 33,000 options were issued to key
employees, 325,000 options were issued to Freedom Financial Corporation, and 115,125 options were granted
to executive employees and directors. The mean closing bid-asked price of the shares on July 7, 2006 (the
most recent trading day prior to July 10, 2006) was $13.30. The options became vested and exercisable 50%
on December 31, 2006, and 50% on July 1, 2007,

Also on July 11, 2006, the Company issued 362,500 options to executive employees and directors. The
mean closing bid-asked price of the shares on July 10, 2006 (the most recent trading day prior to July 11,
2006} was $13.30. The options became vested and exercisable 50% on December 31, 2006, and 50% on
July 1, 2007. On August 21, 2006, the Company issued an option under its Advisors and Consultants Stock
Option Plan to purchase 3,000 shares of FGC Common Stock for $20.00 per share. The mean closing bid-
asked price of the FGC Common Stock on August 18, 2006 (the last day of trading prior to August 21, 2006)
was $12.80. The option is exercisable anytime after August 21, 2006 and before August 21, 2008, and is
non-transferable except by operation of law. On September 30, 2006, the Company issued an option under its
Advisors and Consultants Stock Option Plan to purchase 20,000 shares of FGC Common Stock for $20.00 per
share. The mean closing bid-asked price of the FGC Common Stock on September 29, 2006 (the last day of
trading prior to September 30), 2006) was $12.75. The option is exercisable anytime after Septernber 30, 2006
and before March 30, 2009, and is non-transferable except by operation of law. The Company recognized
stock based compensation expense of $1,890,544 ($.57 per share) and $1,393,359 ($.42 per share) for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The fair value of each option grant was amortized as
compensation expense over the vesting period of each option grant,

On May 4, 2007, the Company entered into an option agreement (the “Agreement””) which granted a
consultant (“‘the optionee™), a non-employee, an option (the ““Option’") under the Company’s Advisors and
Consultants Stock Option plan (the “Plan™), to purchase up to 50,000 shares of $.20 par value common stock
of the Company at an exercise price of $35 per share. The Option is non-transferable except by operation of
law and is exercisable, in whole or in part, from time to time, anytime after the date legal approval of slot
machines has been obtained at the Company’s Miami Jai-Alai facility and before tweive months following the
date of the Agreement. The obligation of the company to issue any shares to the optionee pursuant to this
Agreement is subject to the legal approval of slot machines at the Company’s Miami Jai-Alai facility and
subject to terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Plan and all applicable laws, rujes and regulations,
including without limitation, all applicable federal and state securities laws. The Company recognized no
expense upon granting the Option. The obligation of the Company to issue any shares to the optionee is
subject to the simultaneous payment from the optionee to the Company of an amount equal to the required
charge to the Company’s capital or expense accounts as computed using the Black-Scholes Methed.

On June 15, 2007, in cennection with its issuance of 5,000 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock (see
Note B) the Company entered into a warrant agreement (the “Agreement’”) with Prides, which entitled Prides
to purchase an aggregate of 20,000 shares of the Company’s $0.20 par value common stock at an exercise
price per share of $30.00. The warrant is exercisable from and after June 15, 2007 and expires June 15, 2012.
The warrant issued is considered a Preferred Stock issuance cost of $182,764.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note D — Stock Options and Warrants - (continued)

Number of Yesting Period: Option Fair Value of
Options/ Grant Date Period in Grant Stock on

Date of Grant Warrants Granteg Through Years Price Grant Date
Key 50% — 12/31/06

July 10, 2006 . .. .. 33,000 Employees 50% — 07/01/07 6 $17.00 $13.30
Freedom
Financial 50% - 12/31/06

July 10, 2006 . . ... 325,000 Corp. 50% - 07/01/07 6 $17.00 $13.30
Executive
Employees 50% ~ 12/31/06

July 10,2006 . .. .. 15,125 and Directors  50% - 07/01/07 6 $17.00 $13.30
Executive
Employees 50% — 12/31/06

July 11,2006 .. ... 362,500 and Directors  50% — 07/01/07 3 $17.00 $13.30
Advisors and

Aug. 21,2006. .. .. 3,000 Consultants 8/21/06 2 $20.00 $12.80
Advisers and

Sept. 30, 2006. . . .. 20,000 Consultants 9/30/06 2% $20.00 $12.75
Advisors and

May 4, 2007, ... .. 50,000 Consultants 1/29/08 | $35.00 $23.50
Prides
Capital

June 15,2007 ... .. 20,000 Fund 1, LP 06/15/07 5 $30.00 $26.15

The fair value of options and warrants is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
consistent with FASB 123(R) and EITF 96-18. The assumptions used during 2007 and 2006 to value the
Company’s stock options and warrants were as follows:

Risk-free rate of return
Expected forfettures
Expected volatility

Expected dividends . . ... . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ..

Qutstanding, beginning of year
Granted

Expired

Outstanding, end of year

Options and warrants exercisable, end of year
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2007 2006
5.01% 5.00%
None None
42 86% 30.00%
None None
Weighted-
Average
Shares Exercise Price
1,488,625 $11.60
70,000 33.57
-0- N/A
-0- N/A
-0- N/A
1,558,625 $12.59
1,558,625




FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note D — Stock Options and Warrants - (continued)

The number of shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of fixed conversion
rights, options and warrants were 2,074,617 and 1,788,471 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note E — Taxes on Income, Handle and Admissions

At December 31, 2007, the Company had tax net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of approximately
$16,217,000 available to offset future taxable income. These NOL carryforwards expire fifteen years from the
year in which the losses were incurred or at various intervals through fiscal 2022,

Any deferred tax assets arising from differences from taxable income and financial reporting income are
deemed to be offset by an allowance in an equal amount due to the uncertainty of future taxable income.

The components of the Company’s deferred tax asset/liability are as follows:

2007 2006
Deferred tax asset:

Net operating loss carryforwards ... ... ... ... ... ... .... $ 5,513,775 $ 4,078,843

Difference in depreciation methods . . .. ... ... .. .. ... ... -0- 60,907

Accounts receivable valuation reserve . ... .... . ... . ...... -0- 46,230

Real estate valuation TESETVE . . . . . .. i v it e e e e e n 1,723 1,723

Stock OpLIONS . . .. . e 1,680,530 1,037,745

Charitable contributions . . . . ... ... ... ... .. .. ... . .... 13,420 3,358

Total deferred tax assets . . . ... ... ... .. 7,209,448 5,228,806
Deferred tax liability: :

Difference in depreciation methods . .. .. ................ (129,209) -0-
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance ............ 7,080,239 5,228,806
Less: Valuation allowance ... .......... ... . ... . (7,080,239 (5,228,806)

Net deferred 1ax @sSeLS . . . .. . vt v v v r ittt e b -0- 3 -0-

Effective July 1, 1998, tax relief legislation was enacted by the State of Florida (HB3663) stipulating that
jai alai permit holders incurring state taxes on handlé and admissions in an amount exceeding its operating
earnings (before deduction of certain expenses such as depreciation and interest) for the prior year are entitled
to credit such excess against pari-mutuel taxes due and payable.

The Company's Tampa Jai Alai Permit (Fronton closed in 1998) retains such tax credits carried forward
totaling $1,362,265. The Company’s Ft. Pierce facility has not incurred statutory operating losses and there-
fore has not earned any state tax credits.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note E — Taxes on Income, Handle and Admissions — (continued)

As of December 31, 2007, unused credits available for recovery under the permit held by Miami Jai-Alai
totaled $2,352,201. An analysis of the Miami Jai Alai (Miami) tax credits used and accumulated is as follows:

Miami Jai Alai

Cumulative Tax

Statutory Taxes Tax Credits Credit Carried

Year Operating Loss Incurred Used Forward

1998 $ (831,326) $1,330,864 $ (509,714) $2.352,201
1999 (646,894) 1,219,042 {1,219,042) 2,352,201
2000 (301,012) 1,128,321 (1,128,321) 2,352,201
2001 {441,803) 815,055 (815,053) 2,352,201
2002 (218,207) 712,191 (712,191) 2,352,201
2003 (351,317) 635,411 (635,411) 2,352,201
2004 {985,735) 599,300 (599.,800) 2,352,201
2005 (1,395,639) 554,496 (554,496) 2,352,201
2006 (1,852,317) 582,352 (582,352) 2,352,201
2007 (2,346,238} 488,461 (488.461) 2,352,201

Pari-mutuel taxes incurred and tax credits utilized reflected in the 2007 and 2006 Statement of Operations
include $542,540 and $597,071, respectively related to Summer Jai Alai operations (See Note K).

Each permit holder is required by Florida State Law to file a periodic (30 day) report summarizing its
pari-mutuel handle and its admissions. Taxes are then remitted to the state on the basis of these reports. In this
connection, the Company has made two interpretations pertaining to the operation of HB3663, which affect
the manner in which it reports taxes due and credits earned. First, management believes the calculation of
statutory operating losses should reflect taxes incurred but not tax credits used in a given period. Second,
management believes credits used are the equivalent of taxes *‘paid” for determination of its tax rate on ITW
handle. (As a result of legislation enacted July 1, 2000, Miami’s Jai Alai's tax rate on live handle decreased
from 3.85% to 2%.) The 30 day reports filed by the Company for its Miami permit from December, 1998
through December, 2007, as amended, reflect these interpretations.

By tetters dated June 30, 2000 and September 8, 2000 the State of Florida took a contradictory position
to the Company’s interpretation for the determination of the ITW tax rate on handle and asserted a tax liabil-
ity of $170,172 as of April 30, 2000. Further, the State's computation included only credits approved through
1998. Based on the Company’s interpretation, as of April 30, 2000, the Company would have utilized only
$2,293.373 of the $2.936,915 available for recovery from taxes incurred in 1997 and 1998. On October 6,
2000 and in response to a letter from the Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering of the State of Florida, the Com-
pany filed suit for declaratory relief against the Division/State of Florida contesting the Division’s
interpretation of the statute. In response to the Company’s action, the Division/State of Florida filed a motion
to dismiss and requested that Florida Gaming Corporation post bond.

The court did not grant the motion to dismiss and did not require the Company to post bond as requested
by the Division/State of Florida. As of December 31, 2003, the suit concluded due to the expiration of the
relevant statute of limitations. The Company received letters dated July 14, 2006 and October 20, 2006 from
the Division/State of Florida which reflected a computation of tax credits for Miami and Summer Jai Alai
{See Note K) that agreed with the Company’s records.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note F — Retirement Plan

The Company provides defined contribution retirement plans under Internal Revenue Code Section
401 (k). The plans, which cover employees included in its current Collective Bargaining Agreement and certain
non-union employees, provide for the deferral of salary and employer matching. The Company’s costs for
matching employee contributions totalled $58,000 and $59,000 during 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note G — Related Party Transactions

Reference is made to Note K for details of the Company’s transactions with Summer Jai Alai.

Reference is made to Note B for information pertaining to Series F Preferred Stock held by related
parties.

Reference is made in Note D pertaining to stock options and warrants issued to Freedom Financial
Corporation. Reference is made to Note [ for details on the Company’s credit facility with Freedom Financial
Corporation,

Additional information can be found in Note D pertaining to compensating stock option arrangements
between the Company and its employees and Directors.

The Company paid $680,000 and $600,000 in 2007 and 2006, respectively to Freedom Financial Corpo-
ration for the services of the Company’s Chairman and CEO. No written employment or consulting agreement
exists between the Company and Freedom.

The Company had an account receivable from Freedom at January 1, 2006 which totaled $136,072.
During the year ending December 31, 2006, the Company agreed to offset this receivable against its note
payable to Freedom (See Note [).

Reference is made to Note I regarding the Chairman’s guarantee of the Company’s debts with First Bank
and Freedom and the related compensation to the Chairman.

Note H — Commitments and Contingencies

Leases: The Company rents totalizator equipment (Autotote) at each fronton under leases which expire
October 31, 2008. The totalizator leases require a minimum annual rental at the Miami and Ft. Pierce loca-
tions. Additionally, transmission of the Miami Jai-Alai signal requires the use of a satellite uplink simulcasting
service which requires a fee of five hundred dollars ($500.00) per performance, under a contract which expires
2008. Total totalizator rental expense and other equipment rental under operating leases for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $387,000 and $372,000, respectively. The remaining mini-
mum lease commitments under all operating leases at December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Miami Ft. Pierce Total
2008 . .. e e e $226,200 $124,800 $351,000

The Company also leases certain parking facilities adjacent to its Miami Fronton. This lease dated
February 17, 2003, required monthly lease payments totaling $31,000 per year. The 2007 renewal required
annual payments of $126,000. The 2008 renewal requires annual payments of $130,000.

Collective Bargaining Agreement: The Company is a party to a collective bargaining agreement with the
International Jai Alai Players Association U.A.W. Local 8868, AFL-CIO. The agreement allows the Company
to negotiate individual contracts with players and provides for minimum salaries and bonuses based on
parimutuel handle, certain cesta allowances and retirement benefits. The agreement continues from year to
year unless timely notice of termination is given by either party to the agreement.

Concentration of Credit: The Company maintains significant cash balances with financial institutions in
excess of the insurance provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
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Note H — Commitments and Contingencies - (continued)

Litigation: 'The Company is a defendant in routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.
The Company believes that the resolution of the suits will not have a material adverse impact on the Compa-
ny's financial position or its results of operations. Reference is made to Note K for details of Summer Jai Alai
litigation.

Other Commitments: Reference is made to Note C for details of other Company commitments. Refer-
ence is made to Note N for details of an $833,000 contingent note payable.

Note I — Long-Term Debt
The Company’s long-term debt comprised the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Current Long-Term Current Long-Term
Note payable to Wheeler-Phoenix, Inc., assumed in
connection with the acquisition of assets described
in Note C; principal payable in 10 annual install-
ments plus interest at 6% . . ... ..... .. ... .. -0- -0- $ 50,000 -0-

Note payable to Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., Dela-
ware, dated October 29, 2004, secured by the
Company’s capital stock in its Florida Gaming
Centers subsidiary and all assets of the Company
in Miami, Florida payable as follows: quarterly
interest only payments beginning January 1, 2005
and due on the first day of each quarter thereafter
at the rate of 6% until December 31, 2008, when
either the principal and any interest accrued is due
or if the sale of all or material portions of the
assets are sold or all or any material amount of
equity interest is sold before December 31, 2008
then the note must be paid at that time . . . . .. .. $5,000,000 -0- -0-  $5,000,000

Instaliment note payable to American Honda

Finance Corporation dated January 22, 2005,

secured by 2005 Acura TL; principal and interest

payable in 48 installments of $737.74 . . . ... ... -0- -0- $ 7888 % 9405

Mortgage note with Freedom Financial
Corporation dated October 31, 2003, secured by
real estate located in Ft. Pierce and Miami,
Florida; a security agreement on furniture, fixtures,
equipment, receivables and intangibles in Miami,
Florida payable as follows: Thirty six installments
of $18,523.59 on the twentieth day of the month
beginning November 2005 and thereafter until
October 2008, and a final installment in the
amount of all principal then outstanding plus
interest on October 31, 2008. Interest rate is 8.0%
PETAMAUII. « . v v vt vt e e e e e et $1.416,172 -0- 104,410 1,416,172

Mortgage note dated December 18, 2006 secured

by lot #28.B at Tara Club Estates; principal and

interest payable in 34 monthly installments of

$578.86 with final payment due November 17,

2009 ... 43,027 -0- 3,024 43,164

$6,459,199 -0- $165.322  $6,468,741
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Note 1 — Long-Term Debt — (continued)

On October 29, 2004, Florida Gaming borrowed $5 million (the “Loan”) from Isle of Capri Casinos,
Inc., a Delaware corporation {**ICC™), pursuant to a Secured Promissory Note (the “Note”). Under the Note,
interest accrues on the unpaid principal balance at an annuat rate of 6%. On lanuary 1, 2005 and on the first
day of each fiscal quarter thereafter through December 31, 2008, Florida Gaming must make quarterly pay-
ments of interest only, in arrears, to ICC, except that during the continuance of any Event of Default (as
defined in the Note), interest accrues at an annual rate of 12%. The entire unpaid principal amount of the Note
and unpaid interest thereon is payable on the earlier of (i) the sale of all or any material portion of the assets
of, or all or any substantial equity interest in, Florida Gaming Centers, Inc., (Centers), or (ii) December 31,
2008.

Under the Note, on October 29, 2004 Florida Gaming was required to repay certain indebtedness owed
by it to Freedom Financial Corporation (“‘Freedom Financial”), an Indiana corporation and the beneficial
owner of approximately 31.2% of the voting power of Florida Gaming. The Note further required Freedom
Financial to release its security interest in all of the outstanding shares of the capital stock of Centers, its lien
and security interest on all of the assets of Centers, and the guarantee by Centers of all of Florida Gaming’s
obligations under an Agreement for Line of Credit dated November 24, 1998 by and between Florida Gaming
and Freedom Financial (collectively, the “Released Security”). The Note also required that Freedom Financial
pay to ICC $1,200,000 on October 29, 2004 to repay a portion of certain pre-existing indebtedness owed by
Freedom Financial to 1CC.

Pursuant (o a Pledge Agreement dated Ociober 29, 2004 among ICC, Florida Gaming, and Centers (the
“Pledge Agreement”), Florida Gaming’s obligations to ICC under the Note are secured by Florida Gaming’s
pledge to ICC of a continuing security interest in (i) 1,000 shares of the capital stock of Centers owned by
Florida Gaming, which constitutes all of the issued and outstanding shares of Centers’ capital stock, (i1) all
other property delivered to ICC in substitution for or in addition to the Centers capital stock, and (iii) all
products and proceeds of all of the foregoing.

In connection with the Loan, Florida Gaming, Centers, and 1CC also entered into a letter agreement dated
October 29, 2004 (the “Letter”). Pursuant to the Letter, Florida Gaming and Centers promised that during the
period beginning October 29, 2004 and ending on the date (the “Final Approval Date”) which is the earlier of
(i) the date that is six months after the date on which legislation allowing for the operation of slot machines at
the Miami Jai Alai business owned and operated by Centers (the “Miami Jai Alai Business™) is duly passed
and adopted by the State of Florida and (ii) December 31, 2008, Florida Gaming and Centers will not solicit,
initiate, or engage in any discussions or negotiations with any third party relating to any possible agreement or
other arrangement involving the acquisition of all or substantially all of the Miami Jai Alai Business from
Centers or any other transaction (a “Prohibited Transaction™) that would otherwise materially interfere with or
impair or delay the Transaction (as hereinafter defined). The Letter further provides that beginning on Octo-
ber 29, 2004 and ending on the date that is six months after the Final Approval Date, but in no event later
than December 31, 2008, Florida Gaming, Centers, and ICC will use their commercially reasonable best
efforts 1o negotiate in good faith a definitive agreement providing for the purchase by ICC of the Miami Jai
Alai Business (the “Transaction) at a purchase price that is, to the extent that the projected net revenue
retained by the Miami Jai Alai Business is greater than or equal to 55%, equal to the greater of: (i) the differ-
ence between (a) six times the projected first year EBITDA of the Miami Jai Alai Business and (b) the
projected cost to ICC of the development, construction, equipping and opening of the slot machine facility
proposed by ICC at the location of the Miami Jai Alai Business; or (i) $100 million. The Letter further
provides that if the projected net revenue is less than 55%, the parties may further negotiate the purchase
price with appropriate adjustments for such lesser net revenue. The Letter’s Final Approval Date was triggered
on January 29, 2007 when legislation allowing for the operation of slot machines was approved in Dade
County, Florida; the county in which the Miami Jai Alai business is located.
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note I — Long-Term Debt -~ (continued)

As further inducement to ICC to provide the Loan, ICC required that Freedom Financial, Freedom
Holding, Inc., a Delaware corperation and the owner of 100% of the outstanding equity of Freedom Financial
(“Holding™), Collett Capital Corporation, a Delaware corporation and the beneficial owner of approximately
28.6% of the voting power of Florida Gaming (*Collett Capital™), and W. Bennett Collett (*“Mr. Collert™),
who is the beneficial owner of approximately 90.8% of Collett Capital, entered into a Shareholders’ Support
Agreement and Release of Liens (the *‘Shareholders’ Support Agreement™). Under the Shareholders® Support
Agreement, (i} Freedom Financial agreed to release the Released Security, (ii) Florida Gaming agreed to repay
to Freedom Financial certain pre-existing indebtedness, (iii) Freedom Financial agreed to pay to ICC at least
$1,200,000 as a prepayment of a portion of pre-existing indebtedness owed by Freedom Financial to 1CC,

(iv) Freedom Financial, Holding, Collett Capital, and Mr. Collett (collectively, the “FHolders™) agreed to not
permit discussions or negotiations to continue regarding a Prohibited Transaction, (v) the Holders agreed to
vote the stock in Florida Gaming in favor of the Transaction and against any Prohibited Transaction, and

(vi) the Holders granted to [CC, contingent upon receipt of all necessary approvals by appropriate Florida
regulatory agencies, a proxy to vote their Florida Gaming Stock in favor of the Transaction and against any
Prohibited Transaction. Mr. and Mrs. Rowland Howell {a Director), beneficial owners of approximately 13.8%
of Florida Gaming’s outstanding capital stock, entered into a separate Shareholders’ Support Agreement with
respect to items (iv), (v), and (vi), above. The grantors of the proxies described are, collectively, the beneficial
owners of greater than 50% of the outstanding capital stock of Florida Gaming,

On October 31, 2005 Freedom Financial purchased the Company’s note with First Bank (formerly CIB)
for $2,400,000. As part of this purchase, First Bank assigned the note as well as the mortgages, rents, and
receivables securing the note to Freedom. First Bank retained the right to a deferred fee of up o $250,000 and
First Bank and Citrus Bank retained the right to exercise certain stock warrants with such exercise resulting in
the elimination of the deferred fee (see Note D). At the same date, Florida Gaming renegotiated the terms of
this note with Freedom. Under the new terms, the note has a fixed interest rate of 8.0% per annum and is
secured by various mortgages, rents, and receivables. The note matures on October 31, 2008. The Company
issued 20,000 stock warrants to Freedom Financial and 40,000 stock warrants to two financiers who helped to
facilitate this loan. The warrants were valued at $3.52 per share for a total value of $210,582 and were
recorded as a capitalized financing cost (see Note [3). Such cost is being amortized over the life of this loan.

The First Bank debt was personally guaranteed by the Company’s Chairman. In that connection the
Company agreed to compensate the Chairman annually in an amount equal to 2% of the outstanding balance
of the First Bank loan on each anniversary date of the loan. Amounts totaling $80,000 were accrued during
2005 and paid during 2006 to Freedom Financial Corporation for the benefit of the Company’s Chairman
pursuant to the guarantee agreement.

The Company has also agreed to compensate the Chairman annually in an amount equal to 2% of the
outstanding balance of the Freedom debt. Guarantee payments totaling $29,468 and $35,854 were paid during
2007 and 2006, respectively, pursuant to this agreement,
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note J — Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise the following:

December 31,

2007 2006
Land ... e e e $ 4,403,594 $ 4,383,986
Buildings and improvements . ........... ... . ... ... .. 7,171,563 6,811,178
Equipment furniture and fixtures . .. .. ... ... ... ... . ... 1,434,143 1,376,052
Vehicles ... . e 85,910 124,886
Construction in progress . ... .. .o n e iin e 389,180 -0-
Less accumulated depreciation . . ........ ... ... ... ... (3,594,364) (3,296,717

$ 9,890,026 $ 9,399,385

Depreciation expense totaled $306,482 and $293.436 during 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note K — Summer Jai Alai

In conjunction with the acquisition of WJA’s Frontons, the Company acquired WJA’s 21% interest in the
Summer Jai-Alai, Partnership (the *Partnership™), a Florida general partnership formed in 1980 with three
other pari-mutuel permit holders for the purpose of conducting pari-mutuel jai-alai operations at the Miami
fronton during the six months between May 1 to October 31 (“Summer Jai-Alai Operations™). The Compa-
ny’s partners were Hollywood Greyhound, Flagler Greyhound and Biscayne Kennel Club or their successors.
The Company’s interest in the Partnership was accounted for under the equity method and had a carrying
value of $92,491 and $50,657 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Pursuant to the settlement of certain partnership disputes, since the 1998 season the Company operated
the Partnership at its own risk and for its own benefit under annual agreements which required fixed payments
10 each of the partners. The agreement authorizing the Company’s use of the Summer Jai-Alai permit (the
“Permit’”’) between June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2004 required a fee of $345,000 payable monthly in 12 equal
installments. The Company agreed to hold its partners harmless for any and all losses or liabilities incurred
through June 30, 2004. After June 30, 2004, the permit agreement terminated and the previous partnership
agreement became the controlling document for the operation of the Partnership by the parties. The Partner-
ship had a loss of $202,227 for its 2004 summer season. The Company entered into a dispute to recover
$98,608 from its partners for their allocable shares of the loss after June 30, 2004.

‘The Company also took the position in the dispute with its partners that effective October 31, 2004 the
Partnership terminated and subsequent to December 31, 2004 the Company has operated the Summer Jai-Alai
Operations for its own benefit as a division of the Company. In this connection the Company assumed certain
operating payables and receivables of the Partnership which resulted in the Company carrying a receivable
from the Partnership of $255,509 at December 31, 2006. During 2007 a settlement was reached between the
Company and its partners. The Company forgave its $255,509 receivable from the Partnership and its $98,608
receivable from its partners. The setilement provides the Partnership will continue as a going concern with the
Company a 21% owner, West Flagler Associates LTD a 52% owner, and BKCLP 2 LTD a 27% owner. The
Partnership owns the Permit and under a Permit Use Agreement (the “PUA”) between the Company and the
Partnership, the Company has the exclusive right to conduct gaming operations under the Permit. The Com-
pany derives all revenue, and is responsible for all expenses, from such gaming operations. In addition, the
Company must assure that the holder of the Permit remains authorized to conduct all activities that Florida
law authorizes under the Permit, based on the law in effect at any particular time. The Company may termi-
nate the PUA if the requirement to keep it valid imposes a material burden on the Company. West Flagler and
BKCLP may terminate the PUA if they jointly elect to do so. If the PUA is terminated (and, thus the Permit’s
use reverts to the Partnership) the Partnership does not have the right to conduct activities at the Company’s
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note K — Summer Jai Alai — (continued)

fronton. The Company, West Flagler and BKCLP entered into an Amended and Restated Partnership Agree-
ment for the Summer Jai Alai Partnership and except for the following put/call rights, all actions of the
Partnership require unanimous approval of the three Partners. The Partnership contains mandatory put/call
rights which take effect if (1) the PUA is terminated by the Company, (2) the PUA is terminated by West
Flagler and BKCLP, or (3) any two partners deliver to the third partner a notice of election to trigger the
put/call. Under the put/call rights, the party(ies) triggering the put/call must offer to sell to the other partner(s)
its interest at a stated price. The other partners may either buy the interest at that price, or sell their interests
to the triggering partner at that price. Each partner must give the other partners 45 days advance notice of a
“Change of Control” — which is a change of ownership of more that 40% of the partoer’s equity and, in the
case of the Company, a sale by its Chairman and his affiliates of more than 50% of their stock in the
Company.

In accordance with the settlement, all revenues and expenses of the Summer Jai-Alai Operations are
included in operating income and expenses of the Company in the accompanying Statements of Operations.

Note L — Real Estate Held for Sale

The Company’s Tara subsidiary held residential real estate called Tara Club Estates (collectively, “Tara”
or the “Properties’), all of which was situated in Loganville, Walton County, Georgia. At January 1, 2006 the
Tara residential property comprised one home and six developed lots, The Company also owned land in
Ft. Pierce, Florida held for sale as commercial property comprising 79 acres.

On February 14, 2006, Tara sold the remaining home at its Tara Development. Net proceeds from the
sale amounted to $343,090 ($370,000 sales price less $26,910 in settlement charges) and Tara’s basis in the
property totaled $370,000 ($594,002 in total costs less provisions for losses of $224,002).

Total sales and the related cost of the Tara property were as follows:

2007 2006
Total residential sales, less settlement charges . . .. ............. -0- $ 343,090
Total residential cost of sales ... ............. ... ... ..... -0- (370,000)
Gross 0SS . . .. ... .. -0- 3 (26,910)

As of January 1, 2006 the Company also held approximately 79 acres of real estate in Ft. Pierce, Florida
adjacent to its fronton. The 79 acres were sold in 2006. Net proceeds on the sale amounted to $3,726,519
($3,800,000 sales price plus $150,000 of extension fees less $223,481 in settlement costs). The Company’s
basis in the property totaled $1,087,631, resulting in a $2,638,888 gain.

Accordingly, the Company’s remaining property held for sale comprises six residential lots totaling
$297,500 at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets™
the Company periodically evaluates and adjusts its reserve for losses on its property held for sale. Activity in
the reserve for 2007 and 2006 was as follows;

2007 2006
Allowance for losses on property held for sale
Balances, January 1 . ... . ... ... ... . ... $5,069 $ 224,021
Provision for losses . ... .. ... . . . ... ... . ... -0- 5,050
Charges to the reserve . . ... ... .. ... e, -0- (224,002)
Balances, December 31 .. .. .. ... .. ... . ... $5,069 $ 5069
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note L. — Real Estate Held for Sale — (continued)

The Company has completed its development activities and will expend no additional resources to further
develop its properties. Accordingly, future expenses incurred related to these properties will be expensed as
incurred.

The Company’s real estate development activities comprise a separate segment of its operations. (See
Note M)

Note M — Segment Information

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures About Seg-
ments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” Statement 131 requires companies to report information
about the revenues derived from the enterprise’s segments, about the geographical divisions in which the
enterprise eamns revenues and holds assets, and about major customers.

The Company has defined its segments into two main areas; Florida Gaming Centers (Centers) and Tara
Club Estates (Tara). These segments are organized under the supervision of the Florida Gaming executive
management team and are evaluated based on the following information presented: Revenues from gaming
operations, revenues from lot sales and operating profit contribution to the total corporation. All inter-segment
transactions are eliminated to arrive at the total corporation revenue and operating profit. Income and expense
items below operating profit are not allocated to the segments and are not disclosed.

The Florida Gaming Centers segment operates the Corporation’s jai alai centers in Miami and Fort
Pierce, Florida. Centers also operates the Company’s inter-track wagering operation in Florida. Tara Club
Estates is a real estate development in Loganville, Georgia. Tara develops residential building lots for sales to
builders and individuals. As permitted under Statement 131, certain information not routinely used in the
management of these segments, information not allocated back to the segments or information that is impracti-
cal to report is not shown, Items not disclosed are as follows: Interest income and expense, Amortization
Expense, Income Tax Expense or Benefit, Extraordinary Items, Significant non-cash items and Long-lived
assets.

Centers’ gaming operations comprise approximately 100% of the Company’s revenues. Neither Centers
nor Tara has any customers that individually represent a significant portion of their business.

December 31, 2007

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands) Assets Revenues Profit (Loss)
Florida Gaming Centers . . . .. 7% $11,405 100% $£11,392 59% $(3,756)
Real Estate Development . . . . _23% 3,392 -0 -0- _41% (2,645)
Consolidated total ......... 100% $14,797 100% $11,392 100 $(6,401)

December 31, 2006

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands} Assets Revenues Profit (Loss)
Florida Gaming Centers . .. .. 84% $11,951 75% $13,084 184% $(1,040)
Real Estate Development . . .. _16% 2,276 _25% 4,320 (8% 475

Consolidated total ......... 100% $14,227 100% $17,404 100% $ (565)

Note N — Referendum on Casino Gaming/Subsequent Event

In November 2004, voters in Florida approved an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Florida
to allow Broward and Dade Counties in Florida the local option to hold elections to approve certain types of
casino gaming at pari-mutuel betting facilities within each county. In March 2003, local option ¢lections were
held in Broward and Dade Counties. The Company’s Miami fronton is in Dade County. The local referendum
passed in Broward County and failed in Dade County in 2005.
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FLORIDA GAMING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note N — Referendum on Casino Gaming/Subsequent Event — (continued)

L2]

On January 31, 2005 the Company agreed to pay Dade County for certain “infrastructure improvements
required by the County in connection with the referendum. The arrangement required the Company to make
an initial payment of $500,000 to Dade County in January 2005. A second payment of $833,000 was made on
behalf of the Company by two other pari-mutuel facilities in Dade County. In consideration for this payment,
the Company issued a note payable to these parties. The Company’s obligation to repay the $833,000 note
was contingent on the passage of the gaming question, In January, 2008, the voters in Dade County voted to
approve certain types of casino gaming at pari-mutual betting facilities. Accordingly, the Company recorded
the resulting $833,000 liability concurrently with a charge to expense.

Note O — Insurance Recovery

During 2005, the Company’s Miami facilities were damaged by a hurricane. The Company’s insurance
carrier issued a payment of $400,000 and offered an additional $500,000 for a total of $900,000 in settlement
of the claims made to repair or replace the damaged Miami components, The Company incurred $171,795 in
expenses related to the hurricane damage. The carrying value of the Miami assets damaged totaled $404,602.
Accordingly the Company’s insurance recoveries, net of losses, totaled $323,603 for the year ending Decem-
ber 31, 2005, As a result of the Company’s continued negotiations with the insurance carrier the Company
received insurance proceeds totaling $1,852,160 from the carrier, $952.160 in excess of the Company’s origi-
nal estimate, through March 22, 2007. The Company incurred expenses totaling $110,216 in connection with
the collection of these funds for the services of an independent consultant assisting with the negotiations. The
Company recorded these additional net proceeds as insurance recoveries, net of losses, of $841,944 for the
year ending December 31, 2006. The 2006 recovery, net of losses, was recorded as a change in accounting
estimate in accordance with Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154 (FAS 154), Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections, which requires a change in accounting estimate be recorded prospectively.
There were no income taxes resulting from the gain because the Company has sufficient tax net operating
losses available to be carried forward, The 2006 recovery, net of losses, of $841,444 is included as other
income in the accompanying 2006 Statements of Operations. The Company continues to litigate the claim
seeking to recover all its losses.

Note P — Handle

Pari-Mutuel handle for years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2007 2006
Handle
Live Jai-Alai . ... ... ..., .. . . i $17.826,419 $20,808.,526
ITW-Guest .. ... .. e e e 44,337,753 47,404,674
ITW-Host .. ... ... . . e 22,107,103 25,295 404
Total Pari-Mutuel Handle ... ................... $84,271,275 $93,508,604

Since 2003, the Company has operated Summer Jai-Alai (Summer) as a division of the Company.
Accordingly, all handle, income and expenses from Summer’s operations are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006 (see Note K), The Com-
pany’s Florida Gaming Centers and Summer Jai Alai handle and operations are reported under separate
licenses to the State of Florida,
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